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| Thought, We Can Stay Strong Like Stones

by Chok Yue Zan
Mixed media
120 x 180 cm

Mr Chok Yue Zan’s / Thought, We Can Stay Strong Like Stones is the design inspiration for this
Annual Report. Mr Chok reinterprets his family’s portrait to show the depth, strength and unity
of familial ties. It received the 2017 UOB Painting of the Year (Malaysia) award. He is also the
recipient of the 2018 UOB-Fukuoka Asian Art Museum residency programme.

The rocks carved in the shape of the people closest to the artist symbolise the importance of
nurturing trusted and deep relationships that last. Standing resilient amid swaying foliage, cloudy
skies and rolling waters, the rocks reinforce the need for a firm foundation and fortitude to
weather change and volatility. All these reflect UOB's distinctive approach to banking.

Creating sustainable value for our stakeholders and the communities in which we operate is also
expressed through UOB's support of art. The UOB Painting of the Year Competition, in its 36" year
in 2017, is the Bank’s flagship art programme held across four Southeast Asian countries.
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB (China)) is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of United Overseas Bank Limited
(UOB), a leading bank in Asia. UOB (China) is headquartered
in Shanghai and was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China on 18 December 2007.

From our first representative office in Beijing in 1984, we have
grown our network to 17 branches in major Chinese cities by
the end of 2017.

We have also been building on our strengths. In 2006,
UOB was the first bank from Southeast Asia authorised to
settle capital accounts in Shanghai. We received a retail
RMB licence and Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE) trading
membership in 2008 and 2011 respectively. In 2012, we were
awarded a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors licence,
and were one of four foreign banks to participate in bullion
trading on the SGE interbank platform.

UOB (China) is one of the first foreign banks to obtain a
local mutual fund licence in China, in 2013. The following
year, we established a sub-branch in the Shanghai Free Trade
Zone, and obtained a trial market maker licence for inter-
bank gold bilateral transactions and a market maker licence
for direct trading between RMB and the Singapore dollar in
the interbank foreign exchange market. We also obtained the
gold import and export licence in 2015. These achievements
have enabled us to widen our product and service offering to
our customers operating in China.

In 2015, UOB Group increased the registered capital of UOB
(China) by RMB2.5 billion to RMB5.5 billion.

UOB (China) is rated ‘A+ with stable outlook by Fitch Ratings
and AAA by China Chengxin International Credit Rating with
a stable outlook.

As we continue to grow our business, we remain committed
to sharing our successes with the community. Since 2012, we
have held the annual UOB Heatbeat Run/Walk to raise funds
to support various art, children and education initiatives in
China.

For more information about UOB (China), please visit
www.UOBChina.com.cn.
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Who We Are

United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB) is a leading bank in Asia
with a global network of more than 500 branches and offices
in 19 countries and territories in Asia Pacific, Europe and
North America. In Asia, we operate through our head office
in Singapore and banking subsidiaries in China, Indonesia,
Malaysia and Thailand, as well as branches and offices across
the region.

In 1935, amid the economic uncertainties following the
Great Depression, UOB opened its doors to provide banking
services for the merchant community in Singapore.

Since then, UOB has grown organically and through a series
of strategic acquisitions. Today, UOB is rated among the
world’s top banks: ‘Aal’ by Moody’s and ‘AA-" by Standard &
Poor’s and Fitch Ratings.

Over more than eight decades, generations of UOB
employees have carried through the entrepreneurial spirit,
the focus on long-term value creation and an unwavering
commitment to doing what is right for our stakeholders.

At UOB, we believe in being a responsible financial services
provider and we are committed to making a difference in the
communities in which we operate. Just as we are dedicated
to helping our customers manage their finances wisely and
grow their businesses, we are steadfast in our support of
social development, particularly in the areas of art, children
and education.

What We Do

UOB provides a wide range of financial services globally
through our three core business segments - Group Retail,
Group Wholesale Banking and Global Markets. Our offering
includes personal financial services, private banking, business
banking, commercial and corporate banking, transaction
banking, investment banking, corporate finance, capital
market activities, treasury services, brokerage and clearing
services. Through our subsidiaries, we also provide asset
management, venture capital management and insurance
services.
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Financial Highlights

oo g
ZERR Operating result AR™MFIT RMB'000 %
ElANETT Total operating income 1172,439 943 404 243
ElER Total operating expenses 884,752 844,665 47
BEFERERK Impairment charges 134,178 49,704 170.0
FERETFE Profit before tax 143,700 56,817 152.9
Bk Balance sheet ARTTF3T RMB'000 %
BBt Total assets 63,499,056 52,386,412 212
& 4545 Financial indicators % % %
BARFEREE Return on equity 2.0 07 13
RFEFEE Return on average total assets 02 01 01
AN EE Expenses/income ratio 74.5 863 (1.8)
F I BT AN L SN mig,ﬁ: and commission income/total operating 98 3 (45)
FRlE (ARM) Loan-to-Deposit ratio (RMB) 76.4 857 (93)
mEEEER Liquidity coverage ratio 2439 165.8 781
AT Leverage ratio 85 103 (1.8)
TRERE Non-performing loan ratio 0.8 13 (0.5)
WEBEXR Non-performing loan coverage 258.8 163.0 95.8
RARFEREIERR Capital adequacy ratio
BO—REARTRE Core Tier 1 CAR 165 182 (17)
—RARRTERER Tier 1CAR 16.5 182 (17)
RAETRE Total CAR 173 187 (14)
O S ———————— - s —
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The painting on this year’s Annual Report cover depicts
solid foundations that are needed to secure and sustain
relationships over time. Its theme resonates strongly with
UOB (China) as we believe the fundamental strengths of our
business model form the bedrock on which we continue
to create sustainable value for our stakeholders. We build
and deepen relationships by focusing on and supporting
the long-term interests of our customers, colleagues and
the community. Our disciplined approach in balancing
growth with stability continues to bear fruit as we weather
challenges, cycles and change.

2017 Financial Performance

In 2017, we achieved an operating income of RMB1,172.4
million, an increase of 24.3 per cent from last year, driven by
double-digit growth in net interest income and investment
income.

Our net interest income rose 24.5 per cent from a year ago to
RMB805.8 million, attributed to higher interest bearing assets
and higher yields from interbank placements and securities in
a rising interest rate environment.

Investment income grew 40.8 per cent year on year to
RMB251.2 million as a result of higher realised gain from gold
trading and foreign exchange derivatives.

Total operating expenses went up by 13.9 per cent as we
continued to invest in our people and strengthening our
capabilities, as well as from an increase in impairment
provision in line with higher loan growth. We posted a net
profit after tax of RMB136.0 million, a rise of 214.4 per cent
from 2016.

Our asset quality remained stable. The non-performing loans
(NPL) ratio declined to 0.8 per cent from 1.3 per cent a year
ago and our NPL coverage ratio rose from 163.0 per cent to
258.8 per cent in the same period. We continue to monitor
our portfolio vigilantly and are confident of the resilience of
our asset quality and the adequacy of our provisions.
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Our loans grew 13.6 per cent to RMB271 billion while our
deposits increased 20.2 per cent to RMB30.3 billion as
we continued to improve our funding base. Our liquidity
position remained healthy with our liquidity coverage
ratio standing at 243.9 per cent, well above the regulatory
minimum requirement of 100 per cent.

Our capital position is robust with the Common Equity Tier
1 and Total Capital Adequacy Ratios at 16.5 per cent and 17.3
per cent respectively as at 31 December 2017, also well above
the regulatory minimum requirements.

We were rated A+ by Fitch Ratings and AAA by China
Chengxin International Credit Rating with a stable outlook.

Enterprising with a Far-Sighted Approach

As our 2017 results reflect, we forged ahead on many fronts
to achieve our strategic priorities, continuing to invest in the
present to help ensure business growth well into the future.

We focused on building our China franchise; enhancing
our capabilities as we connect individuals and businesses
to financial opportunities at home and abroad; harnessing
technology to strengthen performance and to improve the
customer experience, and developing our people to their full
potential for them to stay ahead in this fast changing world.

Building on Our China Franchise

UOB'’s well-timed investments over many years have ensured
the Group’s competitive advantage in the region. As a
leading bank in Asia with a strong franchise and integrated
network across Southeast Asia, UOB is best placed to seize
the immense opportunities being created for business, trade
and investment. Our position will be strengthened by the
Group’s ability to continue to tap the region’s growth drivers
in serving the needs of our customers as they increase their
wealth and expand their businesses.

In China, we are investing to ensure we can support our
clients as they seize opportunities arising from China’s
Belt and Road Initiative (BRI) and the Greater Bay Area
(GBA) scheme. For example, in November 2017 we opened
a branch in Kunming, Yunnan - a strategic node of the BRI
which has recorded strong trade and investment flows
between Hong Kong and Southeast Asian countries. Our new
Kunming branch is well-positioned to help Southwest China’s
businesses with their cross-border expansion plans through
onshore and offshore solutions. It also complements our
operations in West China’s Chengdu and Chongging.
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Connecting Clients to Regional Opportunities

We continued to help our clients tap regional cross-border
flows by connecting them seamlessly across the region and
helping them benefit from the ecosystem of partnerships we
have been building. UOB was the first bank in Southeast Asia
to set up dedicated Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Advisory
Units across Asia from 2011 to help companies work through
the complexities of operating locally and to bridge them to
opportunities across the region as they expand overseas and
enter new markets.

As part of expanding our FDI ecosystem partners, in June
2017 UOB signed another Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU), this time, with the Chinese Chamber of International
Commerce, China’s national business association. In November
and December 2017, UOB (China) also signed two MOUs
with the Yunnan Chamber of International Commerce and
the China Council for the Promotion of International Trade
Jiangsu Sub-Council respectively. These add to the Group’s
other tie-ups with government agencies and industry
partners across the region to support our clients’ long-term
regional growth ambitions.

In March 2017, China’s Central Government announced plans
to develop and to boost the economic growth of the GBA,
with the aim to transform the GBA into the world's largest
bay area in terms of gross domestic product by 2030. To help
our clients capture potential GBA opportunities and realise
their own growth ambitions, we harnessed the combined
strengths of our Greater China offices to provide clients with
the cross-border solutions they require.

Deepening and Widening Our Capabilities

We are sharpening our focus on selected industry sectors
where we see the strongest opportunities in trade and
investment flows. Through a deeper understanding of our
clients’ value chain, using data analytics, risk insights and
controls, we are able to address their needs holistically. This
in turn deepens the relationship with our clients.

To enhance our support of our clients’ regional expansion
plans, we launched the interest rate swap and foreign
exchange forward product for our corporate clients to help
them hedge against market risks and manage cross-border
financing costs.
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Keeping Our Customers at the Heart of All We Do

In a world where the lines between the physical and virtual
are blurring, we believe in integrating digital and traditional
channels to give our customers a truly rounded, consistent
and cumulative experience across all products, services
and touchpoints. We ensure the experience is not only
borderless, intuitive and efficient through economic cycles
and across markets, but that it is also safe and reliable for
our customers. We recognise the important role technology
plays in ensuring these.

Meeting the needs of our customers is the main consideration
in our use of technology. While we innovate and keep pace
with advances in technology, we do so with a clear purpose
of making banking smarter, simpler and safer, and always
wrapped in the warmth of the human touch.

In January 2017, UOB (China) was one of the first foreign
banks to offer customers the convenience of digital
payments and money transfers via WeChat payment and
remittance services. Our Direct Banking mobile application
(app), which was launched in August 2017, was the first of
its kind offered by a foreign bank in China. The mobile app
offers wealth management solutions and lifestyle benefits
for our emerging affluent customers. Customers can use the
app to open a bank account, to manage their finances and to
invest while on the go.

For our corporate clients, we also used technology to help
them achieve sustainable business growth through new
revenue streams, process improvements and productivity
gains. For example, we launched our UOB Virtual Account
Solution and enhanced our internet banking service for
businesses, UOB Business Internet Banking Plus, to help our
clients manage their business transactions more effectively.

Caring for Our Colleagues

Caring for the professional and personal growth of our
people is part of our employee value proposition, UOB+you.
Building on UOB's values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and
Commitment, UOB+you is the promise by which we attract,
engage and retain the right individuals and teams to take us
forward.

In 2017, we also launched our Greater China Leadership
Academy, which serves as our talent incubator across
mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan. We also provided
various employee training programmes to deepen our
people’s skillsets and to prepare them for the future.
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United in Our Efforts to Strengthen Community Bonds

Our care and commitment for people extend to the
communities in which we operate. We believe that through
our steadfast support of art, children and education we
can help open minds and hearts and thereby strengthen
societal bonds. In 2017, we contributed holistically to these
community causes through philanthropy, partnerships and
employee participation in the areas of art, children and
education.

In China, our people volunteered more than 3,300 hours to
support local community activities. One of these was our
annual UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk, a fundraising event that
saw about 1,600 UOB (China) colleagues and their family
members across the country participating to help improve
the lives of children with financial difficulties or special
needs in Sichuan and Yunnan provinces.

We also partnered Yicai Foundation to launch the “UOB
Brings the World to Me” programme. The programme
provided children in the remote, mountainous areas of
Yunnan province with a range of online courses on topics
such as science, culture and financial literacy.

In recognition of our efforts, UOB (China) received a
Corporate Social Responsibility Award at the Philanthropy
Innovation Summit 2017.

To engage our stakeholders further and to keep them abreast
of our business developments, in 2017 we launched the UOB
(China) corporate WeChat account. Through the account we
share our business insight, cross-border investment outlook,
events invitation and highlights, best practices and updates
on our community efforts, as well as stories about our
colleagues.

2018 Outlook

In 2017, we saw the broadest improvement in global
economic recovery since 2010 and this upswing is expected
to continue.

Asia’s growth will be anchored by the stability in China,
which recorded its first growth pick-up in 2017 since 2010,
even as the region grapples with the impact of protectionist
trade policies from the US.

With China setting its 2018 economic growth target at 6.5
per cent, we remain optimistic about the country’s growth
prospects, driven by rising consumer affluence and increasing
cross-border business and investment flows. Domestic and
regional initiatives, including the development of free trade
zones and the BRI and GBA, will continue to underpin the
expansion of business opportunities and connectivity across
China and the rest of Asia.
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Committed to Sustaining Our Growth Responsibly

As we celebrate the 10™ anniversary of the incorporation of
UOB (China), we remain confident of, and committed to, our
growth in China. Setting our sights on the future, we stay
anchored to our founding principles, upholding our values of
Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment, as we persevere
in pursuit of our goals, whatever the weather or terrain.

Just as the rocks on the cover of our Annual Report represent
the strong foundation on which our business is built, we can
be sure-footed in our journey ahead. The groundwork we
have laid for our China franchise sets a strong base for us
to seize the rising business opportunities. We will continue
to balance growth with stability, supported by our sound
balance sheet and targeted investments for the future.

Our ultimate purpose is to deepen the trust our stakeholders
place in us. We know it is also our duty to develop professionals
whose principled actions are always guided by our time-
tested values. We never forget that as we continue to
build our business, we have a responsibility to strengthen
community bonds and to give back to the communities in
which we operate.

To the UOB (China) Board, Management and colleagues, |
thank you for your dedication to doing what is right for the
Bank, and for the good results we achieved as a team in 2017.
To our valued customers and investors, thank you for your
continued confidence in, and support of UOB (China).

Wee Ee Cheong

Chairman
March 2018
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Registered Name
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

Legal Representative
Wee Ee Cheong

Registered Office

Floor 3, Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor 12), Floor 15
(Actual Floor 13), Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor 17 (Actual Floor 15) and Floor 18
(Actual Floor 16), No. 116 and No. 128, Yin Cheng Road, Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: UOBChina.com.cn

Date of Incorporation
18 December 2007

Registration Authority
Shanghai Administration of Industry and Commerce

Unified Social Credit Code
913100006694147236

Paid Up Share Capital
RMB 5,500,000,000

Shareholder (Founder)
United Overseas Bank Limited

Type of Company
Limited Company (Wholly Foreign-owned)

Supervisors
Wee Cho Yaw
Cham Tao Soon (Deputy Supervisor)

Board of Directors

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Peter Foo Moo Tan (President and CEO)
Francis Lee Chin Yong
Christine Ip

Liu Erh Fei

Zeng Zhi Jie

Executive Committee

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Peter Foo Moo Tan

Francis Lee Chin Yong
Christine Ip

Nominating and Remuneration Committee
Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman)

Wee Ee Cheong

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Liu Erh Fei

Audit Committee

Liu Erh Fei (Chairman with effect from 1January 2018)
Zeng Zhi Jie

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Christine Ip

Connected Transaction Control Committee

Liu Erh Fei (Chairman with effect from 1January 2018)
Zeng Zhi Jie

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Board Risk Management Committee

Francis Lee Chin Yong (Chairman)

Zeng Zhi Jie

Christine Ip

Liu Erh Fei

Auditors
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP) Shanghai Office
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Supervisor

Wee Cho Yaw

Supervisor

Dr Wee, 89, was appointed as Supervisor of United Overseas
Bank (China) on 30 October 2007.

Dr Wee is a veteran banker with more than 50 years’ banking
experience with the UOB Group.

He is the Chairman Emeritus and Adviser of United Overseas
Bank, Singapore and of United Overseas Bank (Malaysia), and is
the Chairman of United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company
and President Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

His other board chairmanships include United Overseas
Insurance, Haw Par Corporation, UOL Group, Pan Pacific Hotels
Group, United Industrial Corporation, Marina Centre Holdings
and Wee Foundation. He is also the Chairman of Chung Cheng
High School.

Dr Wee is the Honorary President of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Singapore Federation of
Chinese Clan Associations and Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan.
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Dr Wee received Chinese high school education. He had
served on numerous school management committees
and the Councils of the Nanyang University and National
University of Singapore. He has been the Pro-Chancellor of
the Nanyang Technological University (NTU) since 2004. He
was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Letters by
the National University of Singapore in 2008 and a second
Honorary Degree of Doctor of Letters in 2014 by NTU.

Dr Wee was named Businessman of the Year twice at the
Singapore Business Awards in 2001 and 1990. He received the
inaugural Credit Suisse-Ernst & Young Lifetime Achievement
Award in 2006 and The Asian Banker’s Lifetime Achievement
Award in 2009. In recognition of his business achievements
in the region, Dr Wee was conferred the Legacy Award for
Singapore at the Asean Business Awards 2017.

He received the Distinguished Service Order, Singapore’s
highest National Day Award from the President of Singapore
in 2011 for his outstanding contributions to the economic,
education, social and community development fields in
Singapore.
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Deputy Supervisor

Cham Tao Soon

Deputy Supervisor

Prof Cham, 78, was appointed as the Deputy Supervisor of
United Overseas Bank (China) with effective from 1 January
2017. Prof Cham was a non-executive and independent
director of the Bank from 2008 to 2016.

Prof Cham is the Chairman of NSL, Soup Restaurant and
Singapore Rail Academy, and a member of SAP (Asia Pacific
Japan) Advisory Board. He is a former director of MFS
Technology, WBL Corporation and UOB Singapore and its
subsidiary, Far Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education scene,
Prof Cham is the former Chancellor of SIM University and
Chairman of its Board of Trustees, and was the founding
President of Nanyang Technological University. For his
outstanding contributions to education, he was conferred
the Distinguished Service Order, Singapore’s highest National
Day Award, in 2003.

Pl mades S AR ITIAR W = R R -

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | 15

T ) = 2 ETE




EA—ZLBFEMNTUIEMN, EZEAFTIRATXRFELART
BEFIREZFM. CHAXFHFEFFIREZMAMKESHX
ERENFETEM, MEEHMETRBIS. FmETRERR,
KEERIER. XEVMIBFZFSHRRSRE, URKAER
TRMFRMER L,

Pl el ST AR TR TR < s AL - s

16 | X%EM|T (PE) ARAF 207 FERE

An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a Bachelor of
Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the University of Malaya,
a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics (Hons) from the
University of London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid
Mechanics from the University of Cambridge, UK. He is also
a Fellow of the Institution of Engineers, Singapore, Academy
of Engineering, Singapore, Royal Academy of Engineering, UK
and Institution of Mechanical Engineers, UK and a foreign
member of Royal Swedish Academy of Engineering Sciences.
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Board of Directors

Wee Ee Cheong

Chairman

Mr Wee, 65, was appointed as Director and Chairman
of the Bank on 5 December 2007. A non-executive and
non-independent director, he is the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and a member of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee.

A career banker with more than 35 years of banking
experience in the UOB Group, Mr Wee joined United
Overseas Bank, Singapore (UOB Singapore) in 1979 and has
been a director of UOB Singapore since 1990. He is currently
the Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of UOB
Singapore.

He also holds directorships in United Overseas Insurance,
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) and United Overseas
Bank (Thai) Public Company. He is the Deputy President
Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

Active in industry development, Mr Wee is a council member
of The Association of Banks in Singapore, The Institute of
Banking & Finance and the Indonesia-Singapore Business
Council. He is a member of the Board of Governors of the
Singapore-China Foundation, Visa APCEMEA Senior Client
Council and an honorary council member of the Singapore
Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry. He was previously
deputy chairman of the Housing & Development Board and a
director of the Port of Singapore Authority, UOL Group, Pan
Pacific Hotels Group and United International Securities.
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In 2013, he was awarded the Singapore Public Service Star
by the Singapore Government for his contributions to the
financial industry.

A keen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of the Nanyang
Academy of Fine Arts. He is also a director of the Wee
Foundation.

Mr Wee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business Administration)
and a Master of Arts (Applied Economics) from American
University, Washington, DC.
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Peter FOO Moo Tan
President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Mr Foo Moo Tan, 55, was appointed President and CEO on
19 December 2016 and a director of the Board on 18 January
2017. An executive and non-independent director, he is a
member of UOB (China)’s Executive Committee. Mr Foo is
also a member of UOB Group Management committee.

Mr Foo joined UOB in 2011 as the Head of the Group’s
Treasury and Global Markets business for its overseas
subsidiaries and branches. He also served as President and
CEO of UOB (Thai) from 2012.

Mr Foo has more than 30 years of experience in banking
and financial markets. Prior to joining UOB, he served for 1
years at Fortis Bank, S.A./N.V. Singapore, where he assumed
many management roles including the CEO, Asia Pacific
Management Board member, Managing Director of Private
Banking and Head of Global Markets.

Mr Foo's previous professional experience also includes
holding various executive positions at Bank Austria
Creditanstalt, Bank of America, and Chemical Bank
between 1988 and 2000. Mr Foo embarked on the career as
management associate with Shell Singapore in 1987.

Mr Foo is a Council Member of Capital Markets Policy
Council (CMPC) of CFA Institute. He also served as the
Executive Committee Member and Regional Representative
of South East Asia of ACI-The Financial Markets Association,
Board Member of CFA Singapore and Council Member of the
Association of Banks in Singapore.

Mr Foo holds a Bachelor of Estate Management (Hons) from
the National University of Singapore and is a Chartered
Financial Analyst (CFA).
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Francis Lee Chin Yong

Mr Lee, 64, was appointed to the Board on 25 January 2008.
A non-executive and non-independent director, he is the
Chairman of Bank’s Board Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Bank’s Executive, Nominating and
Remuneration, Audit, Connected Transactions Control
Committees.

He joined United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) in 1980 and last
served as CEO prior to his appointment to United Overseas
Bank Singapore (“UOB Singapore”) in 2003. Between 2003
and 2008, Mr Lee was the Head of International and
spearheaded the UOB Group’s expansion in the region. He
was also responsible for UOB Singapore’s consumer banking
business in Singapore and the region. In his current portfolio
as Managing Director and Head of Group Retail at UOB
Singapore, he leads the UOB Group’s retail businesses for
consumers and small business customers.

Mr Lee is a director of several UOB Singapore subsidiaries,
including United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company, UOB
Property Investments and Junipa, and is a member of the
Board of Commissioners of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

He has more than 38 years’ of banking experience.



17 AR

54 %, 201 £ 8 A 22 BEEMEMANEES, ERIEHUTIERIES,
WERREERTHITERS, FHERSNERTSNEEEERS

BB,

% tF 201 EMANKERIT, FHF 2011 F 12 BEBEAKRERIT
EBMMTEHEHITE, A8 30 SEMNN ABRITRAUBITILLEZL,
M&tBH 2065781 BREEAELRITADEBREERITE,
KPS ERERE,

TEMAKERITZ A, HETBETEEE. £E. mEX, K
THEXMSESRETERFR. HEEE, TREEMREEE
E—-RIISREERIRIL,

%+ B 2 5 ik £A0iE B i E F A R A A A EHITESE,
BFHAESMTV RS, H&xtF 2008 EXEFTHEEH
SWHER “SHRBERITRISR” , FHPERSH LI REE
SEAR 202 FHREREARH LAWK

HZtHAEEBEXFELFZF L MUREENRARZIHEETLF

fiLo

Christine Ip

Mrs Ip, 54, was appointed to the Board on 22 August 2011.
A non-executive and non-independent director, she is
a member of the Bank’s Executive, Audit and Board Risk
Management Committees.

A veteran banker with more than 30 years’ experience in
both consumer and corporate banking, Mrs Ip joined UOB in
201 and was appointed as CEO of UOB Hong Kong Branch
in December 2011. Mrs Ip was appointed as CEO for UOB
Greater China with effect from 1 July 2016, and is responsible
for developing UOB's business in Greater China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior management
positions in product and sales management, customer
segment management and risk management in Hong Kong,
the United States, Canada, Singapore and mainland China.

She is also an independent non-executive director of
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited.

In recognition of her achievements, Mrs Ip received the
Asia Retail Congress Best International Retail Banker award
in 2008 and was named as one of the top 100 outstanding
Chinese businesswomen in the Greater China region in 2012
by the China Outstanding Female Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Hong
Kong and a Master of Business Administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Liu Erh Fei

Mr Liu, 59, was appointed to the Board on 20 January
2017. A non-executive and independent director, he is
the Chairman of the Audit and Connected Transactions
Control Committees, and a member of the Nominating and
Remuneration and Board Risk Management Committees.

Mr Liu is currently the founding partner and CEO of Asia
Investment Fund. He also serves as a director of Cindat
Capital Management Limited, as well as an independent
director for Wing Lung Bank Limited.

Mr Liu was formerly the Chairman of Merrill Lynch China
and Country Executive of Bank of America Merrill Lynch. He
had previously worked as head of Asia or China for Goldman
Sachs, Morgan Stanley, Smith Barney and Indosuez.

He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics and International
Relations from Brandeis University, and a Master of Business
Administration from Harvard Business School.
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Zeng Zhi Jie

Mr Zeng, 49, was appointed to the Board on 18 November
2010. A non-executive and independent director, he is the
Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee,
and a member of the Audit, Connected Transactions Control
and Board Risk Management Committees.

Mr Zeng is currently the Managing Partner and Chairman of
Shenzhen Hongtai Fund Investment Management Co., Ltd.

He serves as an independent director for three listed
companies, namely, Chinasoft International, SMIT Holdings
Limited and CTS International Logistics Corporation Limited.
He is co-chairman of the China Venture Capital Association
of Investment Association of China and the Executive
Director of Asia America Multi-Technology Association China
Branch. He also serves on the Western Returned Scholars
Association Chamber of Commerce 2005 Committee.

Mr Zeng was formerly a Managing Director at Walden
International, where he was mainly responsible for venture
investments in China and Asia Pacific. Mr Zeng was also the
former Senior Managing Director of CITIC Capital Holdings
and the General Manager of Kaixin Investment. He had
previously worked for CITIC Pacific Limited in Hong Kong and
Mitsubishi Corporation in Japan.

He holds a Bachelor of Science in Economics from the
University of Nagasaki, Japan, and a Master of Science in
Management from Stanford University.
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From left to right: Mr Rodney Lo, Head of Channels and Digitalisation of UOB
(China), Mr Peter Foo, President and CEO of UOB (China), Mr Winston Lim, Head
of Personal Financial Services of UOB (China), Steven Tan, CIO of UOB (China)
launching the UOB (China) Direct Banking app

Retail Banking

Providing Digital Solutions to Customers

China is at the forefront of moving to a cashless society. In
line with this move, UOB harnesses digital technology to
provide convenient payment options and digital financial
solutions to match our customers’ life stages and lifestyle
needs.

As part of our digitalisation strategy, in January 2017, we were
one of the first foreign banks to offer WeChat payment and
remittance services to customers. By linking their UOB (China)
debit card to their WeChat account, our customers can enjoy
the convenience of digital payments and money transfers.

In August 2017, we then launched our Direct Banking app —
the first direct banking mobile app offered by a foreign bank
in China. The app integrates wealth management solutions
and lifestyle offerings for emerging affluent customers who
are digitally-savvy, discerning and desire quality information
and solutions to meet their financial and lifestyle needs.

With the UOB (China) Direct Banking mobile app, consumers
can open a type-Il bank account and manage their finances
and investments on the go, without needing to visit a branch.
They can also receive professional advice and have access to
a wide range of wealth management solutions based on their
risk profile and appetite. Through the app, customers also
receive information and recommendations on overseas travel,
entertainment and leisure options, as well as parenting and
education tips. They also enjoy exclusive lifestyle benefits
and privileges offered by our merchant partners.

The Direct Banking app won the Direct Banking Innovation
Award by Hexun, the leading finance portal in China, in 2017.
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Helping Retail Investors Manage Their Investment portfolio
To help our customers diversify their overseas investment
portfolio, in 2017 we launched a new Qualified Domestic
Institutional Investor-Structured Notes (QDSN) product line.
The QDSN offers customers the flexibility to choose from
different underlying assets, foreign currencies and investment
strategies when building their portfolio.

Following the launch of the Participation Call Structured
Notes in August, we launched Auto-call Structure Notes in
November 2017 to enrich our product offerings.

Helping Customers Plan for Their Children’s Education
According to the 2016 UOB Emerging Affluent Consumer Survey
(China), emerging affluent Chinese place great emphasis on
a well-rounded education for their children. We understand
that our customers not only plan their finances well in
advance of their children’s tertiary education, they also look
at various means to help their children develop holistically
beyond academic skills.

Recognising this need, we continued to offer a series of
children and youth development programmes including Art
Camp Programme, Future Leader Programme and Youth's Elite
Programme.

Through these programmes, we provided the avenue for
our customers’ children to strengthen their creative and
critical thinking, to develop problem-solving skills and to
foster the spirit of teamwork, entrepreneurship and social
responsibility.

B it KIERIT 2017 BFWZZ RSUHMEEREARE, ELZUER
ZITHET THFEERINEE,

Our customers’ children learning from a professional art teacher at the National
Gallery Singapore the winter Art Camp in 2017.
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At the opening ceremony of our Kunming branch in Yunnan, China

Wholesale Banking

We continued to capitalise on the strengths of UOB Group’s
integrated regional network and expanded our presence to
connect our clients to opportunities across Asia.

Providing Specialised Sector Expertise to Our Clients

In 2017, we deepened our sector expertise and conducted
intensive research on various industry value chains to
understand our clients’ needs and to help them succeed in
their business plans.

Our improved capabilities helped us to increase our client
base across different sectors.

Deepening Our Support of Chinese Companies’ Expanding
Through the Belt and Road Initiative (BRI)

We opened our Kunming Branch in November 2017 to
support businesses in Southwest China in their cross-
border expansion plans. Through the new branch we provide
onshore and offshore solutions in areas such as cash
management, foreign exchange hedging, term loans, and
project and supply chain financing. The Kunming branch also
complements our operations in West China’s Chengdu and
Chongging.

During the year, UOB also signed a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) with the China Chamber of International Commerce
(CCOIC), China’s national business association, to deepen
our support of Chinese companies expanding through
the BRI into the region. The agreement with CCOIC is an
extension of UOB's long-standing partnership with the China
Council for the Promotion of International Trade (CCPIT). In
addition, we signed two MOUs with the Yunnan Chamber
of International Commerce and CCPIT’s Jiangsu Sub-Council
respectively. UOB was the first and only bank in ASEAN to
enter into MOUs with both CCPIT and CCOIC.
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UOB signed a MOU with CCOIC in June 2017 to facilitate the overseas expansion
plans of more Chinese companies.

Through the collaboration between UOB and the two
organisations, Chinese companies represented by either
organisation can access UOB’s comprehensive suite of
local and cross-border solutions, as well as the ecosystem
of strategic partners across the Group’s Southeast Asian
network. Both parties will also facilitate UOB's regional
clients’ projects and businesses in China.

To help more Chinese companies explore and seize
opportunities in ASEAN, we hosted several investment
seminars across different cities to share with our clients our
insights on the business opportunities and challenges. These
events were well received by participants from sectors such
as energy, infrastructure, consumer goods and manufacturing.

Corporate Banking

In 2017, we capitalised on the strengthened government-
to-government (G2G) partnerships between China and
Singapore, as well as the geographical advantages of China’s
Free Trade Zones (FTZs) and the favourable regulatory
policies arising from their continued development to provide
our clients with seamless cross-border financial solutions.
As a result, Corporate Banking’s average total assets doubled
at the Shanghai FTZ Sub-branch and grew 33 per cent at
Chongging Branch. Our revenue and average total assets also
grew four times from the year before at Suzhou Branch.

We also continued to support our clients’ financial needs as
they tapped the BRI to grow their business. For example, we
led the offshore syndicated financing for a large-sized dairy
company’s acquisition within the industry. We also provided
cross-border trade financing to a leading textile company to
support its business expansion in Vietnam. In 2017, we helped
148 clients to expand across the region, which contributed to
an 11.2 per cent year-on-year growth in gross loans.
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We hosted two BRI seminars this year to share our insights on ASEAN’s
investment opportunities for Chinese companies.

EHRESV S ERE

Commercial Banking

Tapping on the Group’s extensive network, expertise and
resources, we continue to support our clients in their
regional expansion to seize opportunities arising from the
BRI in 2017.

One way in which we support our clients’ cross-border
expansion is through our Foreign Direct Investment (FDI)
Advisory Unit, which actively promotes regional connectivity
in the areas of trade, finance and logistics by working closely
with government agencies, trade and industry associations
and professional service providers. Since it was established
in 2011, the team has facilitated business flows of more than
RMB200 billion from Chinese companies expanding into
ASEAN, some of which we signed MOUs with to support
their overseas business expansion.

We continued to collaborate closely with our colleagues
in Hong Kong and Taiwan to offer financial solutions that
enable our clients to capture the immense opportunities
arising from the development of the Greater Bay Area (GBA).
The GBA aims to promote economic integration among
Guangdong, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan, which will create
business opportunities in sectors such as manufacturing,
finance and shipping. The GBA is expected to become the
world's largest bay area in terms of gross domestic product
by 2030.

We worked closely with the Corporate Banking and
Multinational Corporate teams to offer supply chain
financing solutions to our clients and their suppliers and
distributors, which helped improve cash flow management
for all the companies across the value chain. We also
explored the financing solutions to innovative enterprises
and startups in China with strong support from the Group.

In 2017, our total income, total loan and deposits all grew
steadily recording 14 per cent, 20 percent and 11 per cent
growth year-on-year respectively.
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Structured Trade and Commodity Finance

In 2017, we launched a new structured trade facility that
helps our clients enhance their cash efficiency for the cross-
border procurement of commodities. Our widened offering
enabled us to increase our client base during the year.

We also completed our first financing deal based on the
Free Trade Accounting Unit system. This accounting system
was approved by the People’s Bank of China to enable
financial institutions to set up split accounting units and to
offer companies operating in FTZs innovative financing and
investment solutions. The successful deal is a testament of
our commitment to providing more convenient and flexible
financing options for our clients.

During the year, we remained focused on providing effective
products and services and on improving our efficiency in
service of our clients. This enabled us to grow our revenue
by more than 50 per cent year on year.

Transaction Banking

In 2017, we continued to invest in our product capabilities in
the areas of cash management, trade finance and financial
supply chain management to provide our clients with end-
to-end solutions that meet their changing business needs
and to help grow their businesses.

We also enhanced UOB Business Internet Banking Plus and
launched the UOB Virtual Account solution. In addition, we
expanded our suite of financial supply chain management
solutions to assist our clients and their strategic suppliers
and distributors in improving their liquidity management. For
our Financial Institutions (Fl) clients, we launched forfaiting
solutions to support their trade financing business.

In 2017, we achieved revenue growth of 15 per cent over
the previous year, attributed to the significant 49 per cent
increase in our total trade income, including Fl trade. We
also recorded a 31 per cent increase in our current account
deposit balance.

Our strong commitment to providing clients with effective
transaction banking solutions for their businesses is reflected
in the industry accolades we receive. These included the
Highly Commended - Best SWIFT Solution award at the Adam
Smith Awards Asia by Treasury Today received in recognition
of the global cash management solution we provided to
Samsung High-Tech Electro-Mechanics (Tianjin) Co Ltd.
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Global Markets

In 2017, we continued to work closely with our Wholesale
Banking colleagues to help our corporate clients manage
market risks with solutions in foreign exchange, interest rates
and commodities.

We enhanced our product capabilities and offered
customised financial solutions, such as an interest rate swap
and foreign exchange forward, to help clients’ control their
financing costs and to meet their hedging needs.

During the year, we also focused on providing customised
commodity derivatives to help our clients manage spot risks.
This helped to contribute to a 19 per cent increase year on
year in total commodity trade volume in 2017 to USS$2.7
billion.

In 2017, we were an active participant in the trading of
precious metals on the Shanghai Gold Exchange, posting a
120 per cent increase in trade volume in the price inquiry
market, while our trade volume in the silver market reached
174 metric tonnes. Our Shanghai FTZ Sub-branch became a
member of Shanghai Gold Exchange’s International Board,
which enabled us to expand our channels for the import of
physical gold and in turn, to assist in increasing the liquidity
in the domestic gold market.

We received four awards from China Foreign Exchange Trade
System (CFETS) in recognition of our trading services and
excellence. We were the only bank named the Best SGD/
CNY Direct Market Maker for the fourth consecutive year
and the Best Member for the second year. We also won
the Best Standardised FX Product Member award and Best
Forward/Swap Member award. As we enhance our trading
capabilities to meet our clients’ financing needs, we also
contribute towards the liquidity of the on-shore FX market.
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Colleagues

With people critical to the success of our long-term business
strategy, in 2017 we launched UOB+you, an integrated
approach to attracting, to engaging and to retaining the
best talent. Our distinctive employee value proposition is
built upon our values of being Honourable, Enterprising,
United and Committed. UOB+you captures the essence of
UOB’s employment experience and is supported by a wide
range of programmes that cover flexible work arrangements,
health and wellness, employee welfare benefits, training and
development courses and recognition programmes.

Caring for Our Colleagues

In caring for the well-being of our colleagues, we offer a
range of benefits to encourage eligible permanent employees
to achieve better work-life harmony.These benefits include
staggered work hours, Flexi 2 — an initiative that enables
our colleagues to end work two hours earlier once a month
to attend to important personal matters, work from home
options and family care leave.

Empowering the Personal and Professional Development
of Our People

To nurture the growth of more talents, we expanded our
existing training curricula and introduced new learning
programmes.

One such programme is the Greater China Leadership
Academy (GCLA), an incubator launched in 2017 to develop
outstanding performers from our offices in mainland China,
Hong Kong and Taiwan. The GCLA provides our high-
performing colleagues with various learning opportunities
such as training courses at top business schools, mentorship
and peer learning, debate competitions and experience
sharing sessions to deepen their leadership skills. We also
launched the Greater China Talent Rotation Programme
which offers opportunities for our colleagues to gain
valuable exposure and experience across UOB Greater China
offices. In 2017, 54 employees completed their training at the
GCLA and eight employees participated in the job rotation
programme.
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Mrs Christine Ip, UOB Greater China CEO and Mr Peter Foo, UOB (China) President
and CEO, presented the awards at UOB Greater China Honours Awards ceremony.

During the year, we also launched the Growth Club to foster
a learning culture and to encourage our colleagues to share
ideas and experiences with one another during monthly club
activities at each function or branch.

To enable our colleagues to take ownership of their
professional and personal growth, in the fourth quarter of
2017, we launched We-Course, which is a suite of WeChat-
based courses conducted in short videos on topics such
as computer skills, working habits and business etiquette.
Our colleagues can access our enterprise WeChat account
anytime, anywhere to participate in the courses in which
they are interested.

Encouraging Our People to Make a Positive Difference
Stepping up our efforts to nurture and to maintain an
organisational culture based on our values, we launched the
UOB Honours programme in 2017 to recognise outstanding
individuals and teams who developed innovative solutions,
increased productivity or demonstrated long-term
commitment to the Bank.

Fourteen teams from Greater China received the UOB
Honours Country Awards at the inaugural awards ceremony.
In addition, 21 long-serving colleagues, who have been with
the Bank for more than 10 years received a Dedication Award.
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Ms Amy Hong, Head of Human Resources for UOB Greater China at the China’s
Best Employer Awards ceremony

An Employer of Choice

UOB (China) was listed among the top 100 China’s Best
Employers and Employers of Excellence in 2017. This was the
second consecutive year that UOB (China) has won these
awards and the Bank was the only foreign bank in China to
receive these two top human resources (HR) awards.

The China’s Best Employer Award recognises companies
that serve as role models in driving best HR practices in
the country. It was launched by Zhaopin in collaboration
with Peking University's Social Survey Research Centre. The
Employer Excellence of China Award was launched by 5ljob
in 2008. Over the past decade, this award has become one of
the most prestigious HR awards.

In addition, UOB (China) received the Best Employer in
Corporate Social Responsibility award from Zhaopin for our
ongoing commitment to giving back to the community and
the Excellence in HR Management Strategy Award from 5ljob
for our outstanding people-focused strategy.
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Technology and Operations

In 2017, we continued to harness technology to improve
our branch and digital banking services and operations, to
enhance the customer experience and to play our part in
ensuring the safety and security of the financial system.

As part of our continuous improvement programme, we
worked with Personal Financial Services to enhance the
online account application process within our Direct Banking
mobile application. As a result, we improved the workflow
process to make it faster for customers to open type-ll
accounts through their mobile phone.

We also updated several reporting systems, ensuring
compliance with new regulatory requirements. For example,
we upgraded our Telecommunications Anti- Fraud system
(TAS) to comply with the China Banking Regulatory
Commission’s (CBRC) requirement for TAS connection to the
High Courts and CBRC. We also launched a Card Overseas
Transaction Reporting system to comply with the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange’s requirement for daily
reporting on bank card overseas transactions.
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Keeping the good going across China at our 2017 UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk
Community

Connecting Communities through Art, Children and
Education

Giving back to the community in which we operate
is fundamental to us. We focus our corporate social
responsibility (CSR) efforts on three areas which we believe
are essential for the quality and progress of society: art,
children and education.

The UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk is UOB Group’s annual flagship
event to raise funds for a good cause. In China, 2017 was the
sixth consecutive year we have held the event. About 1,600
of our colleagues and their family members came together
to support children from less privileged backgrounds through
sports, donations and charity sales. In 2017, we raised more
than RMB380,000, 78 per cent more than a year ago.

The funds raised were donated to our long-time partner
YesKids, a Nanjing-based organisation that aims to create
equal opportunities for children from rural communities. The
money we raised was used to sponsor new school uniforms
and to improve the school facilities for less privileged
children in remote villages in China. Part of the funds raised
was also used to sponsor the UOB (China) Art Scholarship
which enables students to deepen their appreciation of
traditional art and craft skills. In 2017, 1,680 students in
Sichuan and Yunnan provinces benefitted from different
programmes supported by the funds raised by our UOB
Heartbeat Run/Walk.
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UOB (China) worked hand in hand with Yicai Foundation to launch the UOB
Brings The World To Me programme for children in remote areas of Yunnan.

In May 2017, we collaborated with Yicai Foundation to launch
the UOB Brings The World To Me programme, which aims to
provide children in the remote mountainous areas of Yunnan
province with access to online courses on a range of subjects
such as science, culture and basic financial knowledge.

Under the joint programme, the children are able to learn
more about the world beyond their local community. To
overcome geographic barriers, children study through live
and pre-recorded sessions conducted by volunteer teachers.
These sessions are projected onto television screens donated
to their schools through the Yicai Foundation. In 2017, many
of our colleagues, signed up as volunteer teachers for this
programme. About 500 children at Ping’An Village Primary
School and Jiunai Mountain Primary School completed 24
online courses.

Every year, our colleagues participate actively in the Bank’s
CSR initiatives. In 2017, our colleagues volunteered about
3,300 hours of their time.

Since the inauguration of UOB (China) in 2008, we have
helped more than 5,000 children and raised more than
RMB 1.2 million in support of community and post-disaster
construction initiatives in China.

In recognition of our commitment to the community, we
received a CSR award at the Philanthropy Innovation Summit
2017.
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The children at Central Primary School in Pian Ma Yi Minority Village are spurred
to put their best foot forward in the new academic year upon receiving gifts of
new shoes from the UOB (China) volunteers.

Enhancing Consumer Awareness Through Financial
Education

Treating our customers fairly and providing them with
appropriate solutions are key to UOB (China)’s commitment
to do what is right for them. We also place great emphasis
on consumer education and protection.

In 2017, we continued to build on our customer-centric
approach, whose foundation is based upon our values of
being Honourable, Enterprising, United and Committed.
We hosted close to 120 educational events across 11 cities,
sharing tips with consumers on how to recognise illegal fund
raising, prevent financial scams and protect personal data.
We also organised sessions for students from five universities
to help them to identify and to protect themselves from
telecommunications scams and illegal campus loans.

We also launched a monthly Service Theme programme
for our employees to equip them with knowledge and
skills to be able to advise our customers on fair dealing,
protecting customer data and privacy and preventing
telecommunication and internet scams.

Another key service enhancement programme launched
in 2017 was our More and More workshop. We organised
12 workshops at our branches across the country for our
colleagues to share their experiences and best practices on
consumer protection and service excellence. We also trained
our colleagues in attending to customer complaints and
emergencies through simulations at the workshops.
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UOB (China) is committed to upholding good corporate

governance and is guided by the following in this regard:

a) the People’s Republic of China (PRC) Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded
Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations
on Administration of Foreign-funded Banks; and

d) other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors (Board), Board Committees,
the Supervisors and Senior Management perform their
respective duties according to the laws and regulations
of the country and the provisions in the Bank’s Articles of
Association.

Board of Directors

The current Board comprises six members, two of whom
are independent directors. The size and composition of
the Board comply with regulatory requirements and the
provisions in the Bank’s Articles of Association. The six
Board members are:

24 %5 F# BRE KIEEH
Name Gender Age Position Current Term of Office
BN 5 6 ERK/ARPUTIENES 201659 A17H E20194E9H16H
Wee Ee Cheong Male Chairman/Non-executive and non-independent director From 17 September 2016 to 16 September 2019
rEiEEE 5 55 HUTIERIEZ(TRKRERFHITE) 20174118 H £20194E10 A27H
Peter Foo Moo Tan Male Executive (President and CEO) and non-independent director ~ From 18 January 2017 to 27 October 2019
B3 ES 5 64 FEPUTIEMIES 2016512 A27H 22019412 A26H
Francis Lee Chin Yong Male Non-executive and non-independent director From 27 December 2016 to 26 December 2019
4515 AR E:3 5 EHUTIEMIES 20174 7A12HE202067ANH
Christine Ip Female Non-executive and non-independent director From 12 July 2017 to 11 july 2020
X =% 5 58 MW AEHITES 201748 1A20H Z2019411A15H
Liu Erh Fei Male Non-executive and independent director From 20 January 2017 to 15 November 2019
BZAEEH20165F10A26HEEEEE, B
BZA B 49 M ERITES ERFFENREE
Zeng Zhi Jie Male Non-executive and independent director From 26 October 2016, until a new independent
director is appointed to the Board
Pl el ST AR TR TR e = AL - s
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The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

» provide strategic directions, approve strategic business initiatives,
and approve the business plans and annual budget;

« review and monitor the financial performance of the Bank, and
approve true and fair financial statements;

» determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

» setdividend policy and declare dividends;

e perform succession planning for the Board and Senior
Management and formulate the remuneration policy;

» putin place an effective management team;

e approve the organisational structure;

» oversee the establishment of comprehensive risk management
policies, processes and infrastructure to manage various types
of risk (including outsourcing risk);

» determine the risk profile of the Bank and approve credit
discretionary limits and investment limits;

» review and monitor the risk management, internal audit and
compliance functions and ensure that these functions are
adequately resourced;

o evaluate the performance of the President and CEO and Senior
Management;

e establish appropriate procedures and processes to avoid
situations that may give rise to improper personal gains or
conflicts of interest;

» review and approve the Bank’s system of controls relating to
connected transactions;

e set corporate culture, values and ethical standards;

» review the Bank’s information disclosure policy and be
responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of the
information disclosed;

» report to the shareholder; and

» exercise such other power as authorised by the shareholder
and perform such other functions as required by the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association.

The Board holds four scheduled meetings in a year. Additional
meetings may be held whenever required.

The Bank’s Articles of Association also provide for the Board
to make decisions by way of circular resolutions.

In 2017, the Board held four meetings. The quorum for each
meeting was met.

The Board passed eight resolutions by way of circulation in
2017.

The procedures for convening a Board meeting, the quorum
required for constituting the meeting, the proceedings at
the meeting, and the procedures for voting and passing of
resolutions complied with the requirements of applicable PRC
laws and regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association.
The minutes of all Board meetings and the circular resolutions
are maintained properly by the Company Secretary.
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five Board
Committees, namely the Executive Committee (EXCO),
Connected Transactions Control Committee (CTCC),
Audit Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) and Board Risk Management Committee
(BRMC) (the RMC renamed as Board Risk Management
Committee with effect from 1 January 2018).

(1) Executive Committee

a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman), Mr Peter
Foo Moo Tan, Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mrs Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

» the Bank’s business operations, including formulating internal
policies and business strategies, monitoring the execution of
business plans and approving relevant credit limits; and

« all human resource matters, except for those pertaining to the
President and CEO and Deputy President.

c. The EXCO meets at least once a month and whenever required
in the discharge of its functions.

The EXCO held 12 meetings in 2017.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee

a. The CTCC members are Mr Liu Erh Fei (Chairman with effect
from 1 January 2018), Mr Zeng Zhi Jie and Mr Francis Lee Chin
Yong. As part of the succession planning, on 1 January 2018, Mr
Liu Erh Fei took over the CTCC Chairman in place of Mr Zeng Zhi
Jie, who continues to serve as a member of the CTCC.

b. The CTCC's main responsibilities are to:

e establish and administer the system for managing connected
transactions;

* manage connected transactions and control the risks from such
transactions;

» examine non-material connected transactions; and

e review and submit material connected transactions to the Board
for approval.

c. The CTCC met once in 2017.
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(3) Audit Committee

a.

C.

The AC members are Mr Liu Erh Fei (Chairman with effect from
1 January 2018), Mr Zeng Zhi Jie, Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and
Mrs Christine Ip. As part of the succession planning, Mr Zeng
Zhi Jie stepped down as the AC Chairman on 1 January 2018 but
continues to serve as a member of the AC.

The AC’s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all matters
relating to:

financial statements, and internal and external audit plans and
reports;

the adequacy of internal accounting controls and material
internal controls;

the scope and results of internal and external audits;

the quality of, and any significant change in, accounting policies
or practices;

the adequacy of internal audit resources;

significant findings from internal audit investigations;

the approval of external auditor’s fees; and

the nomination of the external auditor and the head of the
internal audit function.

The AC held four meetings in 2017.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee

a.
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The NRC members are Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman), Mr Wee
Ee Cheong, Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mr Liu Erh Fei.

The NRC’s main responsibilities are to:

recommend nominees for appointment to the Board and Board
Committees;

recommend a framework for the remuneration of directors and
key senior executives (including the President and CEO and
Deputy President) for the Board’s approval; and

put in place a system for assessing the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole, the contribution of each Board Committee
and director, and the performance of the President and CEQ.

The NRC met once in 2017.
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(5) Board Risk Management Committee

a. The BRMC members are Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong (Chairman),
Mr Zeng Zhi Jie, Mrs Christine Ip and Mr Liu Erh Fei.

b. The BRMC's main responsibilities are to:

» review and recommend risk management strategies, policies and
risk tolerance of the Bank for the Board’s approval;

e oversee the establishment and operation of a robust and
independent risk management system that is consistent with
the strategies and policies approved by the Board;

» review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s
risk management framework (including frameworks, policies,
methodologies, human resources, processes, information,
infrastructure and systems) for identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling various types of risks;

» review regular management reports on risk exposures, risk
portfolio composition and the management and monitoring of
such exposures and portfolio composition; and

e report to the Board regularly and highlight any adverse risk
event or trend for the Board’s attention.

c. The BRMC held four meetings in 2017.

Supervisors

The Bank has two Supervisors who were nominated by the
shareholder and appointed in accordance with regulatory
requirements and the Bank’s Articles of Association. They
are Dr Wee Cho Yaw (Supervisor) and Prof Cham Tao Soon
(Deputy Supervisor).

The main responsibilities of the Supervisors include:

» inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the Bank;

e supervising the Board and Senior Management to ensure that
the Bank is run in a prudent manner, and taking corrective
actions where necessary;

» safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank, the
shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the depositors;
and

e exercising such other power and authority pursuant to the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association, and as may be
authorised by the shareholder.

In 2017, the Supervisors duly discharged their responsibility
of supervising the Board and Senior Management strictly
in accordance with relevant requirements, including the
provisions under the PRC Company Law and in the Bank’s
Articles of Association. In discharging their responsibility,
the Supervisors received and reviewed regular reports on
the Bank’s operations and risk management, and conducted
supervision of the operations and financial position of
the Bank and the performance of the Directors and Senior
Management.



5Ei§$E1TH AT

2017 £ &, ﬁ',ﬁlzﬁﬁ%@i%?, SAAX ZCREMEZAREE,
Hi, M- EERMEAEESTENXRLZEHERS, &
HZERESERE, URRERFHERS. EESNKREEZREK

B, BZASERMNBEEESTENRERFHZERSER, U

EXBEZGEHNERS. HHERS  EERAREERRSMR,
WEHR, MAMIEENHBREWBITTEENS, INEHFIY

TERWR, AAMIEFREAEES, EELTREUZERSYIE
FBATHREH ”’“’é‘ﬁ”fﬁ‘ﬁﬂiﬁ?%ﬂ#&fﬁﬁﬁ, BT RITHEEFIF IR
HQ?F\E’JI:I/%*EELO

(1) 207 M ERHFEFTSHER

Performance of Independent Directors

There were two independent directors on the Board in 2017,
namely Mr Liu Erh Fei and Mr Zeng Zhi Jie. Currently, Mr Liu
Erh Fei is the Chairman of the CTCC and AC, as well as a
member of the NRC and BRMC. Mr Zeng Zhi Jie is currently
the Chairman of the NRC, as well as a member of the CTCC,
AC and BRMC.

For the year under review, both independent directors
discharged their duties diligently and responsibly. They
contributed to the decision-making and oversight by the
Board and Board Committees and safeguarded the lawful
rights and overall interests of the Bank and the shareholder.

(1) Independent Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings in 2017

JE il HE B
MITEEHZ (&) (&) (%) #iE
Name of Independent Director No. of Board Meetings No. of Board Meetings Absent with Remarks

Held Attended Apologies
M=% 4 4 0 ,
Liu Erh Fei

BEAEREeEHFE20174E11822H
AR HEZESSW
o 4 3 1 Excused at Board meeting on 22

Zeng Zhi Jie

November 2017 for other business
matters

(2) M EFEMRITEXRZIUEH FIUAER
2017 £, M BEEMARMNRITAEEMNUEETRHE I,

B $&%$%D'I*1&

THEERESHERSEERTAEFRIRITER. RITH
M%hmsﬂ%”ﬂsiﬁﬁﬂ%$ﬁh%$&§$hﬁéﬁﬁﬁ
RIS UEEMEE—SHSBOTE, RITEFEREFANSAH
MR HTIOR, AWM THRERNZENETURAREESTENSEER
Do BERERERTERENTMUREFTERIIKRELER,
I ER A, HHRRTRE,

(2) Dissent of Independent Directors

In 2017, Management did not give cause for the independent
directors to record their dissent on any matter.

Supervisors’ and Directors’ Access to Information

The Supervisors and directors have unfettered access to
information and Management, and receive timely and
comprehensive financial, risk management and operational
reports to facilitate informed discussions during meetings.
They also have access to the Company Secretary whose
responsibilities include advising the Supervisors and directors
on regulatory changes and best practices in corporate
governance. The Supervisors and directors may seek
independent professional advice in the course of discharging
their duties at the Bank’s expense.
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Corporate Governance

BREE R R / Senior Management Structure

% M2 gy HESRG MO BEEE HXERER
. Year of Assignment ) . Relevant Years
Name Position Sex ) Highest Academic Degree )
Birth Commencement of Experience
N E LK e E I P R AL
I . . Bach f Science, E M L H
i FRESERTE = 20165128 ac. elor o ‘SC|er‘1ce stéte anagement, Honours
FOO Moo Tan President and CEO Male 1962 Dec 2016 National University of Singapore 30
Peter T &R HIE
Chartered Financial Analyst
BT 201547H
Alt te Country CEO 12015 . e .
HEH ernate Country - Ju O E kS THEESE+
FIRXFHEE B 201745R . T
YEONG Kok Leng . 1969 Bachelor of Business Administration 24
Vincent North Regional Head Male May 2017 National University of Singapore
' FATATITR 201048 ' ety oTIneap
General Manager of Beijing Branch Aug 2010
XI| 7 . FmEEEE T AT HEIEA
M EERREHE “ 201618 FIMERE IR LK L@ R L
LIU Ke o § 1970 Master of Business Administration 22
Chief Risk Officer Female Jan 2016 : ] X
Jenny Nanyang Technological University
TR BRI A
FRE BN TS = 2014468 DEMS. EERGE; HEHLRENSRERIRE
L iu-H Project L hip, M t icati 24
O Siu-Hong Head, Channels and Digitalisation Male 1967 Jun 2014 rojec éaders ip . anagement and Communications
Rodney Contracting for Project Managers
The George Washington University
HHE SR . FMEEIKRFIREEZIRERA
SR HERARE E 20165 6H i &-."Lk% B ?%is_ﬁ FHL
TAN Kong Weng X X § 1976 Bachelor of Business Administration, Honours 16
Chief Information Officer Male Jun 2016 ) . . .
Steven National University of Singapore
£ — BEPXAFIHEEM L
AW ERITERES 201
WU Peng A RATHER . = 1975 01543 A Master of Business Administration 15
X Head, Corporate Banking Female Mar 2015 . ) .
Tina The Chinese University of Hong Kong
i = MBI KRS R REFEM
A A AS RIS EE 2 2015410 MHRIRESISLRES
LIM Pei Hong ) _ ) 1975 Bachelor of Accountancy, Honours 16
X Head, Personal Financial Services Male Oct 2015 X . ,
Winston Nanyang Technological University
I L s R FR BT
R TR MEEE 8 20164107 BARARFA & L
YANG Rui Qi 1973 Master of Applied Finance 16
Head, Global Markets Male Oct 2016 . i
Mark The University of Melbourne
FEEKSEREL
L WRTEEDEE 2 200829 A MEEXFTE
TEH Wee Jin Head, Corporate Credit Male 1958 Sep 2008 Bachelor of Commerce 36
PP P University of Otago, New Zealand
AR P [E=S KREFESE LT
ey AR S E 2 2014475 FHEGEAERESLS
YEOH Kian Soon . ) 1970 Bachelor of Science 22
) Head, Commercial Credit Male Jul 2014 ) o
Benedict Carnegie Mellon University
FaOB - s HLHREBETRZFERSIEEZL
AAERBEE & 201645128 FRBLRZEIGE AR
WANG Hong Xia ) ) 1971 Bachelor of International Business Management 24
Head, Retail Credit Female Dec 2016 ] . . .
Carol East China University of Science and Technology
HEBE TR s SEXETIHEEML
REBEE
HONG Xiao Yan ANRREBER * 1977 20074128 Master of Business Administration 20
Head, Human Resources Female Dec 2007 . .
Amy Fudan University
K N 20 24 | 3T 71 =T HEIEMH
o P A % 2016517 EEAHMIATHAZ T EERRL
ZHANG Sa ) 1972 Master of Corporate Finance and Accounting 24
Head, Internal Audit Female Jan 2016 ) )
Sarah State University of New York at Buffalo
Fig o 2 > sy i e SEEXEIHEEMLT
b L= Hl 2007412
WANG Yuan R SRHBEE X = 1974 00741273 Master of Business Administration 21
X Head, Legal and Secretariat Female Dec 2007 . .
Eliza Fudan University
Kk e B 07HsA SEATERTRL 5
XIONG Da Yong Head, Compliance Male Aug 2017 o
Fudan University
e T
iR BRI SHES B 0nsA AR LR PR ”
LIM Chor Khiang Head, Transaction Banking Male May 2011

National University of Singapore
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LEMEXF-XEFEIFAFIHEETL

?:IEZ\%NG Yiao BEEARITHES B 1971 201449 H Master of Business Administration 4
i
Andy Head, Multinational Corporate Male Sep 2014 Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and
Webster University
Eui L — IFIE R M L K2 EFFEM L
A 1Tl 201757
DAI Xiao Hong 5 }\%Eﬁ &b . = 1970 %77 Master of Finance 20
. Head, Private Banking Female Jul 2017 ) ) o
Sherrie California State University
RARREEEF . JOR
N A 37 2 T i)y B
PRERIE East Regional Head B 1973 20144£10A ifffﬁjﬁ' iz}c[ijc* e .
LIM Lian Kian FAELIBATITE Male Oct 2014 o
. University of South Alabama
General Manager of Shanghai Branch
BARREEE
HifE South Regional Head - 2017548 CHAFEETREZM
TOK Aik Hong FERNFITITK = 1975 Bachelor of Science, Honours 17
Male Apr 2017 ] ;
Lawrence General Manager of Shenzhen University of London
Branch
HRH IS TITR 2015535 PEXHAFRITESE L
HUANG Kuei Ping  General Manager of Guangzhou 1974 Bachelor of Accounting 17
X Male Mar 2015 ) R . )
Patrick Branch Chinese Culture University, Taiwan
HEMHIAFEFERERET . SMSRITERL
BE EBISTTK x 20114E9H Master of Science in International Economics Bankin
1972 & 2
HUANG Ying General Manager of Xiamen Branch  Female Sep 2011 and Finance
Cardiff University, UK.
O3 PR BHIRSFAZIREEEM L
SR EBRATITE 2 201664 H HIRAA S T R
MA Jian Qiang 1971 Master of Business Administration 22
General Manager of Shenyang Branch Male Apr 2016 o
Gosen University of Ballarat
X AXXFEEE N g e e
L West Reviom Head - 2015425 EEESMEHA SRR THEEML
HU Wei N d PRI i 1978 Master of Business Administration 17
FREMBAHTITE Male Feb 2015 ; > N
Tony Conservatoire National des Arts et Métiers
General Manager of Chengdu Branch
aBFHF R - BAAXRFEREFHRAEFEMLT
i 2014512
SHI Xin Yu FEMTITR L i 1967 01451213 Master of Economics, International Economic Institute 24
Edward General Manager of Tianjin Branch  Male Dec 2014 Nan Kai University
i R 1 BIREIRKE IR%¥t
T N5 77 % 200425 RRRIEAZRT RS
YE Yan 1971 Bachelor of Electrical Engineer 23
K General Manager of Hangzhou Branch Female Feb 2012 X . ) oo
Beicy Harbin Engineering University
s, ==k FMFEEIXFIHEERSE
Rtk f?i:;ﬁ;{t r of Chonggqin, = 1972 2014557 :ﬁﬁh )lir._‘fL:cT] Tidgmi??tti n 20
GOH Tuan Chiok ~ _oreral Manager of =hongqing Male May 2014 achetor of Business Administratio
Branch National University of Singapore
iGN - e ne BhgR RN SR
IR EM AR = 2015428 MEXESRSREEZFEFELIREPRM
CHUA Hock Yew 1972 Bachelor of Commerce, Honours 20
General Manager of Suzhou Branch  Male Feb 2015 ) ]
Alexander University of Toronto, Canada
iz = = IERRZFCFEHEREFEWM L
A TITIK 2017
HUANG Ting BIASTITR . % 1986 01748 Master of Economics, HSBC Business School 8
General Manager of Kunming Branch Female Aug 2017 R . .
Taylor Peking University
= EEARRBMRZITITK - BAFTREMKRZZEFSEMPEL
EER ) > 20154E7R
) Branch Manager of Shanghai 1981 Bachelor of Commerce 12
SUA Tzer Ming ) Male Jul 2015 ) o .
Pilot Free Trade Zone Sub-Branch Curtin University of Technology, Australia
L] EiEBRIITITK % 2016658 LMK EHFRERTHEER LT
DU Yan Branch Manager of Jingan 1975 Master of Business Administration 15
Female May 2016 ) , )
Cherry Sub-Branch United Business Institutes
WA EEFEEZITITR 2012658 BAMITEREERFIHEEW LT
XU Jie Branch Manager of Dongcheng il 1979 Master of Business Administration n
- Male May 2012 o . .
Sting Sub-Branch University of Sunshine Coast, Australia
BRI EIHTR EE Sepis Eamhn
—, ERFSFHOZITITR 201746 8 *.;l*%i%%&{T 'ﬁﬁmﬂ il
) Branch Manager of Lufthansa Centre 1982 Master of Banking and Finance 10
LI Sheng Lian Female Jun 2017

Sub-Branch

Loughborough University
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B FHEIESS
BTG R TEFFHMMEESR, BR—DBENTTR, HORZA
“BEHH o THMKRESMAMR, BEEHMN T TN,

HAhWEHMERFEYFEARKERT (HE ) WEELSEEZ
HREWME, FAMNERRENSLERNESHARMFABITAIRELR
REHRBARER, M TFEREEAR AR XEH EZHM KA
FHRT, EREHMmERRERARXEEERMNIT, UEBE
S EVMET E KA BN R RREMREERE B,

EE, UENSHEIE A G IHE
2017 EERITEES., UEEMNSREEARNG
43977319 TCo

BEAART

UOB (China) Remuneration Policy

Total Compensation Principle

The purpose of UOB (China) remuneration policy develops
a total compensation framework and pay approaches, to
attract, motivate and retain talent, while building up a long-
term effective performance management policy in align
with the Bank’s internal risk control policy to promote the
Rewarding You (pay-for-performance) culture.

Total Compensation Framework
We take a holistic approach to design employee’s compensation,
providing a complete pay package called “total compensation’”
Total compensation is made up of two main components,
namely fixed pay and variable pay.

The variable pay is determined upon the financial performance
of both UOB Group and UOB (China), which take considerations
of various risk & cost factors as well as incentives needed to
drive sustainable growth. For senior executives and material
risk takers, their variable pay shall strictly follow the Group’s
variable pay deferral policy, to meet corporate governance
and risk management requirements set by local government
authorities.

Compensation for Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

For 2017, the allowance for Board Directors and Supervisors,
and compensation for senior executives is RMB43,977,319.

BAREE

Total compensation

[E] 7 r B
Fixed pay

Qa0
Variable pay

EARHHE & E i G

Base salary Fixed allowances

GHRE BEREHB

Performance bonus Executive equity awards
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KERIT (PE ) KIEFENBERERMBEE R LS RERITE
AR EAEIE, BHEL, REEMRITISERINTIEHER,
FHRERL RS RIESEM AT S

BRITEESBIEHEAIURBEXABERSWE, FRETR
BEEMSFRE. 2EBRSMESUTHERREMAIMHE TR
Ho BN, HERWERRTRESTHHEN, EITMRTRIBIESH
T%,

BATHITR M ERIE SIS B E N MR FIIME T H &I 7R IFH 5
Bit, SEEMARE, SFESRTIEERKEIRA., HElFiTE
BN, REKEESEE. TEFERTRSREVHE, BHEET
MENENH, ZAIEE REEB I E SRR EAFRITREFEH
REHUTIRESERIE,

MERE T

BATRAL T MR I BNE— A HEIT R, NEHE TR
RAEFS TRHFITERSMAERITEAFTIHBRE TE; EI1T
HEEL, ABHETSRARITITRFERIITEICRIE,

REREE AR E EERE A RIS R B WA A AR T AR S A0 H A1
BERE, WBHESSMEEEBITHZEMSERNE, BAERHER
TEEENTRNIRHFNESENSEEREE, NEEITEH
RIBERGH. mERIAZELS, ETERITHBMSES, SEME
MIEFNBERE, IR MERITREERE. EH 5B RENERE,
MEBEBEITIRELENMEEBiR.

MEEITEHERPERITUEEEEZERS (X TERMIENEH
TTHEEER) , URERABHEITITHEHN (EWSHES) BT
BB, SEE, NEMETHEMRE “KESE” WEitFEsER T
TR, FREXNEFERARNROEGRE. AEGRIERITAE R
BERERFAHEERTHENRERFUARFEITEE, #itNEER
EETHSINENLESLRIEERRL, URESREEMEN
TR AR IR RIS AR

FrENREITREFEEREFITERS, WX TEXHETRA, W
BHEITBERTEFTERSTFUXE, ANEEEEERHTA
B, SMERER T AR M E NPT IR AR B T B B TR 7 SR AL
HIRLEITR, FXEEMERT IISITM

Internal Control

UOB (China) has a well-established internal control system
that adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and
the Group’s policies and guidelines. This provides a robust
framework that enables the Bank to set strategic and
practical objectives to support its business development.

The Board assesses the Bank’s internal control system
through the review of risk management reports and analysis,
operational and budget reports, internal audit reports tabled
at regular meetings, discussions at various internal committees
and from the exchange of insights with industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system is a result of the continuous improvement on the
internal control environment, including, but not limited to,
strengthening of risk identification/assessment, monitoring
processes and risk mitigation techniques; and constantly
reviewing communication/feedback as well as evaluation
/correction mechanisms. The internal control system is
able to provide a reasonable level of assurance on the
implementation of legal statutes and regulations.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports
functionally to the Audit Committee (AC) and Group Audit,
while administratively reporting to the President and CEO of
UOB (China).

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board
and management to discharge their legal and executive
obligations by providing independent, objective assurance
and value-added services to improve the Bank’s operations.
It helps the Bank to accomplish its objectives by having
a systematic and disciplined approach to provide an
independent assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Bank’s internal financial controls, operational and
compliance controls, and to improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.

It performs its internal audit function according to the
Internal Audit Guidelines for Financial Institutions as
governed by the China Banking Regulatory Commission and
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing
set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Internal Audit adopts
a risk-based prioritisation approach to develop its strategic
audit plan to determine audit frequency. This approach
also adopts a comprehensive assessment of inherent risks,
controls and regulatory hot spots. The audit scope covers
all businesses, operations as well as the infrastructure and
applications of systems across UOB (China)’s headquarters
and branches. The strategic plan is reviewed annually.

All internal audit reports are provided to the AC. Significant
issues are highlighted by Internal Audit, who also monitors
closely the follow-up actions taken by the management
team on the issues raised by Internal Audit, external audit
and regulators.
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Managing risk is an integral part of our business strategy. Our
risk management approach focuses on ensuring continued
financial soundness and safeguarding the interests of our
stakeholders, while remaining nimble to seize value-creating
business opportunities in a fast changing environment. We
are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance, sound risk management principles and business
practices to achieve sustainable long-term growth. We
continuously strive towards best risk management practices
to support our strategic objectives.

Our Approach

UOB (China)’s risk management structure, as shown in the
following diagram, aims to promote a ‘risk aware’ culture
throughout the Bank. This requires the various risk and
control oversight functions to work together with business
units to identify their risks and to facilitate their risk and
control self-assessments.

Risk Management Structure

Our risk management strategy is targeted at ensuring proper
risk governance so as to facilitate ongoing effective risk
discovery and to set aside adequate capital efficiently to
cater for the risks arising from our business activities and
external factors. Risks are managed within levels established
by the senior management committees and approved by the
Board and its committees. We have put in place a framework
of policies, methodologies, tools and processes that will help
us identify, measure, monitor and manage material risks faced
by the Bank. This allows us to concentrate our efforts on the
fundamentals of banking and to create long-term value for
all our stakeholders.

R {REF, BURFIGIEAESR

Risk Appetite, Policies and Governance

BAEHE
Capital Management

Strategic Planning and Budgeting

R RIS ZEE

Performance Management

EhMKES S
Stress Testing and
Scenario Analysis

UG T4,
Risk Culture

BA, R OHR&EMAL
Capital, Risk and Return Optimisation

KU 1R 51
Risk Identification

Rt E

Risk Assessment

IR 4
Risk Monitoring

RUR 4R
Risk Reporting

BRI, . &4
People, Processes, Systems
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The Bank’s risk governance frameworks, policies and appetite
provide the overarching principles and guidance for the
Bank’s risk management activities. They help to shape our
key decisions for capital management, strategic planning and
budgeting, and performance management to ensure that the
risk dimension is appropriately and sufficiently considered.
We also take into consideration the Bank’s risk appetite in
the development of risk-related key performance indicators
(KPIs) for performance measurement. This serves to embed
a risk management mindset and culture throughout the
organisation.

Our risk governance frameworks, policies and appetites are
implemented through identification, assessment, monitoring
and reporting processes. Risk reports are regularly submitted
to management and the Board to keep them apprised of the
Bank’s risk profile.

Risk Governance

UOB (China)’s responsibility for risk management starts at the

top with our Board overseeing a governance structure that is

designed to ensure that the Bank’s business activities are:

» conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with
the highest standards of professionalism;

» consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and
risk appetite; and

» subjected to adequate risk management and internal
controls.

In this regard, the Board is assisted by the Executive
Committee (EXCO) and Board Risk Management Committee
(BRMC). The Board also reviews the overall risk appetite and
level of risk capital to maintain for the Bank.

The CEO has established senior management committees to
assist in making business decisions with due consideration to
risks and returns. The main senior management committees
involved in this are the Management Committee (MC),
Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), In-Country Credit
Committee (ICCC), Operational Risk Management Committee
(ORMC), Consumer Rights Protection Committee (CRPC) and
the Risk and Capital Committee (RCC). These committees
also assist the Board committees in specific risk areas.

Senior management and the senior management committees
are authorised to delegate risk appetite limits by business
lines and/or broad product lines.

Risk management is also the responsibility of every employee
within the Bank. Risk awareness and accountability are
embedded in our culture through an established framework
that ensures appropriate oversight and accountability for the
effective management of risk throughout the Bank and across
risk types. This is executed through an organisation control
structure that provides three “lines-of-defence” as follows:
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Audit Committee

HEB
#if
Internal
Audit

SMER
it
External
Audit

F—iEFFZ First line of defence

£ = jEBH % Third line of defence
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First line of defence - The Risk Owner:

The business and business support functions have primary
responsibility for implementing and executing effective
controls for the management of risks arising from their
business activities. This includes establishing adequate
managerial and supervisory controls to ensure compliance
with approved risk policies, appetite, limits and controls and
to highlight control breakdowns, inadequacy of processes
and unexpected risk events.

Second line of defence - Risk Oversight:

The risk and control oversight functions (such as Risk
Management and Compliance Function), the Chief Risk
Officer (CRO) and the senior management committees
provide the second line of defence.

The risk and control oversight functions support the Bank’s
strategy of balancing growth with stability by establishing risk
policies, frameworks, risk appetite and limits within which
the business functions must operate. The risk and control
oversight functions are also responsible for the independent
review and monitoring of the Bank’s risk profile and highlight
any significant vulnerabilities and risk issues to the respective
management committees.

The independence of risk and control oversight functions
from business functions ensures the necessary checks and
balances.

Third line of defence - Independent Audit:

The Bank’s internal and external auditors conduct risk-based
audits covering all aspects of the first and second lines of
defence to provide independent assurance to the CEO, Audit
Committee and the Board, on the effectiveness of the risk
management and control structure, policies, frameworks,
systems and processes.
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Risk Appetite

UOB (China) has established a risk appetite framework
to define the amount of risk we are able and willing to
take in pursuit of its business objectives. The objective of
establishing a risk appetite framework is not to limit risk-
taking but to ensure that the Bank’s risk profile remains
within well-defined and tolerable boundaries. The framework
was formulated based on the following key criteria:

e Relevance to respective stakeholders, with appropriate
levels of granularity;

e Practical, consistent and easy to understand metrics for
communication and implementation;

»  Alignment to key elements of the Bank’s business strategy;

e Analytically substantiated and measureable metrics.

The risk appetite defines suitable thresholds and limits across
key areas including but not limited to credit risk, country
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and reputation
risk. Our risk-taking approach is focused on businesses
which we understand and are well-equipped to manage the
risk involved. Through this approach, we aim to minimise
earnings volatility and concentration risk and ensure that
our high credit rating, strong capital and funding base remain
intact. This allows us to be a stable partner of our customers
through changing economic conditions and cycles.

UOB (China)’s risk appetite framework is updated and
approved annually by the Board. Management monitors and
reports the risk limits to the Board and BRMC.
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Material Risks

UOB (China)’s business strategies, products, customer profiles
and operating environment expose us to a number of financial
and non-financial risks. Identifying and monitoring key risks
are integral to the Bank’s approach to risk management.
It allows us to make proper assessment and proactively
mitigate these risks across the Bank. The key risks which
could impact the success of achieving the Bank’s strategic
objectives are as follows.

B XUk
Credit Risk

% 5% F XU
& E XU
[EE] 31 XUBE:
Counterparty Risk
Concentration Risk
Country Risk

B
Material Risks

RIEETRTRERE
Anti-money Laundering
and Countering Terrorist
Financing Risk

BERE

Regulatory Risk
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UOB (China) has adopted the Basel Framework and observes
capital management measures on commercial banks by China
Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC). We continue to
adopt a prudent and proactive approach in navigating the
evolving regulatory landscape, with emphasis on sound risk
management principles in delivering sustainable returns.

We have adopted Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) to assess on an ongoing basis the amount of
capital necessary to support our activities. We review the
ICAAP periodically to ensure that the Bank remains well-
capitalised after considering all material risks. Stress testing
is conducted to determine capital adequacy under stressed
conditions.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a
borrower or counterparty to meet its financial obligations
when such obligations are due. Credit risk is the single
largest risk that we face in our core business as a commercial
bank, arising primarily from loans and other lending-related
commitments to retail, corporate and institutional borrowers.
Treasury and capital market operations, and investments also
expose the Bank to counterparty and issuer credit risks.

Integral to the management of credit risk is a framework
that clearly defines policies and processes relating to the
measurement and management of credit risk.

Credit Risk Governance and Organisation

The RCC and ICCC are the key oversight committees for
credit risk and support the CEO and board level committees
in managing the Bank’s overall credit risk exposures. The
committees serve as executive forum for discussions on all
credit-related issues including the credit risk management
framework, policies, processes, infrastructure, methodologies
and systems. Particularly, ICCC holds the responsibility of
approving credit facilities and exposures to borrowers and/or
counterparties of the Bank within the Risk Appetite Limit set
by the Board and the discretionary limits delegated by the
EXCO. RCC discusses and proposes credit risk management
framework for EXCO’s approval, and reviews and assesses the
Bank’s credit portfolios and credit risk profiles.

The Credit Risk Management Division is responsible for the
reporting, analysis and management of all elements of credit
risk. By adopting parent practice while catering for local
regulatory and business need, it develops bank-wide credit
policies and guidelines, and focuses on facilitating business
development within a prudent, consistent and efficient
credit risk management framework.
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Credit Risk Policies and Processes
We have established credit policies and processes to manage
credit risk in the following key areas:

Credit Approval Process

To maintain the independence and integrity of the credit
approval process, our credit origination and approval
functions are clearly segregated. Credit approval authority
is delegated to officers based on their experience, seniority
and track record, and credit approval is based on a risk-
adjusted scale according to a borrower’s credit rating. All
credit approval officers are guided by credit policies and
credit acceptance guidelines that are periodically reviewed
to ensure their continued relevance to the Bank’s business
strategy and the business environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the
assessment of credit risk and the assignment of exposures to
rating grades or pools. Internal ratings are used pervasively
by the Bank in the areas of credit approval, credit review and
monitoring, credit stress testing, limits setting, pricing and
collections. The models are independently validated before
they are implemented to ensure they are fit for purpose.
The robustness of these rating models is monitored on an
ongoing basis, and all models are subject to annual reviews
conducted by model owners to ascertain that the chosen risk
factors and assumptions continue to remain relevant for the
respective portfolios.

Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large
exposure or from multiple exposures that are closely
correlated. This is managed by setting exposure limits
on obligor groups, portfolios, borrowers, industries and
countries, generally expressed as a percentage of the Bank’s
eligible capital base. Regular assessments of emerging
risks and reviews of industry and country outlooks are
also performed to provide a forward-looking view on
developments that could impact the Bank's portfolio.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress-testing is an integral part of the Bank’s credit
portfolio management process. It involves identifying
possible events or future changes in economic conditions
that may have unfavorable effects on the Bank’s credit
exposures, and assessing the Bank’s ability to manage its
financial resources through adverse circumstances. Likewise,
business credit stress test or sensitivity analysis are also
conducted to assess designated loan portfolio’s quality and
capital impact under the stress scenario and test parameters
prescribed by CBRC.
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Credit Risk Mitigation

Our potential credit losses are mitigated through a variety
of instruments such as collateral, derivatives, guarantees and
netting arrangements. As a fundamental credit principle,
the Bank generally does not grant credit facilities solely on
the basis of the collateral provided. All credit facilities are
granted based on the credit standing of the borrower, source
of repayment and debt servicing ability.

Collateral is taken whenever possible to mitigate the credit
risk assumed and the value of the collateral is monitored
periodically. The frequency of valuation depends on the
type, liquidity and volatility of the collateral. The main types
of collateral taken by the Bank include cash, real estate and
bank guarantees. Appropriate haircuts are applied to the
market value of collateral, reflecting the underlying nature of
the collateral, quality, volatility and liquidity.

In extending credit facilities to small- and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs), we also often take personal guarantees as
a form of moral support to ensure moral commitment from
the principal shareholders and directors.

Exposures arising from foreign exchange, derivatives and
securities financing transactions are typically mitigated
through agreements such as the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreements, and
the National Association of Financial Market Institutional
Investors (NAFMII) Agreement. Such agreements help to
minimise credit exposure by allowing us to offset what
we owe to a counterparty against what is due from that
counterparty in the event of a default.

Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management

The Bank regularly monitors credit exposures, portfolio
performance and emerging risks that may impact our credit
risk profile. The Board and senior management are updated
on credit trends through internal risk reports. An early alert
process has also been put in place whereby vulnerable
accounts are escalated by the business units to senior
management for discussion on account strategy and remedial
actions.
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Delinquency Monitoring

We monitor closely the delinquency of borrowing accounts
as it is a key indicator of credit quality. An account is considered
as delinquent when payment is not received on the due
date. Any delinquent account, including a revolving credit
facility (such as an overdraft) with limit excesses, is closely
monitored and managed through a disciplined process by
officers from business units and risk management function.

Loan Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

We classify our credit portfolios according to the borrower’s
ability to repay the credit facility from their normal source
of income. Any account which is delinquent (or in excess
for a revolving credit facility such as an overdraft) for more
than 90 days, will be categorised automatically as ‘Non-
Performing’.

All borrowing accounts are categorised into ‘Pass’, ‘Special
Mention’ or ‘Non-Performing’ categories. Non-Performing
accounts are further categorised as ‘Substandard’, ‘Doubtful’
or ‘Loss’ in accordance with the guidelines of CBRC. The
Bank has an independent credit review process to ensure the
appropriateness of loan grading and classification.

Upgrading and declassification of a Non-Performing account
to ‘Pass’ or ‘Special Mention’ status must be supported by
a credit assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows
and financial position of the borrower. It must also be
satisfied that once the account is declassified, the account is
unlikely to be classified again in the near future.

A restructured account is categorised as ‘Non-Performing’
and placed on the appropriate classified grade based on our
assessment of the financial condition of the borrower and the
ability of the borrower to repay under the restructured terms.

Loan loss provision is made in line with CBRC guidelines after
careful consideration of the future recovery value including
liquidation of collateral of the Non-Performing account. A
classified account is written off when the prospect of a recovery
is considered poor or when all feasible avenues of recovery have
been exhausted.

Special Asset Management and Retail Credit Management
Special Asset Management (SAM) and Retail Credit
Management manage the Bank’s corporate and housing loan
non-performing portfolios respectively. Non-performing
accounts are proactively managed with the intention of
nursing such accounts back to health and transferring them
back to the respective business units or exiting the accounts
in order to maximise recovery.
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RRRE S LRI RERER
Loans by Classification

GEGES ARMm (BAT) gtk
Loans by Classification Outstanding (RMB'm) (%)
IEE Pass 27,456 99%
%iF Special Mention 17 0%
X 2R Substandard 137 1%
AT &% Doubtful 75 0%
#55k Loss _ 0%
At Total 27,685 100%

(BERATU S HIMRGSHERIFS REITHEITM S ERNBXERRS )

(For Loans by Industry Distribution and by Geographical Region, please refer to relevant note of the audited financial report)

2017 £, AREFEITARM 2124Z7T, AR EHALLBIHN 077%.  As at 31 December 2017, total non-performing loans amounted
to RMB211.9 million, representing 0.77 per cent of the Bank’s
total loans portfolio.
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Market Risk

The ALCO meets monthly to review and provide directions
on market risk matters. The Market Risk Management and
Product Control (MRPC) and Balance Sheet Risk Management
(BSRM) Divisions support the RCC and the ALCO with
independent assessment of the market risk profile of the
Bank.

The Bank’s market risk framework comprises market risk
policies, practices, and the control structure with appropriate
delegation of authority and market risk limits. We employ
valuation methodologies that are in line with sound market
practices, and we independently validate valuation and risk
models. In addition, a Product/Service Programme process
ensures that market risk issues identified are adequately
addressed prior to the launch of products and services.
We continually review and enhance our management of
derivatives risks to ensure that the complexities of the
business are appropriately controlled.

Our overall market risk appetite is balanced at the Bank
and business unit levels with targeted revenue and takes
into account the capital position of the Bank. This ensures
that the Bank remains well-capitalised, even under stress
conditions. The risk appetite is translated into risk limits
that are delegated to business units. These risk limits have
proportional returns that are commensurate with the risks
taken.

Market risk appetite is provided for all trading exposure
within the Bank as well as the Bank’s non-trading Foreign
Exchange (FX) exposures. The Bank is mainly exposed to
market risk in its trading portfolios that arises from changes
in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity
prices from the Bank’s client-driven market making and
product structuring activities as well as trading activities.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for the
calculation of regulatory market risk capital but uses Internal
Models Approach to measure and control trading market
risks.

The Bank estimates a daily Value-at-Risk (VaR) within a 99
per cent confidence interval, using the historical simulation
method, as a control for market risk. The method assumes
that possible future changes in market rates may be implied
by observed historical market movements.
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Trading Backtesting Chart
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As VaR is the statistical measure for potential losses, the
VaR measures are backtested against profit and loss of the
trading book to validate the robustness of the methodology.
The backtesting process analyses whether the exceptions are
due to model deficiencies or market volatility. All backtest
exceptions are tabled at the ALCO with recommended
actions and resolutions.

To complement the VaR measure, we perform stress and
scenario tests to identify the Bank’s vulnerability to event
risk. These tests serve to provide early warnings of plausible
extreme losses to facilitate proactive management of market
risk.

The Bank’s daily VaR on 31 December 2017 was RMB5.34 million.
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Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the
interest rate risk management structure. The BSRM supports
the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the
banking book.

Our primary objective of interest rate risk management
is to protect and to enhance capital or economic net
worth through adequate, stable and reliable growth in net
interest earnings under a broad range of possible economic
conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified using
analysis tools including repricing schedules and sensitivity
analysis. They provide indications of the potential impact
of interest rate changes on interest income and price value
through the analysis of the sensitivity of assets and liabilities
to changes in interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity varies
with different repricing periods, currencies and embedded
options. Mismatches in the longer tenor will experience
greater change in the price-value of interest rate positions
than similar positions in the shorter tenor.

We also perform stress tests regularly to determine the
adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme
interest rate movements on the balance sheet. Such tests
are also performed to provide early warnings of potential
extreme losses, facilitating the proactive management of
interest rate risks in an environment of rapid financial market
changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates,
FX rates and equity prices are managed and controlled under
the market risk framework.
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Liquidity Risk

The bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund our day-
to-day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments, and to

repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner to
address known as well as unanticipated cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO. These
policies, controls and limits enable the bank to monitor and
to manage liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient sources
of funds are available over a range of market conditions.
These include minimising excessive funding concentrations
by diversifying the sources and terms of funding as well as
maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable debt
securities.

We take a conservative stance in the Bank’s liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring
that liquidity limits are strictly adhered to and that there are
adequate liquid assets to meet cash shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is managed actively to ensure a
balance between cost effectiveness, continued accessibility
to funds and diversification of funding sources. Important
factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing, proactive
management of the bank’s core deposits and the maintenance
of customer confidence.

Our liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk
management framework and is measured and managed on
a projected cash flow basis. The bank is monitored under
business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the bank’s liquidity exposure.
We also employ liquidity early warning indicators and trigger
points to signal possible contingency situations. With regard
to the regulatory requirements on Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(LCR) which are effective from 31 December 2014, the bank’s
ratio was about 243.87 per cent as at 31 December 2017 with
High Quality Liquidity Assets (HQLA) of RMB7.46 billion and
Net Cash Outflow (NCO) of RMB3.06 billion.

We have contingency funding plans in place to identify
potential liquidity crises using a series of warning indicators.
Crisis management processes and various strategies including
funding and communication have been developed to
minimise the impact of any liquidity crunch.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from
external events. Operational risk includes fraud risk, legal risk,
regulatory compliance risks, reputational risk, outsourcing
risk and technology risk.

Our objective is to manage operational risk at appropriate
levels relative to the markets in which the businesses
operate.

Operational Risk Governance, Framework and Tools
Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies
and procedures by which business and support units properly
identify, assess, monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The
ORMC meets monthly to provide oversight of operational
risk matters.

The Operational Risk Governance structure adopts the Three
Lines of Defence Model. The businesses, as the first line of
defence, are responsible for establishing a robust control
environment as part of their day-to-day operations. Each
business is responsible for implementing the operational
risk framework and policies, embedding appropriate internal
controls into processes and maintaining business resilience
for key activities.

Operational Risk Management Division, as the second line
of defence, oversees the management of operational risk. It
exercises governance over operational risk through providing
relevant frameworks, policies, programmes and systems,
quality assurance of internal controls as well as operational
risk measurement. It also monitors and reports operational
risk issues to senior management, the relevant management
committees and the Board.

Internal Audit acts as the third line of defence by providing
an independent and objective assessment on the overall
effectiveness of the risk governance framework and internal
control through periodic audit reviews.

A key component of the operational risk management
framework is risk identification and control self-assessments.
This is achieved through the Bank-wide implementation of
a set of operational risk programmes. Several risk mitigation
policies and programmes are in place to maintain a sound
operating environment.

We have a business continuity and crisis management
programme in place to ensure prompt recovery of critical
business functions should there be unforeseen events. Our
senior management provides an annual attestation to the
Board on the state of business continuity readiness of the
Bank.

Pl mades S AR ITIAR W = R ey L

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017 | 65

T ) = 2 - TN




RS & 2R
Risk Management

ElEt, BITEEIAMUHRBENEEERER, WMERATRE. #
S E TR R XU

BHREREER AR, EM. AT, RESUTHAENTSI AR
M, WITEERIMEFH—RIIGHMBK, REMBSFTHAN
RIIEZEXT S MM #ETIRA] . MMFEE, ZERBI 5 REEMN
FTE B R A X R E MR F i Bl R T B

BATRREREOERE FIEM KU, FRATEL 7T ERX LR T
BMBREEEHRERF. EXRNEREMRULRKIERIREFH
HEWMB%, MARIHLAFREFTHAEN, SFERERKRR
BHRE.

EREREREATHITH. FHE. BREHIABTHANERE; T
HITAXWIFASIER,; ZREANLR; I5EANEREAR
B WESTHER TR AT IR R SR AR R SMAR i R I (5] S i
FREEREHEREE,

FEREEEERRITHHEEXTHRITHEE., FEIFU SRR
HEBENEE, EMMRTRAEN. RAEIARSI LTS
MBI, HITRMNRBIFERE A SH AR EET
TEENEERNKEEERR, ARMMEELITEERR,

ATREAREEAKEEFERBIRIERL, RITHITEZI
R, MFERE, ARFTEREENEEARFTTERBR NIRRT,

Pl el ST AR TR TR < s AL - s

66 | XEMT (hE) ARAF 207 FERE

We have also adopted a technology risk management
framework to enable the Bank to manage technology risks in
a systematic and consistent manner.

Regulatory risk refers to the risk of non-compliance with
laws, regulations, rules, standards and codes of conduct. We
identify, monitor and manage this risk through a structured
governance framework of Compliance policies, procedures
and guidelines maintained by the Bank. The framework
also manages the risk of regulatory breaches and sanctions
relating to Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the
Financing of Terrorism.

The Bank actively manages fraud risk and bribery risks. Tools
and policies, including a whistle-blowing programme, a
material risk notification protocol and a fraud risk awareness
training programme, have been developed to manage such
risks. All employees are guided by a Code of Conduct, which
includes anti-bribery and anti-corruption provisions.

Legal risk arises from unenforceable, unfavourable, defective
or unintended contracts, lawsuits or claims, developments in
laws and regulations, or non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. Business units work with the Bank’s legal
counsel and external legal counsel to ensure that legal risks
are effectively managed.

Reputational risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings,
liquidity or capital arising from negative stakeholder
perception or opinion of the Bank’s business practices,
activities and financial condition. The Bank recognises the
impact of reputational risk and has developed a policy to
identify and manage the risk across the Bank.

Our insurance programme which covers crime, property
damage, public and civil liability, as well as directors’ and
officers’ liability, etc enables us to mitigate operational losses
resulting from significant risk events.
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Fraud Risk Governance and Organisation

UOB (China) actively manages fraud and bribery risks. Policies
and tools are established to institutionalise the approach
to fraud risk management. It articulates the strategy and
governance structures and espouses a strong anti-fraud
awareness and mind-set. A fraud reporting hotline, an
independent investigation function and fraud risk awareness
training programmes are developed to manage such risks. All
employees are guided by a Code of Conduct, which includes
anti-bribery and anti-corruption provisions.

Integrated Fraud Management Division under Risk
Management drives strategy and governance for fraud risk
management across the country which covers anti-fraud
tasks to fulfill the regulatory requirements. The Division
works closely with business lines to strengthen their current
practices across the five pillars of prevention, detection,
response, remediation and reporting. The corporate
governance of fraud risk is provided by the Audit Committee
at the Board level, and primarily by the ORMC at the
Management level.
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(1) Shareholder Status Update

Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent.

(2) During the reporting period, there were no split or merger
activities or other major corporate developments during
the reporting period.

(3) None of the Bank’s directors, supervisors or top management
was penalised by the regulatory authorities during the
reporting period.

(4) Highlights during the reporting period:

- In March 2017, UOB (China) relocated Shanghai Pilot Free Trade
Zone Sub-branch (FTZ Sub-branch) to UOB Plaza at No. 116, 128
Yincheng Road, Pudong New Area.

- InJune 2017, Shenyang Branch was relocated.

- In September 2017, Tianjin Branch was relocated.

- In November 2017, UOB (China) officially opened Kunming
Branch, the bank’s 17" branch.

Others:

In the second half of 2016, the CBRC announced the new
policy which allows foreign banks operating individual RMB
business not to provide cash service and not to operate at
ground floor premises. Following this announcement:

- Shenyang Branch ceased cash business in September 2016, and
transformed to sky branch in June 2017.

- Tianjin Branch ceased cash business in December 2016, and
transformed to sky branch in September 2017.

- Hangzhou Branch ceased cash business in January 2017 and
transformed to sky branch in March 2017.

- Chengdu Branch ceased cash business in April 2017.

- Chongging Branch ceased cash business and transformed to sky
branch in April 2017.

- Xiamen Branch ceased cash business in December 2017.

To address China’s trend of digitalisation and transformation
to the cashless society, the Bank is digitalising our retail
business. As part of this plan, we announced to cease the
branch ATM service by phases from Q4, 2017.
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Head Office

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Room 102,

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,
Pudong New Area,
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing’an Sub-branch (Shanghai)
Room 1P01-02, 201-203,

United Plaza,

No. 1468 Nanjing Road West,
Jingan District,

Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9366

Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Bund Sub-branch (Shanghai)
No. 20 Zhong Shan Dong Yi Road,
Huangpu District,

Shanghai 200002

Tel: (86) (21) 2319 8388

Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3022

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
Sub-branch (Wholesale Banking
Only)

Room 602, 6 Floor,

No. 116, 128 Yincheng Road,

Pilot Free Trade Zone,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8176

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0906
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Beijing Branch

Unit 102 First Floor and
Unit 01-03, 05-09 25 Floor,
Tower C Office Park,

No. 5 Jing Hua South Street,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Dongcheng Sub-branch
(Beijing)

Unit 108, Tower C

The Fifth Square,

No. 7 Chaoyangmen North Avenue,
Beijing 100010

Tel: (86) (10) 8418 3688

Fax: (86) (10) 8418 3668

Lufthansa Centre Sub-branch
(Beijing)

S104./5105 and C806,/C807

No. 50 Liangmagiao Road,
Chaoyang District,

Beijing 100125

Tel: (86) (10) 8489 3888

Fax: (86) (10) 6461 5750

Chengdu Branch

Suite 1, First Floor, Building 1 and
Suite 9-9,12 Floor, Unit 2, Building1
PingAn Finance Centre,

No. 99 Dong Da Street,

Jinjiang District,

Chengdu 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 68711688

Fax: (86) (28) 86531878

Guangzhou Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 1106 - 1114 Metro Plaza,

No. 183-187, Tianhe Bei Road,
Tianhe District,

Guangzhou 510075

Tel: (86) (20) 8755 8787

Fax: (86) (20) 8755 6661
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Shenyang Branch
Unit 06707, 21 Floor,
Tower A Fortune Plaza,
No. 61 Beizhan Road,
Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3121 2168
Fax: (86) (24) 3116 2078

Shenzhen Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 02, 03, 05, 06, 13 Floor,

Di Wang Commercial Center,
Shun Hing Square,

No. 5002 Shennan Road East,
Shenzhen 518008

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688

Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor United Overseas Bank
Building, No. 19 Hubin Bei Road,
Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601

Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

Unit 2-1-2207, 2208, 2209,
RongHui Plaza,
Changliang Road,

Nankai District,

Tianjin 300100

Tel: (86) (22) 8701 7070
Fax: (86) (22) 873 80500

Hangzhou Branch

Room 201 and 203,

No. 181 Tian Mu Shan Road,
Xihu District,

Hangzhou 310013

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666
Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619

Chongging Branch

Unit A, 31 Floor,

HNA-POLY International Centre,
No. 235 Min Sheng Road,

Yu Zhong District,

Chongging 400010

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788
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Suzhou Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 1801, Tower 1Jinghope Square,
No. 88 Huachi Street,

Suzhou Industrial Park (SIP),
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200

Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006

Kunming Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 2105 & 2106, 21 Floor,

East Tower MASTER,

No. 1 Chongren Street,

Wuhua District,

Kunming 650000

Tel: (86) (871) 6555 0777

Fax: (86) (871) 6361 6191
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Auditors’ Report

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2018) Shen Zi No 60658622 _BO1
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited:

(1) Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (hereinafter referred
to as “the Bank”), which comprise the balance sheet as at
31 December 2017, the income statement, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, United Overseas Bank
(China) Limited’s financial position as at 31 December 2017 and
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited’s financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (ASBEs).

(11) Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards
on Auditing (CSAs). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited in
accordance with China Code of Ethics for Certified Public
Accountants (the Code), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

(I11) Responsibilities of the management and
those charged with governance for the financial
statements

The management of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with ASBEs, and
for designing, implementing and maintaining such internal
control as the management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management
is responsible for assessing United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting, unless the management
either intends to liquidate United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing United Overseas Bank (China) Limited’s financial
reporting process.

(V) Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are generally
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

(2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control.
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(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on United Overseas Bank (China) Limited’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP, Shanghai Branch

Shanghai China
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(5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yan, Shengwei

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Wang, Wenyan

23 March 2018



BAEfHE
Balance Sheet
2017 ££ 12 A 31 H 31 December 2017

( BR¥FRIERASH, EBBMHHIARTT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

BiEFS 2017412 H31H 2016412 A31H

Notes 6 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
B’ ASSETS:
& RIFHM PR ITERIN Cash and deposit with the central bank 1 7169,538,272 6,874,732,445
=22B Precious metals - 26,465,000
TR SRR Due from banks 2 5,022,549,834 4,281,972,740
RHEAEE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 9,527,005,249 8,952,621,562
;é;gggg%ﬂg#ﬁ]ﬁ)\é% Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 2,486,366,862 115,977,944
TEESRAF Derivative financial assets 5 5,576,168,427 2,401,319,415
INBREERE~ Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 1,344,195,000 536,900,000
R 2 Interest receivables 7 239,741,675 187,536,443
V) 5 &R Loans and advances to customers 8 27136,596,787 23,887,216,059
AEHEESMA Available-for-sale financial assets 9 4369,225,273 3,757,637920
B E R = Fixed assets 10 39,050,984 39,015,380
TR EF= Intangible assets 1 118,548,683 100,945,399
ISR A= Deferred tax assets 12 51,894,939 57,279,711
Hitgwre Other assets 13 418,174,466 166,791,818
Y=Y TOTAL ASSETS 63,499,056,451 52,386,411,836
ff: LIABILITIES:
&l B E At & B AL TE AL Due to banks and other financial institutions 15 874,157,359 306,329,143
WANEE Placements from banks and other financial institutions 16 19,274,817,004 14,301,763,721
TEEMAE Derivative financial liabilities 5 5,659,819,815 2,647,562,285
R TF R Customer deposits 17 30,272,812,215 25,185,305,751
Rz AFER T HE Payroll payables 18 88,027,405 73,564,958
R FE 2R Tax payables 19 52,797,524 44,184,847
MAAFE Interest payables 20 298,396,936 290,141,186
Hitt s Other liabilities 21 184,710,210 75,897,778
fEAt TOTAL LIABILITIES 56,705,538,468 45,724,749,669
FrE&ENE: EQUITY:
SERE A Paid-up capital 2 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
RN Capital reserve 23 9975150 7190,414
Hithz Az Other comprehensive income 24 (7,477,010) (544,152)
BHRNR Surplus reserves 25 100,026,507 86,426,113
— RGBS General reserves 26 708,458,438 588,421,509
FKorECFE Retained earnings 27 482,534,898 480,168,283
FEENEE: TOTAL EQUITY: 6,793,517983 6,661,662,167
HARRAAENER T TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 63,499,056,451 52,386,411,836
HTE 82 TLE 154 WM SR T MHE A RV SR H AR S
The notes on pages 82 to 154 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FliAR

Income Statement

2017 &£ & For the year ended 31 December 2017
( BR4FRIERRSS, EFRAMAHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

Etiz 2017 2016
—. Bl 1. OPERATING INCOME
RN Interest income 28 1,638,475,960 1323,373121
FMEZH Interest expense 28 (832,672,000) (676,131,403)
F &N Net interest income 28 805,803,960 647,241,718
FEBERASEN Fee and commission income 29 150,469,652 163,420,162
FHHERAEIH Fee and commission expense 29 (35,493,370) (28,080,604)
FHEHRRAESFEAN Net fee and commission income 29 114,976,282 135,339,558
ik 6 Investment income 30 251,214,362 178,428,951
NRMET TR Gains from changes in fair value 31 125,940,200 65,188,093
LR RICER Rk Foreign exchange losses 32 (131,521,671) (82,794,568)
Hotilr 2z Other income 33 6,026,114 -
BN EIT TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 172,439,247 943,403,752
. Bl 2. OPERATING EXPENSES
B & KM Business tax and surcharges (10,870,223) (30,493,423)
&R EEE General and administrative expenses 34 (873,881,947) (814,171,571)
RERERRE Impairment losses 35 (134,178,487) (49,703,730)
Bl HET TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (1,018,930,657) (894,368,724)
=, BlAE 3. OPERATING PROFIT 153,508,590 49,035,028
fn: Bl ShEN Add: Non-operating income 2,759930 8,074,727
W BT Less: Non-operating expenses (12,568,857) (292,833)
M. FEETFIE SR 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 143,699,663 56,816,922
B EFEHEHR Less: Income tax expense 36 (7,695,725) (13,553,711)
A, EFE 5. NET PROFIT 136,003,938 43,263,211
N Eftm SR S En 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX
UEHES LHIREN Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
Hitgm &= Income Statement
AEHESREFARNMETS Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 24 (6,932,858) (16,526,702)
£, EEKELAE 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 129,071,080 26,736,509

BT 82 TUE 154 UM SRR M A R U SMERW AR IS
The notes on pages 82 to 154 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FITREE 154 TR ERRAUTALEE:

The financial statements from page 77 to 154 have been signed by:

TRFEFHITE. EF: Y8

President and CEO, Director: Foo Moo Tan

Frob ol SRS AR WA W e L
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FiBEERmENR
Statement of Changes in Equity

2017 &£ & For the year ended 31 December 2017
( BR¥FAERRSS, EFAMHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

TWHEET BENR HthREkE BRAR —MXEAESE KOBEFE ait
Paid-up Capital ~ Other com- Surplus General Retained Total
capital reserves prehensive reserves reserves earnings
income
2016512 A31H &5 Balance as at 31 December 2016 5,500,000,000 790,414 (544,152) 86,426,113 588,421,509 480,168,283 6,661,662,167
AEEBRTHEE Movements during the year - 2,784,736 (6932,858) 13,600,394 120,036,929 2,366,615 131,855,816
(—) ZARWHESEE (i) Total comprehensive income - - (6,932,858) - - 136,003,938 129,071,080
(Z) ITEE/AM (ii) Injection of funds by and
N - 2,784,736 - - - - 2,784,736
BDER distribution of funds to the investor
1LRBEMTNEE
I~ 1. Share-based payment - 2784736 - - - - 2784736
e i
2IIAEBRNER 2. Investment by equity owners - - - - , - ,
(=) FjE4E (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 13,600,394 120,036,929 (133,637,323) -
LIRRBERAR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 13,600,394 - (13,600,394) -
2RI — R RS 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - - 120,036,929 (120,036,929) -
20171231 &% Balance as at 31 December 2017 5,500,000,000 9,975,150 (7477,010) 100,026,507 708,458,438 482,534,898 6,793,517983
2016 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2016
( BRERRIERRS, €HRMMAANRTIT)
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
FWHER  RAEALR HtmglzE BRAR —BRKESE ROEME &it
Paid-up Capital  Other com- Surplus General Retained Total
capital  reserves prehensive reserves reserves earnings
income
2015512 A3 H &5 Balance as at 31 December 2015 5,500,000,000 12,034,864 15,982,550 82,099,792 564,261,213 465,391,689 6,639,770,108
AERBTHSE Movements during the year - (4,844,450 (16,526,702) 4326321 24160,296 14,776,594 21,892,059
(—) ZAWBEE (i) Total comprehensive income - - (16,526,702) - - 43263211 26,736,509
(Z) BREEEAT (ii) Injection of funds by and
- (48444 - - - - 4,844,4
BB distribution of funds to the investor (4,844450) (4,844,450
1.RBZAHNEE
" 1. Share-based payment - (4,844,450 - - - - 4,844,450
SRS i ( ) ( )
(=) ®MiEaHie (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 4,326,321 24,160,296 (28,486,617) -
1R BRAR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 4,326,321 - (4,326,321) -
2 BN — AR XUBG A 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - - 24,160,296 (24,60,296) -
2016512 A31H &% Balance as at 31 December 2016 5,500,000,000 790,414 (544,152) 86,426,113 588,421,509 480,168,283 6,661,662,167
HT 5 82 TNEE 154 TN S MR MER AWM SF MR A AR AR5
The notes on pages 82 to 154 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MERER
Statement of Cash Flows

2017 &£ & For the year ended 31 December 2017
( ER4FR1ERASN, EFRAMHIAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

BiEFS
2017 2016
Notes 6
—. BEBRHFENAERE 1.CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATINGT ACTIVITIES
TR A SRR AT RIS R D B Net decrease in due from the Central bank 24,464,542 -
TR R Al RT3 Net decrease in due from banks 100,000,000 200,000,000
ggzz;sgﬂk&gﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬂﬁm ],c\il:;nizicarle;s;iitr:];i;t:mer deposits and due to banks and other 2849753411 3713,027105
RNE S SN :\rljiil::;'ssze in placements from banks and other financial 4918.933.565 3,613.933,840
KWEHHKFE, FEERASHINE Cash received from interest, service fee and commission 1,811,845,192 1,532,873,494
KR EMS2EENELNAE Cash received from other operating activities 22975791 356,229,846
ZEEHRETNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 9934,754,621 9,416,064,285
TR S SR T RN I 4 EE AN Net increase in due from the Central Bank - 2,203,416,652
e 3% & %G AR !\letv increase in placements with banks and other financial £23.691995 1913780725
institutions

B SR FI TS nER Net increase in loans and advances to customers 3,374,488,797 695,398,860
THWFE. FEERAELSHIE Payments made for interest,service fee and commission 859,909,620 766,644,591
XHERIRARIZANRE Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 545,659,547 535,505,883
SRR Cash paid for all types of taxes 85,396,188 39,826,710
YW EMSEEREDNELANAE Cash paid for other operating activities 860,276,803 266,834,832
ZKEFHMETRHNT Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 6,549,422,953 8,421,408,253
BREEDITENMERESE Net cash flows from operating activities 37 3,385,331,668 994,656,032

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR LS S il
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Z. BRABRYFENGERE 2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

B R BI I & Cash received from maturity of investments 14,550,000,000 10,692,628,250
BERBKERIINIRE Cash received from investment income 231,211,160 220,113,976
REEERF=INEMKH R = Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term
1,289,547 3,078,849
B & assets
BHAFHRERN DT Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 14,782,500,707 10,915,821,075
BREMZANAE Cash paid for investment 14,337,012,104 9,867,308 544
MEEERFAEMKBE~ T Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term
48,251,836 126,831,018
MM & assets
BRFEDHAERE/NT Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 14,385,263,940 9.994,139,562
AR ENRERESEM Net cash flows from investing activities 397,236,767 921,681,513
= ERFEHFENTERE 3. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
W 5 X K B B & Cash received from capital injection - -
ERFHIERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities - -
ERBHTENRERESLD Net cash flows from financing activities . B
M. CEEHNRERREENY 4. EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND
o 104,719,329 (76,733,691)
A ] CASH EQUIVALENTS

. 5. NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
. HERAE N 37 3,887,287,764 1,839,603,854
SR EQUIVALENTS

m: EVMMERMNELENMRE Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 10,439,445,167 8,599,841,313
Ny EXRMERAEZENMIMER 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 38 14,326,732,931 10,439,445)167

BT 82 ME 154 T SR MHE D A SRR AR5

The notes on pages 80 to 152 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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&R T M E

Notes to the Financial Statements
2017 &£ & For the year ended 31 December 2017

(B RIERISN, STARHHARTIR )

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

—. REMNERBR

KERIT (HE ) BRAF (LUTER “AA8" F “KERIT (&
H)” ) RAXERITERLT ( LUTER “KERT” ) EpE
AREME EBHRIFSNEMBERIT,

ZPERTIEEEEZAS (ITER “RES” ) T2007 £
4 A5 BtHE, RERITIR(PEARKLIEINFRITERRG] ) (L
TERR “CEEERD) ) . (REARKEMESMERITERES
KN Y (ATER “ AN D) 7 ) MEXME, ELBT
FERAEBMHFMIMFMBRIT—RERIT (FE ) ARAH,
R/ ERERENPRERITEEST. XRSIT. RNZIT. M
ST BEAT. BI151T. RS TR EEHEXIT (UTER
“BHRERXSITRZT ) BEAKXERIT (RE) MO,

ERNABEERUSMENES R IFAIE, NMWEBDA:

BO308H131000001 &, ¥}H LT IHITHEERZEMELZR 4
EANELHR, sE—HSEHREA: 913100006694147236, i Mt
Wit AHE ( £ ) BHBES LG XREE 116 5. 128 S KER
TRKE=ZE. RS0 E (XMREE) . +=ZE (ZXBE+ZE) .

T+EER (ZXBR+=ZER) . +X"B (EHFE+EE) . +EB ( E£iF
+HE) . +NA\B (EFR+ARE) o EMEXRAART 551Z27T,

RFEXRAEUHRHINE, ARXFAELEHRATAERR, =2
RAEENEEAXEENMHAERSMNILSZMARTL S, 2008
F£1R 2 BAFARAERFERSTHLSHRE,

HZE2007E12 A3 H, BELBEZIIHKERT (HE) BRA
FEITHN, KATRCELE., b3 w1, TM. XE. B, .
K, M. BR. HM. BFEIEIT 2 ROTR 4 KE1T
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1. Corporate information

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (hereinafter referred to
as The Bank or UOB (China)) is a wholly foreign-owned bank
established in Shanghai, People's Republic of China (PRC), by
United Overseas Bank (UOB).

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation), and
the Detailed Rules on the Implementation of Regulation of
the PRC on the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the
Implementation), China Banking Regulatory Committee
(CBRC) granted approval to UOB on 5 April 2007 to set up
a wholly-owned subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in Shanghai
by converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen
Branch, Guangzhou Branch, Chengdu Branch, Xiamen Branch,
Shenyang Branch and Jing’an sub-branch (collectively known
as the Former PRC Branches).

The Bank obtained the licence for conducting financial
transaction from the CBRC (Institution Code: BO308H131000001),
and obtained its business licence (Uniform Social Credit Code:
913100006694147236) from Shanghai Administration for
Industry and Commerce. The registered address is 3F, Unit
501, F13, F15, F16, F17, and F18, No.116 and 128 Yincheng Road,
China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone. The registered capital
of the Bank is RMB 5.5 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an
unlimited operating period. The main businesses of the Bank
are Renminbi and foreign currency businesses as approved
by relevant regulatory authorities. The date of business
conversion from former PRC branches to UOB (China) was on
2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2017, besides the Head Office incorporated in
Shanghai, the Bank has set up 12 branches and 4 sub-branches
respectively in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Guangzhou,
Chengdu, Xiamen, Shenyang, Tianjin, Hangzhou, Chongging,
Suzhou and Kunming.
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1. SIHEE
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BRI, WANRFITHELTR,

. RERAEENY
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MEZFREN, MERBIEE=ANIHNESRE,

2. Preparation basis of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic
Standard and the specific standards, the implementation
guidance, interpretations and other relevant provisions issued
and revised subsequently by the Ministry of Finance of PRC
(MOF) (collectively referred to as Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared on
an accrual basis under the historical cost as the basis of
measurement, except for some financial instruments. If the
assets are impaired, corresponding provisions should be
recognised in accordance with relevant standrds.

3. Compliance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial position
of the Bank as of 31 December 2017 and the results of the
operations and the cash flows for the year then ended.

4. Significant accounting policies and estimates

(1) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31
December of each calendar year.

(2) Functional currency

The Bank’s functional currency is Renminbi (RMB). These
financial statements are presented in RMB and all amounts
are stated in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

(3) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits; cash
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and which
are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents comprise non-statutory deposits due from
central banks, amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions, reverse repurchase agreements maturing within
three months, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
which have an original maturity date within three months.
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4. ShHITE
AR FERENIITRZS, BINTETIHEN KRNI TEE,

NI R BENBTHINR, RAXHEXEBHRCRGNH SN

HAHRKAMTEH, THRSAGERE, M THMEHERERA
BEAGRAMBILERTE, A~EMNEEMEMERBTEE

Bt NSfiinm, UAEMAITENSTIESETERE, NRAX
SERERHNBILEAE, FRTHERAEITEH, UARNME

HEMMTEETERE, RAARMERE BNEERICERTH,
B ERNEHRIEELE TN BEMEFOT A SRR ENEMES
Yzt

5. B EEF-
BEEAFNESHEEXNEFHARTERANRLT, BERAEE
BRI EMITER A FUHILN. SEEEFEXNEEXY, 6%
BN EH, T NBEE B PR A, & IE TN B a5 i K E N E;
EW, ERERTNLHEARE,

EEH = RBRAEITNHRITE. WEBEERTHWHASERIMN
M. BXBE. EERERTABNBE R ERRSEI TR ENTERE
HETZIRE - EAM S EIEH =8 B R A ERFEETHR,
BEREERFHERFS. BHEREXERENBXRAT:

(4) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction date. Subsequent
to initial recognition, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of
monetary items or from translation of monetary items at
balance sheet date are recognised in the income statement.
Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the initial transactions; Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates when the fair value is determined,
the exchange difference thus resulted is recognised in the
income statement or other comprehensive income of the
current period.

(5) Fixed assets

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the
Bank, and the cost of fixed assets can be measured reliably.
Subsequent expenditure can be recognised as the cost of
fixed assets when the recognition criteria set above is met,
and the replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised.
Otherwise, such expenditure is to be charged to the income
statement in the period when it is incurred.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of
a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price,
relevant taxes and any directly attributable expenditure for
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis. And the respective estimated useful lives, estimated
residual values and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets
are set by the Bank considering the nature and usage of fixed
assets.

ERFHEw Btk ER EHIHER
Estimated useful | Estimated residual | Annual depreciation
lives value rate
BERERY 50 & .
Properties and buildings ) ’
DRREBINIEE s 0%
Office equipment and computers i :
B E 54F 20%
Motor vehicles ’ ’

FRAREBNMRAFARR BB EER~HEREG. BuitEaxE
MIFIEFTERITER, LERBITAE,
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Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.
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(6) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according
to the actual expenditure for the construction, including all
necessary expenditure and other related expenses incurred
during the construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets
or other long term assets when the asset is ready for its
intended use.

(7) Intangible assets

The intangible assets can be recognised only when the
economic benefits related to intangible assets are likely to
flow into the Bank, and the cost of intangible assets can be
measured reliably. While the intangible assets obtained in
a business combination under common control should be
measured at fair value if the cost of intangible assets can be
measured reliably.

The useful life of intangible assets is determined according
to the economic useful lives; those intangible assets with
unforeseeable economic lives can be classified as intangible
assets with infinite useful lives.

The Bank’s intangible assets comprise computer software
with a 10-year useful life.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation
is charged to income statement on a straight line. The useful
life and amortisation method for intangible assets with finite
useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date, with
proper adjustments made by the Bank when necessary.

(8) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are amortized by the straight
line method.

Rental fee of the operating lease of fixed assets is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease contract.
Other long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the lower period of lease period or
useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged
to income statement if the expenditure does not bring
benefits to subsequent accounting periods.

(9) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised when the
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.
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(10) Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as follows: financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss; held-to-maturity investment;
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
Financial assets are initially recognised at their fair value.
For financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, the
related transaction costs are directly charged to income
statement of the current period. Transaction costs relating
to financial assets of other categories are included in the
amount initially recognised.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets which are either classified as held for trading
or designated by the Bank as such upon initial recognition.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they meet
any of the following: 1) acquired for the purpose of sale in
the short term; 2) part of a portfolio of identifiable financial
instruments that are collectively managed, and there is
objective evidence indicating that the enterprise recently
managed this portfolio for the purpose of short-term
profits; 3) derivatives unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments, they are financial guarantee contracts
or they are derivatives that linked to and must be settled by
delivery of equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured. For such kind of financial assets, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All realised
or unrealised gains or losses on these financial assets are
recognised in the income statement of the current period.

Financial assets/liabilities are designated as fair value
through profit and loss only if they meet any of the following
criteria:

(i) The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
liabilities on a different basis.

(ii) In accordance with documented risk management or
investment strategy, this financial assets portfolio are
managed, and evaluated at fair value and reported on that
basis to key management personnel.

(iii) The financial instrument contains one or several
embedded derivatives, unless the embedded derivatives
do not significantly modify the cash flow of the mixed
instrument or it is clear that they would not be separately
recorded.

(iv) The financial instrument contains an embedded instrument,
which need to be separated but is unable to be
measured separately at initial recognition or subsequent
measurement at each subsequent balance sheet dates.
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Held-to-maturity Investment

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity investments when the Bank has the intention and
ability to hold the assets till maturity. After initial recognition,
held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
less any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the held-to-
maturity financial assets are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process. The Bank shall
not classify any financial assets as held-to-maturity if the
Bank has, during the current financial year or during the two
preceding financial years, sold or reclassified more than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments before
maturity (more than insignificant in relation to the total
amount of held-to-maturity investments), any remaining
held-to-maturity investments are reclassified as available-
for-sale financial assets except for:

(i)  Sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity or
the financial asset’s call date (i.e. less than three months
before maturity) that changes in the market interest rate
would not have a significant effect on the financial asset’s
fair value;

(i) Sales or reclassifications that occur after the Bank has
collected substantially all of the financial asset’s original
principal through scheduled payments or prepayments; or

(iii) Sales or reclassifications that are attributable to an
isolated event that is beyond the Bank’s control, is non-
recurring, and could not have been reasonably anticipated
by the Bank.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, gains or losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or amortisation are recognised in
the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets which are designated as such or are not
classified in any of the three preceding categories. After
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income earned
during the holding period is accrued using the effective
interest rate method and recognised to the income statement
as interest rate income. Changes in fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised as other comprehensive
income until the financial asset is derecognised at which
time the cumulative gains or losses previously reported in
other comprehensive income are included in the income
statement. Impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
or losses on available-for-sale financial assets which are
monetary items are recognised in the income statement.
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(11) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying value of financial assets other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired as a result of one or more events
(impairment events). The impairment events are referred to
those occurring after the initial recognition of the assets,
which have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets and can be reliably estimated by the
Bank. Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the borrower or a group of borrowers are experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as deterioration
of the situation in arrears or sudden change of economic
conditions, which may lead to the debtors’ failing to fulfil
the responsibility of repayment.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

When an impairment loss is incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured, through use of an allowance account,
as the difference between the financial asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate, taking into account the value of any related
collaterals. Once an impairment loss is recognised, interest
income is thereafter recognised by using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables and
the related allowance accounts will be written off if there
is no probability of recovery and all collaterals have been
foreclosed or transferred to the Bank.

The Bank firstly assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

Future cash flows of a group of financial assets that are
collectively assessed for impairment are estimated on the
basis of historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. The historical loss experience
is adjusted on the basis of current observable data, to
reflect the effects of current conditions not affecting the
period of historical experience and to eliminate the impact
of historical conditions that do not exist currently. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future
cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be attributed objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the assets does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If objective evidence shows that the financial assets carried
at cost are impaired, the difference between the present
value discounted at the prevailing rate of return of similar
financial assets and the book value of the financial asset are
provided as an impairment loss in the income statement. The
impairment loss recognised cannot be reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
for available-for-sale financial assets has been incurred,
the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost (net off any recovered principals
and amortised amount) and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is reversed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

Debt instruments classified as available-for-sale with
impairment loss recognised, if, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss, the previously impaired loss is reversed
through the income statement. Reversal of impairment loss
of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale is not
recognised in the income statement.

(12) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, or other financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
Gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in
the income statement.
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Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are measured at the fair value
on initial recognition. For financial guarantee contracts that
are not designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
they are, after initial recognition, subsequently measured
at the higher of, the amount determined in accordance
with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 13
— Contingencies, and the amount initially recognised less
the cumulative amortisation determined according to the
principles of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 14 - Revenues.

Other financial liabilities

Except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and financial guarantee contracts, deposits and other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

(13) Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when one of the following
conditions is met:

(i)  the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired; or

(i) the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the assets; or has retained its rights to receive cash
flows from the assets but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a pass-through arrangement; and (a) the Bank
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset; or (b) the Bank has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the financial asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement
of the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the
form of a guarantee over the transferred financial asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the guaranteed amount. The guaranteed amount is
the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could
be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities are derecognised when the
responsibilities over them have been discharged, cancelled,
or expired. If the original financial liabilities are replaced
with substantively different terms in essence by the same
creditor, or the provisions of the contract are substantively
modified in its nature, such replacement or modifications are
treated as derecognition of original liabilities and recognition
of new liabilities, with the difference recorded in the income
statement.
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(14) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the balance sheet when and only
when the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(15) Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value of the
contract date and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated separately as derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the hybrid instrument is not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with the changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective
economic hedges under the Bank's risk management
positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting and are
therefore treated as derivatives held for trading with gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement.

(16) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities and bills sold subject to repurchase agreements
(“Repos”) continue to be recognised, and are recorded
as financial investments. The corresponding obligation is
included in “Financial Assets Sold for Repurchase”. Securities
and bills purchased under agreements to re-sell (“Reverse
repos”) are not recognised. The receivables are recorded as
“Reverse repurchase financial assets’, as appropriate.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised
as interest expense or interest income in the income
statement over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.
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(17) Precious metal

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals acquired by
the Bank for trading purposes are initially measured at fair
value and subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in
the income statement.

(18) Impairment of assets
The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for
financial assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an
asset is impaired at each balance sheet date. If any such
indication exists, the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount and carries out impairment test. For
those assets with infinite useful lives, regardless of whether
the impairment indications exist, the impairment test is
made at least annually. For intangible assets that have not
yet reached their intented use status are also conducted
annually impairment test.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of estimated future
discounted cash flows, which is determined on an individual
basis.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in income statement and the carrying value of the asset
reduced by the amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be
reversed in a subsequent period.

(19) Accrued liability

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as
accrued liability when all of the following conditions are
satisfied (except for contingent liability recognised in a
business combination not under common control):

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(ii) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and

(iii) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The accrued liability is initially measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the
risks, uncertainties and time value of money are taken into
account as a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank
reviews the carrying amount of a provision at the balance
sheet date. The carrying amount of a provision will be
adjusted when there is clear evidence that the amount does
not reflect the current best estimate.
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(20) Recognition of income and expense

Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest income and expense

Interest income or expense are determined using the
effective interest method, the effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of
the financial instrument and includes any fees or incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, but not future
credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates
of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is
calculated based on original effective interest rate and the
change in carrying amount is recorded as an interest income
or expense.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the services
are rendered and the proceeds can be reasonably estimated.

(21) leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to the lessees are classified as
finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

As operating lessee

When the Bank is a lessee under an operating lease, rental
payments are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

As financial lessee

When the Bank is a lessee under a finance lease, the leased
assets are capitalised initially at the fair value of the asset or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in "Other
liabilities". Finance charges are charged over the term of the
lease using an interest rate which reflects a constant rate
of return. Contingent rental payments are charged to the
income statement when incurred.
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(22) Government subsidies

Government subsidies will be recognized if the Bank can
receive government subsidies and meet the conditions
attached to government subsidies. If government subsidies
are monetary assets, they shall be measured in the light of
the amount received or receivable. If a government subsidy
is a non-monetary asset, it shall be measured at its fair value;
and if its fair value cannot be obtained in a reliable way, it
shall be measured at a nominal amount.Government subsidies
associated with income which are used as compensation for
future costs, expenses or losses are recognized as deferred
expenditures and shall recorded in future profits and losses
to reverse the related costs where the relevant costs,
expenses or losses are recognized. Government subsidies
associated with income which are used to compensate the
related costs, expenses or losses incurred by the Bank are
directly included in current profit and loss or used to reverse
the related costs. Government subsidies associated with
assets shall set off the book value of related assets or be
recognized as deferred expenditures. Government subsidies
related to assets are recognized as deferred expenditures
to be distributed over the useful lives of the relevant assets
and shall be recorded in the profit or loss by stages in a
reasonable and systematic manner. Government subsidies
measured in nominal amounts, shall directly recognized in
current profits and losses. Where relevant assets are sold,
transferred, scraped or damaged before the end of their lives,
balance of the unallocated deferred expenditures shall be
recognized in current profit and loss on asset disposal.

(23) Share-based payment
The Bank’s share-based compensation program is measured
as an equity-settled share-based payment.

The equity-settled share-based payment is measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
Where the equity instruments granted vest immediately, the
Bank recognises the expense in full at the fair value on grant
date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve. Where
the equity instruments granted vest upon the fulfilment
of service period or performance conditions, the Bank
makes a best estimate at the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest, at each balance sheet date of the
vesting period, based on the latest information on eligible
employees and performance conditions, and recognise the
expense pertaining to the current period at the fair value on
grant date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.
The fair values of the equity instruments are estimated using
the Trinomial valuation methodology.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and service conditions are satisfied.
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Where the terms of an equity—settled award are modified,
as a minimum, an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. An additional expense is recognised for
any modification which increases the total fair value of the
share—based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity—settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non—vesting conditions within
the control of the employees are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new compensation are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award.

(24) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by
the Bank in exchange for service rendered by employees or
for the termination of employment, including short-term
employee benefits, post-employment benefits, termination
benefits and other long-term benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other
short-term employee benefits are accrued in the period in
which services have been rendered by the employees of the
Bank.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)
Employees of the Bank participate in the retirement insurance
plan, and unemployment insurance plan administered by
the local government, and the contribution is recognised to
income statement of that period.

Employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity plan
established by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The Bank
contributes to the annuity at a certain percentage of
employees’ salary, and recognises the cost in the income
statement accordingly.

(25) Income tax

Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax. Current
income tax and movements in deferred tax balances are
recognised in the income statement except that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity, in which case the tax is
recognised directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date. The taxable income is
calculated at the accounting results for the year as adjusted
in accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with relevant tax regulations.
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Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
(i) where the deferred tax assets arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income
or deductible loss; and; (ii) in respect of taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, where it is
probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
when fulfilling of the following conditions:

(i) A legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities.

(ii) The deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
related to the income tax levied on the same taxpayer by
the same tax administrative department or are related to
different taxpayers but, within each future period of reversal
of important deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,
the taxpayers involved intend to settle current tax assets and
current tax liabilities or acquire assets and liquidate liabilities
at the same time.
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(26) Fair value measurement

At each balance sheet date, the Bank measures its derivatives,
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, and available-for-sale financial assets at fair value.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the assumption that the
orderly transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible to
the Bank. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumption that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure the fair value. Use of observable inputs is
maximized and unobservable inputs will only be used when
observable inputs are not available or obtaining observable
inputs becomes unpractical.

For assets and liabilities measured and disclosed at fair value,
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement: Level
1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; Level 3
inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities held at the end of the balance sheet
date that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Bank continues to make assessment as to whether there is
transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy.

(27) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do
not constitute related parties.

(28) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in an entrusted business such as
nominee, custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together
with related undertakings to return such assets to customers
are excluded from the financial statements.
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(29) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but
disclosed in the notes to financial statements. In case the
condition changes, which led to the outflow of economic
resources is probable, provision will be made.

(30) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management has used its judgments and made estimates
and assumptions of the effects of uncertain future events
on the financial statements. The use of judgments, estimates
and assumptions will affect the amount of income, expense,
assets and liabilities presented and disclosed. The uncertainty
of such estimates and assumptions might have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the future.

Impairment losses of loans and advances

The Bank determines periodically whether there is any
objective evidence that impairment losses on loans and
advances have occurred. If any such evidence exists, the Bank
assesses the amount of impairment losses. The amount of
impairment losses is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows. Assessing the amount of impairment losses
involving significant judgement on whether the objective
evidence for impairment exists and also significant estimates
when determining the present value of the expected future
cash flows.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Bank to
estimate the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Bank carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions
in accordance with prevailing tax regulations and makes
tax provisions accordingly. In addition, deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. This requires significant
estimation on the tax treatments of certain transactions and
also significant assessment on the probability that adequate
future taxable profits will be available for the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.
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Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
active markets are determined based on the market prices.
For financial instruments with no active markets, fair value
are established using valuation techniques such as making
reference to recent transactions or other comparable
financial instruments, discounted cash flow method and
option pricing models. To the extent practicable, valuation
technique makes maximum use of market inputs. However,
where market inputs are not available, management needs
to make estimates on areas such as credit risk (both own
and counterparty’s), volatility and correlation. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments.

Classification of investment

Significant management judgment is required in evaluating
the classification of investments, since different classification
will result in different accounting treatments and financial
positions of the Bank. If improper judgement on the
classification of investment is noticed after the balance sheet
date, the Bank may need to reclassify the whole investment
portfolio.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The management of the Bank has assessed and made
judgments on the extent to which it retains the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial instruments for the
transferred transactions entered into, and make relevant
accounting treatments accordingly.

(31) Change in accounting policy

According to The Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No.16 - Government Subsidies (Cai Kuai [2017] No.15), the bank
shall separately present the “other income” item above the
“Operating profits” item. Any government grant related to
the daily activities of an enterprise shall be presented in
the “other income” item instead of “non-operating income”
item. To link up with the previous version of the standards,
for the government subsidies obtained before January 1,
2017, the prospective application method shall apply for the
accounting treatment, for the newly increased government
subsidies from January 1, 2017 to the value date of the
accounting standards (June 6, 2017), the adjustment shall
be made in accordance with this standards. The contents
of “other income”, “operating profit” and “non-operating
income” items for the year 2017 and 2016 are different, but
the above-mentioned changes in accounting policies have no
impacts on the “Net profit” item of the financial statements.
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5. Taxation

The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the
respective tax rates for the current financial year are as
follows:
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The Bank is subjected to a value-added tax rate of six per cent and pays value-added tax by the net amount after

HEBEB
Value-added tax

offsetting deductible input tax of the same period.

BT SRR IR A

City construction tax
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The Bank is subjected to a city construction tax rate of seven per cent on turnover tax.
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Educational surcharge

The Bank is subjected to an educational surcharge rate of three per cent on turnover tax.

Ak FriEH

Corporate income tax
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The Bank is subjected to a corporate tax rate of 25 per cent.

E N
Withholding Individual

Income tax salaries paid to its employees.

ARAZMEEENFHFE, HEARRRELNBEIARER,

In accordance with the relevant tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold individual income tax on

N MERREZTEME
1. & RAF I R RIRITHI

6. Notes to financial statements

(1) Cash and deposit with the central bank

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
EFNE Cash on hand 13,235,129 15,195,504
TEHHRRBITEELESESE - ART  Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank-RMB 4,079,499730 3,404,331,250
FEHHRIRITEELAES - MW Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank-foreign currency 124,229,477 133,805,607
FH R RBITINCRIE EEE Foreign exchange risk reserve with the Central Bank 119,652,245 1,809,709,137

FER P JRERIT B Eo A R

&it Total

Other deposits with the Central Bank

1,832,921,691 151,690,947

769,538,272 6,874,732,445

RIEFEARBRITHEXRNE, ARADLTIR—ELRHYAEFIE
ZFELTHEARIRIT. T200E 12 A3 H, AAAARTRIT
FREESHTFLLBI4 54 15%( 2016 ££12 A 31 B: 15% ) & 5% ( 2016
E1RANA: 5%),

M2015 10 AE 207 £9 A, RIBFEARBRITHERNE, &
NRRAHMIMNCRE EEE, BRAZEAEZHECEAHTM 20%
HEMCREERES, HERTHREARRIT—H, 201 &E9 A,
BRBPRIT(HEARBITATRAZMNLREAZESBEROELS) (4R
£ [2017]207 5 ) , EREHIMRFIEHE TS ERIAINT
R 2 S RIAE AR 0%,

Pl el ST AR TR TR < s AL - s
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The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the People’s
Bank of China (PBOC) in accordance with relevant regulations
issued by it. As at 31 December 2017, statutory deposit
reserves placed with the PBOC were calculated at 15 per cent
(31 December 2016: 15 per cent) and 5 per cent (31 December
2016: 5 per cent) of qualified RMB deposits and foreign
currency deposits from customers respectively.

The Bank places foreign exchange risk reserve with the
PBOC monthly in accordance with relevant regulations from
October 2015 to September 2017. The foreign exchange
risk reserve is calculated at 20 per cent of the contractual
amount of forward sales of exchanges in the preceding
month and will be reserved in the Central Bank for one year.
Since September 2017, the foreign exchange risk reserve is
calculated at zero per cent of the contractual amount of
forward sales of exchanges in accordance with Yin Fa [2017]
No.207 the Notice of the People's Bank of China on adjustment of
foreign exchange risk reserve policy issued by PBOC.



2. T [E) Ml ER 15

(2) Due from banks

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
FHERRTEI R E Sy Due from domestic banks and other financial institutions 4,412,528,939 4,057,714,343
FEREMNRITE Due from overseas banks 612,577,690 225,323,700
INTF Sub-total 5,025,106,629 4,283,038,043
B FHEMREES (1) Less: Impairment provisions for due from banks (Note 1) (2,556,795) (1,065,303)
FrE %S Net amount of due from banks 5,022,549,834 4,281972,740

E1: FHEREEEHFARIRFEREL 2010145 S (HERESXT
R (RITIERIMERNIREEEES ) WiEM) HREMIHRIERX
MREES,

Note T: Impairment provisions for due from banks represented the country risk
reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45 Circular of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk
Management of the Banking Financial Institutions issued by CBRC.

.IfHEE (3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
R I 4RAT

?ﬁﬁi&tﬁ HE R RAT LR Placements with domestic banks and other financial institutions 9169,647159 8,677,677152

Hit &

/R HIEIMRITR Placements with overseas banks 360,916,090 277480,000

B IWHEMREAS (F1) Less: Impairment provisions for placements (Note 1) (3,558,000) (2,535,590)

IRHEEEE Net amount of placement with banks and other financial institutions 9,527,005,249 8,952,621,562

1 IRHREMCREEE AR A FRREREL 201045 5 (RFERESXTF
& (RITLERIMERIRKEEEES] ) MiEH) MAEmMITHRMESIRK
PR B o

4. U METERETHIT NSRS S B ~

Note 1: Impairment provisions for placements represented the country risk
reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45 Circular of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk
Management of the Banking Financial Institutions issued by CBRC.

(4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
ZE SRR Held-for-trading financial assets - )
EHEME: Bond investments:
b RITERE R EE Central bank bills and government bonds 576,006,918 -
BURMERITERS Bonds issued by policy banks 568,748,400 60,538,500
Nt Subtotal 144,755,318 60,538,500
N fFE Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,341,611,544 1,055,439,444
Ait Total 2,486,366,862 115,977,944
L — - S
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S.{TEEmMTE

TEEMTREE—MER~m, ENEBRTEARES— “&
it SR RENSREMTENMNE, BEXLE “EME” Fm
BRERE. AREM. BETH. BETNSCERMESE, &
RIEANTESMTESRENSA. EHRAN,

TESRMTAENE N EHIIEETRM A ERE" B=HS RNE,
FHRAFRHERAREBENDS . ZERNMERRTSIHZEHAR
AARMITE SR TRMREHOAMIER R ME.
KAREAERREBNTHIEEAEY IENTESMTE,

AARTFRFAGERAMFANMESHMTRNT:

(5) Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which
is derived from the value of another “underlying” financial
instrument, an index or some other variables. Typically, an
“underlying” financial instrument is a share, commodity or
bond price, an index value or an exchange or interest rate.
The Bank uses derivative instruments such as forwards,
futures, swaps and options.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount
of underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative
is based. It indicates the unsettled volume of business
transaction at the balance sheet date. The amount of
underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of derivative at
the end of accounting period other than fair value.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative
instruments are as follows:

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
NRNE nRME
Fair Value Fair Value
ZNET &= fufk BXER "= ffk
Notional Amount Assets Liabilities :l;t(i)c;::l Assets Liabilities
SNCATATR: o8N exchange

IEHIE Y Forwards 2,412,510,390 76,850,309 27,642,400 2977512974 27123758 81,246,219

HHEH Swaps 483505869264 4797862789  5110,463,233 106167533463  1640,380,280  1,632,516,609

HEN Options 69,640,429,480 246713183 81,200,104 39104,037011 191,865,101 365,296,022
it Sub-total 555,558,809,134 521,426,281 5219305737 148249083448 1859369139  2,079,058,850
FRGTEITER: Interest rate contracts:

EHEY Swaps 65,785969,296 347,036,304 362,451,591 80,289427531 452215754 448,253,907
N7 g Sub-total 65,785,969,296 347,036,304 362,451,591 80,289,427531 452,215,754 448,253,907
BRNBIE#HTE: Commodity contracts:

EHEN Swaps 3,566,583,712 65,873,686 65,028,363 3914,728,528 77,588,502 76,098,431
N7 Sub-total 3,566,583,712 65,873,686 65,028,363 3914,728,528 77,588,502 76,098,431
BREMNiBIEH TR Equity contracts:

HHEY Swaps - - - 165,599,968 222,496 4,364,437

HNEY Options 165,033,134 5,287,838 136,723 1,082,560,749 6,240,389 1,072,708
yiNA Sub-total 165,033,134 5,287,838 136,723 1,248160,717 6,462,885 5437145
BEBITETR Zﬁf\i’z;f/geta' 3564038053 36544318 12,897401 3289604544 5683135 38,713,952
ait Total 629,640,433,329 5576168427 5659819815  236991,004768 2401319415  2,647562,285

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e

102| X%M|T (hE) FRAF 207 FERE

AL - s



(6) Reverse repurchase financial assets

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
BRZBMFHE: Classified by counter-party:
SRITENL Banks 1,344,195,000 536,900,000
BEEBERSE: Classified by type of pledged assets:
&% Bonds 1,344,195,000 536,900,000
7. R F 2 (7) Interest receivables
FEMRE AEITR A F Y E FERRE
2017 Opening balance Accrued Received  Closing balance
WEMIH B Interest receivable on loans 98,534,705 1,130,561,053 (1,082,185,217) 146,910,541
EERENER B Interest receivable on bonds 65,725,810 187,297934 (190,650,321) 62,373,423
5] Ml iz U ) 2 Interest receivable from banks 22,909,481 491,356,660 (485,319,364) 28,946,777
FINIREEESNMFIE  Interest receivable on reverse repurchase bonds 366,447 16,558,247 (15,413,760) 1,510,934
&it Total 187,536,443 1,825,773,894 (1,773,568,662) 239,741,675
FEHFREM REIHR REYE FERRA
2016 Opening balance Accrued Received Closing balance
R W F B2 Interest receivable on loans 123,342,549 1,006,547,312 (1,031,355,156) 98,534,705
EHENKTE Interest receivable on bonds 94,526,291 148,747,446 (177,547927) 65,725,810
Bl Rz Y Fl B Interest receivable from banks 15,359,331 307,443,439 (299,893,289) 22,909,481
FINREBEMKFIE Interest receivable on reverse repurchase bonds - 9,382,370 (9,015,923) 366,447
&it Total 233,228,171 1,472,120,567 (1,517,812,295) 187,536,443
8. AR AEI (8) Loans and advances to customers
81N AF 557 (81) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and corporate
31-12-2017 31-12-2016
DMANGERINE Individual loans and advances:
ERERIEB Mortgages 6,681,291,039 6,302,047,103
Hib Others 3,368,364 3,839,340
INGT Sub-total 6,684,659403 6,305,886,443
Al BRI Corporate loans and advances:
wE Loans 15,786,000,878 14,799,214,194
MEER Discounted bills 864,418,688 444182,510
BEeE Trade finance 4,349,778,539 2,852,039,986
INT Sub-total 21,000,198,105 18,095,436,690
BRMBRDE Total 27,684,857,508 24,401,323]133
B WERKRES Less: Loan impairment provision (548,260,721) (514,007,074)
WA BRI E N E Net value of loans and advances to customers 27136,596,787 23,887,216,059

L adry SRS AR WA T = R R -
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8.2 T o7 (8.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by industry
31-12-2017
T TET SR &0 Ll (%)
Amount Percentage( %)
S Manufacturing 6,886,974,376 25%
Bl Real estates 5,368,776,845 20%
#HEMEE Wholesale and retail 4,510,605,460 16%
EBEMER Accommodation and catering 1,510,671,427 6%
HEMESRS L Leasing and commercial services 758,546,299 3%
B B SR ARRE Telecommunicatic?n, software and information 541938086 2%
management service
FIEITH . SEFNAREL Transportation, storage and post 372,827,537 1%
ERl Finance 364,859,686 1%
gl Construction 289265974 1%
TR Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 188,312,865 1%
Bh., #h, MR RKEF=EER Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 113,911,663 0%
FEW RN ARRSE A Scientific research and technical services 83,140,785 0%
BRRS. EEMEMARS Residents services, repair and other services 8,000,000 0%
D&%, HteREMRESER Health, social security and social welfare 2,367102 0%
AKF . FREBAIA IS MR \a/!z:;?r:izgr;igr\:ancy, environment and public facilities ) 0%
I Personal credit 6,684,659,403 24%
REFNE SR Total amount of loans and advances 27,684,857,508 100%
B RRRKEE Less: Loan impairment provision (548,260,721)
AN ENE Net value of loans and advances 27136,596,787

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e AL - s
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31-12-2016

T E AR EE Bl (%)
Amount Percentage( %)
gl Manufacturing 5,093,913199 21%
Bl Real estates 4,553,699,015 19%
HtEFMTFEL Wholesale and retail 438,053,489 7%
EEME R Accommodation and catering 1,957,586,311 8%
HEMEEREL Leasing and commercial services 369,347,257 1%
(B A B R AR IR Telecommunicatiqn, software and information 563,824,662 2%
management service
RiEizH . CHEFERELL Transportation, storage and post 651,132,209 3%
A Finance - 0%
#Eyl Construction 330,185,584 1%
ARl Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 204,962,270 1%
B, #h, MK RKEFFEER Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 215,603,897 1%
R EHA R ARR S Scientific research and technical services 4,228,797 0%
BRIRE. BEMEMRE L Residents services, repair and other services 4,500,000 0%
&, #HEREMTSERIE Health, social security and social welfare - 0%
AF . TREFIA G TR Z!if;éﬁzﬁg:ancy, environment and public facilities 8,400,000 0%
INGEA Personal credit 6,305,886,443 26%
PR FnE R B0 Total amount of loans and advances 24,401,323]133 100%
B BRIRKES Less: Loan impairment provision (514)07,074)
BRI BR M ENME Net value of loans and advances 23,887,216,059
83 IRMX % (8.3) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
geographical region
31-12-2017 31-12-2016
%4t North-east 919,983,659 912,680,483
%®x East 15,131,718,602 13,753,535,100
i North 4,220,128,887 4115902,136
terh Central 380,899,386 227,948,904
*5 South 3,755,672,857 2,140,709,089
id):7 South-west 1,948,988,785 2,077,960,123
At North-west 81,232,060 109976,948
MK Overseas 1,246,233,272 1,062,610,350
RERFNRE S0 Total amount of loans and advances 27,684,857,508 24,401,323]133
Bl: REMKESF Less: Loan impairment provision (548,260,721 (514,07,074)
GERANBE R IKE N E Net value of loans and advances 27136,596,787 23,887,216,059
S e e =
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8ARBERARNSH (8.4) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral or
guarantee
31-12-2017 31-12-2016
IB:EER Unsecured loans 4,374,833295 5,045,246,347
RIESEK Guaranteed loans 467,047,023 2,571771,928
EEEREL A Loans with collaterals 19]142,977190 16,784,304,858
Hrh: Of which:
Y =0 Secured by mortgages 15,236,029,733 13,463,871,181
BT Secured by pledges 3906,947,457 3,320,433,677
WA BREE Total amount of loans and advances 27,684,857,508 24,401,323,133
B BRIk ES Less: Loan impairment provision (548,260,721) (514,107,074)
Ty B K E B Net value of loans and advances 27136,596,787 23,887216,059
8.5 B HA T =x (8.5) Overdue Loan
31-12-2017
wmxzsox TS WREEE amenr an
Overdue 1day to  Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1yearto  Overdue 3 years
90 days 1year (inclusive) 3 years(inclusive) above Total
[SEGER Unsecured loans - - 1,866,660 - 1,866,660
HERER Guaranteed loans - - 13,539,928 - 13539928
g e NS EN Loans with collaterals 18,018,820 1,942,385 162,046,910 31,601,717 213,609,832
He: Of which:
HEIRGERR Secured by mortgages 18,018,820 1,942,385 162,046,910 31,601,717 213,609,832
&it Total 18,018,820 1942,385 177453,498 31,601,717 229,016,420
31-12-2016
wmxzsox  TPUEE WREEE mmenr an
Overdue 1day to  Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1yearto Overdue 3 years
90 days 1 year (inclusive) 3 years(inclusive) above Total
EHE Unsecured loans - - 4,286,845 - 4,286,845
RIESTR Guaranteed loans - - - 3,553,872 3,553,872
gk R Loans with collaterals 369,707 45798906 243,481,088 18,352,302 308,002,003
He. Of which:
IR Secured by mortgages 369,707 45,798,906 164,989,798 18,352,302 229,510,713
TR Secured by pledges - - 78,491,290 - 78491290
&it Total 369,707 45,798,906 247767933 21906,174 315,842,720

WEART R RIE A S HF 2EE 1 RN E BB,

Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related interests are overdue for one day or above.

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e
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6 tyRRk R (MEER, 14)

(8.6) Loan impairment provision(Note 6.14)

2017
BT HE &it
Individual Collective Total
FERRE Opening balance 165,446,482 348,660,592 514,107,074
RETTHR Charge during the year 4,083,051 127,746,737 131,829,788
AL Writing off during the year (91912,565) - (91912,565)
W B LA BT 4 B A% S 2 Recovery of loans and advances previously written off 958,143 - 958143
LERER Exchange rate difference (1,941,656) (4,780,063) (6,721,719)
FEREH Closing balance 76,633,455 471,627,266 548,260,721
2016

BALR AHE &1t
Individual Collective Total
FERREN Opening balance 99,273,351 353,620,936 452,894,287
AEITHE Charge during the year 65,620,007 (10,558,295) 55,061,712
W [ LR 4 BE A SH 2 Recovery of loans and advances previously written off 90,198 - 90,198
LRER Exchange rate difference 462926 5,597,951 6,060,877
FERRE Closing balance 165,446,482 348,660,592 514,107,074

9. At HESRA (9) Available-for-sale financial assets
31-12-2017 3112-2016

EHERHE: Bond investments:

hRRITEREEE Central Bank bills and government bonds 2,875,525,022 2977840723
BURIESRITES Bonds issued by policy banks 99,937,840 201,090,040
liN7 g Sub-total 2,975,462,862 3,178,930,763
E {7 Negotiable certificate of deposits 1,393,762,411 578,707157
&1t Total 4,369,225,273 3,757,637,920
B I ——— - R
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10. EIEHFE

(10) Fixed assets

BEERETY g% DA BNIEE &it
2017 Propertigs gnd Motor vehicles Office equipment and Total
buildings computers
Er: Cost:
207 181H At 1January 2017 5,793,690 2,508,008 M,463,967 119,765,665
AL H Additions - 368173 9960980 10329153
ZF%EE\IE;F%)\ Z,La::(sefeér' T]C;OZT construction in progress i i 3189.846 3189846
RELHE Disposals - (338,000) (9294397)  (9.632397)
20712 A31H At 31 December 2017 5,793,690 2,538,181 115,320,396 123,652,267
Kit#rIa: Accumulated depreciation:
207 181H At 1January 2017 1,796,047 1,671,154 77,283,084 80,750,285
AEITR Additions 115,874 389,311 1,693,847 12,199,032
KELE Disposals - (338,000) (8,010,034)  (8,348,034)
201712 A31H At 31 December 2017 191,921 1,722,465 80,966,897 84,601,283
Bl &= S E R S5 Net book value and net carrying amount
2017 £ 12 B31H At 31 December 2017 3,881,769 815,716 34,353,499 39,050,984
EERETY EHiE DR BNEE &it
2016 Propertigs gnd Motor vehicles Office equipment and Total
buildings computers
Efr: Cost:
2016 E£1H1H At 1January 2016 - 2,508,008 95,034,816 97,542,824
A EFHE N Additions 5,793,690 - 1,812,783 17,606,473
Z{K;gf‘lfizﬁ))\ Z'I:Iaorlsefeér. %ozr;w construction in progress ) ) 5,635,524 5,635,524
AERE Disposals - - (1,019156) (1,019156)
2016 £ 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 5,793,690 2,508,008 1,463,967 119,765,665
it Accumulated depreciation:
2016 E£1H1H At 1January 2016 - 1,270,524 65,464,531 66,735,055
AEITR Additions 1,796,047 400,630 12,730,749 14,927,426
AELHE Disposals - - (912,196) (912,196)
2016 ££12 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 1,796,047 1,671,154 77,283,084 80,750,285
BE &= R E R EE Net book value and net carrying amount
2016 £ 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 3,997,643 836,854 34,180,883 39,015,380

F207E12A31BK206E12 A3 H, BERERYALRATRMEBEENNDLNRE,

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the properties and buildings represent the office capitilised under finance lease.

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e
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N. THREF~

(1) Intangible assets

2017 2016
BRiFigE Software
FEfr: Cost or valuation:
EREN Opening balance 165,733,088 115,757,776
REME Additions 2,236,598 4,063,505
o [ Transfer from construction in
ERIEEAN (HER. 13.2) orogress (Note 6. 13.2) 34,549,902 45911,807
ERREN Closing balance 202,519,588 165,733,088
HitH: Accumulated amortisation:
S AT W TE R FR Opening balance 64,787,689 51,345,188
KEHR Additions 19183,216 13,442,501
FEREREN Closing balance 83,970,905 64,787,689
TR A EN S Net carrying amount
FERRE Closing balance 118,548,683 100,945,399
12. B EFRER R~ (12) Deferred tax assets
2017
B ERA Deferred tax assets FRE AEHARR  TEREAN e
FIEENE
Opening Credited/(Charged) Credited/(Charged) Closing
balance to income statement to equity balance
RRBRKES Loan impairment provision 52,019101 19,881,824 - 71900925
Hih B =Rk gE& Bad debt allowance for other assets 351,475 (351,475) - -
AT 4 Bl o ok SoEIE 2% Unrealised profit or loss on available- 181384 ) 2310953 2492337
PSSR AR for-sale financial assets ’ T e
TEEMIEARMETEIIREE Changes in fair value of derivatives (22,465,656) (46,759189) - (69,224,845)
FEAES AR RETZ (bi:rz:l?sges in fair value of gold from (6,333.243) 13529929 ) 7196,686
TR TITEARRSE Payroll payables 1,797,603 904,184 - 2,701,787
RN TR Changes in fair value of structured ]
NRMETTHIRE deposits embedded with options 4,381,099 1490241 >871340
bt 3] Accrued liabilities 2,386,346 8,006,705 - 10,393,051
CIEGENRE ] Deductible tax losses 22,178,187 (2,958,734) - 19219453
Hith Others 2,783,415 (1,439,210) - 1,344,205
&it Total 57,279,711 (7,695,725) 2310953 51,894,939
Pl mades S AR ITIAR W = R R . el T ) . = - FO
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2016

B FTIS R R = Deferred tax assets FEEE AEFNRZE ZKEEE&LVI-L\ ERAT
FEE S
Opening Credited/(Charged) Credited/(Charged) Closing
balance to income statement to equity balance
REHRKRES Loan impairment provision 54,616,162 (2,597,061) - 52,019,101
Htt @ =Rk kS Bad debt allowance for other assets - 351,475 - 351,475
AT £ & B = ok S IR 35 Unrealised profit or loss on available- (5,327577) ) 5508901 181384
e SRR for-sale financial assets e T '
FTESRTENRMETEIRZE  Changes in fair value of derivatives (552,582) (21913,074) - (22.465,656)
FAE LA R NMESH E:;E;ges in fair value of gold from ) (6,333,243) (6,333.243)
BRI T AR K S Payroll payables 3,008,716 (1,21,113) - 1797603
N B TR Changes in fair value of structured i
ARNMETFIRE deposits embedded with options (5,353,646) 9734745 4,381,099
g% H Accrued liabilities 12,559,236 (10,172,890) - 2,386,346
AN Deductible tax losses - 22178187 - 22)78)87
it Others 5098314 (2314,899) - 2783415
&it Total 64,048,683 (12,277,873) 5,508,901 57,279,771

F27E 12 A3 H, AAARBEITARRGBFITM, URATEEE
BRARKINTRNSRN AR AHRIETARBIANSART
76,877,811 STAI R0 S A X RIB EATER Z = A AR 19219453 7T,
Z|EAH A 2021 F,

F 2016 F£12 A31H, AATRFEIIRFIBFITM, URATEEE
BRARRINTIRN SRR R NHET ST ARBHIANSART
88,712,748 LA IN S KX KR EMBEH E=H AR T 22178187
T, AN S AR T 4405385 BRI HI H A 2019 &£, AR
63,414,341 K9 2| HI H 5 2020 &£, AR 20,893,022 K9 ZIHI H 4 2021 £,

3. HEfhmz /=

As at 31 December 2017, based on the profit forecast and
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the unused tax loesses can
be utilised, the Bank recognised deferred tax asset of RMB
19,219,453 arising from unused tax losses of RMB76,877,811,
among which will expire in Year 2021.

As at 31 December 2016, based on the profit forecast and
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the unused tax loesses can
be utilised, the Bank recognised deferred tax asset of RMB
22,178,187 arising from unused tax losses of RMB88,712,718,
among which RMB4,405,385 will expire in Year 2019, RMB
63,414,341 will expire in Year 2020 and RMB20,893,022 will
expire in Year 2021.

(13) Other assets

B iE

Notes 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
KHESMER Long-term deferred expenses 131 89,699,739 72,168,358
EEITTRRE Construction in process 13.2 9414116 33196,977
H b 57 =k Other receivables 133 314,982,809 58,415,962
FIME IR Input VAT to be verified 4,077,802 3,010,521
&it Total 418,174,466 166,791,818
S
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131 KEAFE 2R A

(13.1) Long-term deferred expenses

SR BAAEER"MRXZH &it
2017
Membership fee Leasehold improvement Total
FHRE Opening balance 112,031 72,056,327 72,168,358
TN Additions 1,500,000 3,541,361 5,041,361
REAZTIEH®N  Transfer from construction in i

( BiEFS, 132) progress (Note 6.13.2) 28,591,727 28591727
A Amortisation (81,837) (16,019,870) (16]101,707)
EREE Closing balance 1,530,194 88,169,545 89,699,739

b HANEER"HRZH HEH &it
2016
Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
FEHERE Opening balance 116,068 32,267,805 2,958,920 35,342,793
RGN Additions - 17901344 - 17,901,344
AREFERTIIEHEN  Transfer from construction in i _

( BiE7S. 13.2) progress (Note 6.13.2) 38,691,221 38,691,221
RERE Disposal - (188,594) (2,958,920) (3,147,514)
INEPREE Amortisation (4,037) (16,615,449) - (16,619,486)
FREE Closing balance 112,031 72,056,327 - 72,168,358
BLEEIE (13.2) Construction in progress

2017 2016

FEHREN Opening balance 33196,977 34,464,264
AN Additions 42,548,614 88,971,265
BANEEZ” (MiE, 10) Transfer to fixed assets (Note 6. 10) (3189,846) (5,635,524)
BNLRES (MENR. 1) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 6. 11) (34,549902) (45,91,807)
ENKEASMER (MiEsS, 131)  Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Note 6.13.1) (28,591,727) (38,691,221)
FREHE Net closing balance 9,414,116 33196,977
L adry SRS AR WA T s - I . = - FO
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13.3 E Al Sk

(13.3) Other receivables

e Ageing 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
1EMRH Within 1year 288,365,214 33,115,615
1-2 & 1-2 years 14,934,554 10,172,118
2-3 2-3 years 3,423,272 4,711,648
3ERE More than 3 years 8,259,769 1,822,482
Mt Sub-total 314,982,809 59,821,863
B RESR Less: Bad debt allowance - (1,405,901)
&it Total 314,982,809 58,415,962
14. ZERBEES (14) Provision for impairment losses
1o O
e 2t$1+$§/ Y ] AR e . P
2017
Opening Accrual/ Recovgry of Writing off Exchange rate Closing
assets previously , . .
balance (Reversal) . during the year difference balance
written-off
FEREMBE/AESE  Impairment provision for due
(BHiEA. 2) from banks (Note 6.2) 1,065,303 1,491,492 2,556,795
IR BB {EAE  Impairment provision for . . B
( BEF. 3) placements with banks (Note 6.3) 2,535,590 1022410 3,558,000
REHRKRES Impairment provision for loans
SIFAIR p p
7 514,107,074 131,829,788 958,143 91,912,565 6,721,719 548,260,721
( MHEAR. 86) (Note 6. 8.6) ( ) ( )
Hth 7R ER M & Bad debt allowance for other
(BEA. 133) assets (Note 6133) 1405901 (165,203) (1,240,698
&it Total 519]113,868 134,178,487 958,143 (93,153,263) (6,721,719) 554,375,516
. AEIHR/ =Y EEn) .
=] e A NEEA 4
2016
Opening Accrual/ Recovgry of Exchange rate Closing
assets previously -
balance (Reversal) . difference balance
written-off
FHERERE®E  Impairment provision for due i i
( BEA. 2) from banks (Note 6.2) 5,984,132 (4,918,829) 1,065,303
HFHEMSEAESE  Impairment provision for B B
( BftEF. 3) placements with banks (Note 6.3) 3,958,560 (1422970) 2,535,590
R ER Impairment provision for loans
A 452,894,287 55,061,712 90,198 6,060,877 514,107,074
( BiES. 86) (Note 6. 8.6)
H b 7 =R AR e %% Bad debt allowance for other
( BFEFS. 133) assets (Note 6.13.3) ) 1405501 ) ) 1405901
Hith Others 422,084 (422,084) - - =
&it Total 463,259,063 49,703,730 90,198 6,060,877 5197113,868

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e
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15. & ol 2 B Ath & BAML A 77 L

(15) Due to banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
B RRITRE K E i & BT Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 1,202 2,150,006,266
EIMRITEILTFR Due to overseas banks 874,156,157 956,322,877
&it Total 874,157,359 3106,329143

16. IRNEE

(16) Placements from banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
BRRITRMIRANEREBN Placements from domestic banks 522,736,000 138,740,000
BIMRITEMARNREN Placements from overseas banks 18,752,081,004 14163,023,721
&it Total 19,274,817,004 14,301,763,721

F2017E12 A3H, WIHRITRMFANRBANS, UARMNME
HEBETHITALSHRBNESIKRARTA AR 2,397,504,245
T (2016 ££ 12 A 31 B: 529767027 7T ), F 2017 £ 12 A 31 A,
UARMEHEEETHITANSHRBENERLIRARTAART
1,362,073,633 JC (2016 &£ 12 A 31 H: AR 1,578,387,461 JC ),

17. IR TEER

As at 31 December 2017, of the placements from overseas
banks, the balance of gold borrowing at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to RMB2,397,504,245 (RMB529,767,027
as at 31 December 2016). As at 31 December 31, 2017, the balance
of the interbank placements at fair value through profit or
loss amounted to RMB1,362,073,633 (RMB1,578,387,461 as at 31
December 2016).

(17) Customer deposits

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
EHER Current deposits
UNGIES =] Corporate customers 7,775,205,953 7,253,209,184
MAERA Individual customers 613,234,996 603,464,398
N Sub-total 8,388,440,949 7,856,673,582
TEHITEER Time deposits
NEER Corporate customers 19,999,410,683 15,057,807,624
MTAERA Individual customers 1,884,960,583 2,270,824,545
N Sub-total 21,884,371,266 17,328,632,169
&it Total 30,272,812,215 25,185,305,751

F207FE12ANH, REERFESNEHETERRTAART
6,397,752,674 T (2016 F£ 12 A 31 H: AR 3,746790,268 7t ), Hrh
BMAWTESRTE, TEAHN. BRENEEHEHERERNE
RS, EREMETERFMRANTESRIERIANEAS
FARREZYER, Efh AR 995,287,361 7t (2016 ££12 A 31 H:
AR 1126344,436 7T ) &M EFERHEBFREEARMEITE,
F4 AR 5402,465,313 7T (2016 4612 A 31 B: AR 2,620,445,8327T)
KWIEE, AAFELEEFHNHRARTESBRTESERS IR,
HEARMEBHNTE SR ITERTH,

As at 31 December 2017, the structured deposits in customer
deposits amounted to RMB6,397,752,674(RMB3,746,790,268
as at 31 December 2016). These structured deposits are
embedded with derivatives which are mainly options,
equity swaps and commodity swaps, and are considered
not closely related to the host contract. RMB995,287,361
(RMB1,126,344,436 as at 31 December 2016) of these structured
deposits are designated as at fair value through profit or loss
as a whole while the rest RMB5,402,465,313(RMB2,620,445,832
as at 31 December 2016) are not designated. Consequently,
the derivatives instruments embedded therein are separated
and the fair value is recorded in derivative assets or liabilities.

Pl mades S AR ITIAR W = R ey L
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18. Rz fYER T #rEA

(18) Payroll payables

Kr&m Amount unpaid 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
T3, #4 ., ENGFNAME Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 76,915,620 58,571,559
LRI Social insurance 1,820,542 4,206,593
ISREBENMRIHFRE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 39910 43977
B ERTEFITRI Defined contribution plan 9,251,333 10,742,829
Hrh: ERFEEREE Of which: Pension fund 3,750,343 5,515,068
1l & 8% Annuity 5,500,990 5,227,761
&it Total 88,027,405 73,564,958
AT & E Amount payables
2017 2016
T&., &, EIGFEME Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 457,070,481 416,295,183
SR Social insurance 23,098,410 22,728,438
EBEATRS Housing fund 20,246,850 18,430,280
TITERZRHBMPIHETRLE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 4,563,904 6,638,998
& EREFITRI Defined contribution plan 43,802,817 40,587,624
Hrh: BEAFEZERE Of which: Pension fund 37,083,719 34,587,286
ol &5 % Annuity 6,719,098 6,000,338
Hit5RTHXMER Other staff related expenses 17,906,620 17,368,167
&it Total 566,689,082 522,048,690
19. RZ 3%t %% (19) Tax payables
31-12-2017 31-12-2016
BER Value added tax 18,349,271 13,819,505
g5zl Tax surcharges 2,210,500 1,858,543
R INREFL IR Withholding tax 32,082,170 28,369,480
Hit Others 155,583 137319
&it Total 52,797,524 4484,847

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e
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20. MZfHFI2

(20) Interest payables

FEHRE AEITR REZf FERRER

2017
Opening balance Accrued Paid Closing balance
FRRAR R Interest payable to depositors 217,498,754 562,622,331 (525,146,267) 254,974,818
Bl ) 2R E A E;Elifjnzayjﬂ:;o 72,642,432 270,049,669 (299,269.983) 4342218
&it Total 290,141,186 832,672,000 (824,416,250) 298,396,936
FERE AETHR AEZf ERRE

2016
Opening balance Accrued Paid Closing balance
EEREAFE Interest payable to depositors 298,966,683 543,857,535 (625,325,464) 217,498.754
Bl 4R B R E b E;sgjnzaysm:éo 53,607,087 132,273,868 (113,238,523) 72,642,432
&it Total 352,573,770 676,131,403 (738,563,987) 290,141,186

(21) Other liabilities

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
FHEERFERM Settlement and clearing 100,966,741 3,144,681
BT IT RGEREE IT system service fee 45117234 15,499,404
HEEH Renovation payable 8,428,858 7,990,192
Hit Others 30,197,377 49,263,501
&it Total 184,710,210 75,897,778

22, LR A

(22) Paid-up capital

MR SEW R A Paid-up capital
2017 2016
HEEART % ZEAR™M %
RMB equivalent RMB equivalent
KERITHERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 5,500,000,000 100 5,500,000,000 100

23. AR

(23) Capital reserve

BANREANANSNE TRS, SHURAZMAITHT, iz In exchange for employee service, the Bank runs a share-

FHHRMZMHNBERARBRE,

based compensation program which is equity settled with a
corresponding charge to the capital reserve.

L adry SRS AR WA T = R R - I . = 2 ETE
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24. HfthZZ &Y 58
BrEamRPEMRESKERRRET:

(24) Other comprehensive income
Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the

balance sheet:

RN

1-1-2017 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2017

AHHESREARMETE Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (544,152) (6,932,858) (7,477,010)
BRE

1-1-2016 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2016

AHEHESREST ARMETE Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 15,982,550 (16,526,702) (544,152)

FERPREMEAW LIRS

Other comprehensive income in the income statement:

B AU

2017 BETEm HiZEW=m B FiBH BEEE
LA NI
Before tax Le'ss: Transfer to the Less: Tax After tax
income statement
WEBES EH#HR Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
S HMmE SRS income statement
AEHESRE~ Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial )
NRMETE assets (9243,81) 2310953 (6932,858)
B BT
2016 HATEE Hitgzals B iEH BEEm
LEAE N IR
Before tax L?SS: Transfer to the Less: Tax After tax
income statement
B ES R Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
S EAME S KR income statement
AEHESRET Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial )
DNRNMETE) assets (22,035,603) 5,508,901 (16,526,702)
25. BERAT (25) Surplus reserves
2017 2016
FRE Openning balance 86,426,113 82,099,792
AN Increase 13,600,394 4,326,321
ERRE Closing balance 100,026,507 86,426]13

RIERRIEMAA R ERHME, H4E 2018 F3 A 23 HEFSRIL,
AR AHREFER 0% REGEEBRRARE, FEBRARBRITEH
AARIEMZA 50% ML ER), ATABRN,

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e AL - s
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According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Bank’s
Articles of Association, accompanied with resolution passed
by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018, the Bank has
appropriated 10 per cent of its profit to the statutory surplus
reserves. The Bank should appropriate until the reserve balance
reaches 50 per cent of its registered capital or above.



ARAERBZEERRAREE, TRBRESERARE, E4tH,
ERREFRARETATHRAMAGEESIRBIEMBR AR, RIBFALRE
SEWHRIY, FEEFRBEZRRARE.

26. — R IXUBE e

After the statutory surplus reserves are appropriated,
the Bank may appropriate discretionary surplus reserves.
Discretionary surplus reserves can be used to compensate
for the accumulated losses of previous years or convert to
capital upon approval. It has been determined by the Board of
Directors of the Bank that no discretionary surplus reserves are
to be appropriated this year.

(26) General reserves

2017 2016
EREN Openning balance 588,421,509 564,261,213
BN Increase 120,036,929 24,160,296
ERRE Closing balance 708,458,438 588,421,509

AANTFREBITE [2012]20 S ( &R IEESITREE ML) WM
E, B EFE R RN _E MR T RS A =R K5 1.5% Btk flitiR
— RS, EAFESEE, AATRIE 2018 E3 23 BY
EELRIY, RI—EREEEZIT ART 120,036929 5T, —HRREE
ERECIABIRE A F=HIRRE 1.5%,

27. RS BLFE

According to the regulation CaiJin [2012] No. 20 Financial
institution provision measurement Guideline, the Bank is required
to set aside general reserves of at least 1.5 per cent of its total
risk assets at year end from net profit. The Bank appropriated
general reserve amounting to RMB 120,036,929 according to
the resolution passed by the Board of Directors on 23 March
2018 and the amount has been up to 1.5 per cent of its total
risk assets.

(27) Retained earnings

2017 2016

FERAR S EFE Retained earnings brought forward 480,168,283 465,391,689
#FE Net profit for the year 136,003,938 43263211
B BEBGEERRAR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (13,600,394) (4,326,321)
B — A1 RS 7 B Less: Appropriation to general reserves (120,036,929) (24,160,296)
FERRSEFE Closing balance of retained earnings 482,534,898 480,168,283

RIBE(PEAREFERTE ) RAXARATER, ALRFIEE ()
HREMARSEE; (2 WUBTEESH; 3) REERRARE;
(@) IRB—MREHEE; ) RREBRERAREE, ATFESER
KABBRTF, — A ESEEENESHRILOIERFSEXEMN
AR T, HAAREESRE,

SEFERREHFARNERTSRE, HSEEELER, SRR
HEittEXpEEMERE,

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles
of Association of the Bank, the profit of the Bank can only
be distributed to shareholders after (1) fulfilling all tax
responsibilities; (2) compensating any accumulated losses; (3)
making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves; (4) making
appropriation to the general reserves; (5) making appropriation
to discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios
of the general reserves and surplus reserves are decided by
the Bank's Board of Directors in compliance with relevant
regulations.

The profit appropriation is decided by the Board of Directors
of the Bank, with reference to the operating performance,
financial positions, and other relevant factors.

Pl mades S AR ITIAR W = R ey L
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28. F 2 HIN

(28) Net interest income

2017 2016
FEYBN Interest income:
TR R AR R Al Due from banks and placement with banks and other financial institutions 421172,427 244,158,381
ErhRiR1T Due from the Central Bank 70,184,233 61,538,855
EH T E = Loans and advances to customers 1130,561,053 1,008,293,515
INBRERESE Reverse repurchase financial assets-bonds 16,558,247 9,382,370
Nt Sub-total 1,638,475,960 1323373121
FIEEZH: Interest expense:
[5] Ml % E Ath & BRHLA TR Due to banks and other financial institutions 7789,644 10,704,636
W 1FE=R Customer deposits 562,622,331 543,857,535
IRNEENEM Placement from banks and other financial institutions and others 262,260,025 121,569,232
Nt Sub-total 832,672,000 676,131,403
FARSRET PN Net interest income 805,803,960 647241718
29. FEERELEFIN (29) Net fees and commission income

2017 2016
FEHBRRAEBN: Fees and commission income:
HES5EFEEFEHR Settlement and clearing fees 20,724,424 22,650,549
RIBAZF5% Agency brokerage fees 10,395,314 6,334,285
ERREFER Credit commitment fees 33473122 30,265,687
EEEAXIEAN Credit related income 59,015,657 85,092,838
Hith Others 26,861,135 19,076,803
N Sub-total 150,469,652 163,420,162
FEHERAEIH: Fees and commission expense:
FHEHETH Fee expenses 35,493,370 28,080,604
INMT Sub-total 35,493,370 28,080,604
FEHERAESEKRN Net fees and commission income 114,976,282 135,339,558

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e
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30. #E Wz

(30) Investment income

2017 2016
AR SMBERNESEEEE Gain on disposal of held-for-trading bond investments (1,907121) 8,007,257
TESMTECOSI SRS Net realised gain / (loss) on derivatives 65,823,549 21,674,248
EEREFRWN Bond interest income 187.297.934 148747446
&it Total 251,214,362 178,428,951
3. R RMET T EWE (31) Gains from changes in fair values

2017 2016
A RMETEN S RE= Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,274,015 (7,715,585)
fTEEmMT AR Derivative financial instruments 186,335,903 35,973,686
FNEE Gold borrowing (54119,717) 25,332,973
ZEHEESREM Structured deposits and others (7,550,001) 1,597,019
&it Total 125,940,200 65,188,093

32 LR RICEF iRk

CRRECESRERREESAEIMNOLSHEXETERN. INCE
R Z R EHER SR TR ENE SRR A RMET IR
#HIA R ST R R P S B = A R 3

33. Hfthirza

(32) Foreign exchange loss

Foreign exchange loss includes foreign exchange earnings
related to self operated foreign exchange business, realised and
unrealised gains and losses arising from foreign exchange swap
and cross currency swap, and exchange gains and losses arising
from conversion of foreign currency assets and liabilities.

(33) Other income

2017 2016

5 #5418 X B BUF M B

Income-related on government subsidies

6,026,114 -

34, I RETRE

(34) General and administrative expenses

2017 2016

RI%A Staff costs 562,906,730 522,048,690
Eill=E S Depreciation 12,199,032 14,927,426
BrEEPisy R Amortisation 35,284,923 30,061,987
I &# B Other operating expenses 263,491,262 247133,468
&it Total 873,881,947 814,171,571
I —— g - S
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35. RFERERRK

(35) Impairment losses

2017 2016

FHEMRER R Impairment losses for due from banks 1,491,492 (4,918,829)

R E R ER % Impairment losses for placements with banks 1,022,410 (1,422,970)

WEURER K Impairment losses for loans 131,829,788 55,061,712

HAi IR E Rk Impairment losses for other receivables (165,203) 1,405,901

Hith Others - (422,084)

ait Total 134,178,487 49703730
36. fF5Fi 2 A (36) Income tax expenses

2017 2016

R IE FT 15 F5 Deferred income tax expenses 7,695,725 13,553,711

PS8 ASHEBHHXRITIMT:

is as follows:

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before tax

2017 2016
FRETFIE Profit before tax 143,699,663 56,816,922
IREEBER 25% T ERFEIN Tax charge on a tax rate at 25 per cent 35,924,916 14,204,231
ot WA BT HA 18] % 15 14 ) B2 Adjustment in respect of prior periods 6,402,960 (577,058)
=B EERFIRBN Interest income of government bonds (17,065,157) (18,580,496)
NI 3 Non-deductible items 3,214,245 2,729M
RN TN R 2 RHIR0E  Unrecognised deductible temporary differences - 15777923
FAMURIEEFARINSHR Use of previous annual deductible losses (20,781,239) -
FriEFisR A Income tax expenses 7,695,725 13,553,711

Pl el ST AR IR EE T RS e
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37, MeRBRITAR

(37) Supplementary information for the statement of cash

flows
2017 2016
1. BEFEATAZLEEIINIAERE: 1 Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:
AT Net profit 136,003,938 43,263,211
BERERK Impairment losses 134,178,487 49,703,730
B E # =415 Fixed assets depreciation 12,199,032 14,927,426
bR i3] Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 19,183,216 13,442,501
JCHA I 2R PR eSS Amortisation for long-term deferred expenses 16,101,707 16,619,486
%i?(ﬁfg)/ A RART (Gains)/losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets (5184) 175,625
RAMEL S Gain from changes in fair value (125940200)  (65]188,093)
Ead L Investment income (263,834118)  (211,934,008)
TR S Foreign exchange losses 252,194,100 82,794,568
eIy e Changes in deferred tax assets/liabilities 7,695,725 12,277,873
ZEUNKIBER (&m) /B (Increase)/decrease in operating receivables (4,372,277,088)  (6,219,272,649)
ZEMMTI BRI / (B ) Increase/(decrease) in operating payables 7569,832,053  7,257,846,362
REENTFENNERESRT Net cash flows from operating activities 3,385,331,668 994,656,032
2, MERIMELEMMETIER: 2. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

MEHERELN Cash on hand at end of year 13,235,129 15,195,504
Bl MEHERE Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year 15,195,504 21,540,936
mn: MEENYRHEREE Add: Cash equivalents at end of year 14,313,497,802  10,424,249,663
Bl: MEEMIHNESRER Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year 10,424,249,663  8,578,300,377
W& BIMEZE NS ingn Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,887287764  1,839,603,854

Pl mades S AR ITIAR W = R R
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T
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38. MERMEEMY

(38) Cash and cash equivalent

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
ne Cash 13,235,129 15,195,504
MEEN: Cash equivalents:
FEIRE=NAIAE With original maturity less than three months
- R E SRR -Due from banks 5,025106,629  4,183,038,043
-FHES -Placements with banks and other financial institutions 2748165970  2,996,451,871
- INRESREF" -Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,344195,000 536,900,000
2 7 = N ! o .
BRI fordoustbl oo e e
TFER P RRITE MR Other deposits with the Central Bank 1,832921,691  1511,690,947
it Sub-total 14,313,497,802 10,424,249,663
&it Total 14,326,732,931 10,439,445,167

39. R4

A BRI RE 4 S A K B 4 PR ) 1 AR R i X 0 AR E Y AU
THl. HEITXIS RMBGHRKRERITHREG, F207E£12A
31 B % 77 59 PR U1 AR ZE 330 1 X1 89 BR 44 HA 4 4 190,005 14, 1T
WNEAETH T, FRERABRTEEAN1ZEIE; F207E12AH
31 BRMTI AR EI AR 31113 4, RISSFEHRN 3 £,

Pl el ST AR TR TR T RS e L i e
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(39) Share-based compensation plans

Share-based compensation plans of the Bank comprise the
Restricted Share Plan and the Share Appreciation Rights Plan.
All shares involved are the shares of UOB. As at 31 December
2017, the number of outstanding grants of Restricted Shares
was 190,005, with an exercise price of zero Singapore dollar
and the remaining contractual period of 1-3 years. As at 31
December 2017, the number of outstanding grants of Share
Appreciation Rights was 31,113 and the remaining contractual
period was 3 years.



t. FEbIRE

ARERBABARLEN. EEERENBIREHEHE TR
TS, FERTUESED. KSR SHMREM SR
RABBBH® 4 MEES . BMRESTAEMHWEZHE, =
BABMERNGE S, ZRAEEERSERFRARE B E
FRHURERDERERR. TS,

AARRESRBHEZLZINT:

PLAAIRIT 581
EELEMRBEIFER. BHRME. FRARS., FEEE, SMC
EEREEEMARS

FERITHE
BMAZPRAESENARR. FRRS.
MRS FICRER S

WITFRS . S AEM

IR & RSB
BEFRITETSHHTERS W SBXHENIFERS. EMEZ5.
HRETREHE, URMNCREERT M. FAERTEFRNZ S

H ol 55 7 A 53 BRIt B 53 8B
EAGERAE LRENSMHAREEGESEMAIHT, fAfk. A
RExH,

ATENENRBHL SR OERERE, FAREERSEHE
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7. Segment Information

The Bank is organised into four different operating segments,
namely wholesale banking, retail banking, global markets,
and others and unallocated based on internal organisational
structure, management requirement and internal reporting
system. Every reporting segment, which is individual
business segent, provides different products and services.
Management periodically reviews the financial information
of the segments to determine resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:

Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products and
services such as corporate loans, trade financing, deposit-
taking activities, fund management, foreign exchange
services, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and services
such as retail loans, deposit-taking activities, bank cards,
wealth management and remittance services, etc.

Global Markets (GM)

The GM segment is responsible for conducting inter-bank
placements, repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
and bond investments in the inter-bank market, and dealing
foreign exchanges, interest rate and precious metal related
derivatives, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses that are not directly attributable or cannot
be allocated on a reasonable basis to any of the above
segments.

In order to assess the performance of the segments and
allocate resources, management will periodically review the
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and operating results
of the segments, and such information is prepared on the
following basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible
assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets which are
attributable to the segments, while segment liabilities mainly
include deposits, borrowings and other payables which are
attributable to the segments.

Segment operating results refer to income generated
by each segment (including external and inter-segment
income), deducted by direct cost (including depreciation
and amortisation pertaining to the assets allocated to the
segments), indirect cost allocated based on occupation of
resources and asset impairment losses. Transactions between
segments are priced at similar terms as external transactions.
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(1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2017
MRS BERTLS FREMUS g s it
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total
Banking Banking unallocated

—. Bdlg N 1. Operating income 693,301,450 118,280,172 233,276,712 127580913 1172,439,247
FIE &N Net interest income 505,428,278 86,272,231 91,307,389 122,796,062 805,803,960
Her: XfHpFIEHIEN  Of which: External interest income 522,989,696 213,816,187 67,999,063 999,014 805,803,960
5 BB F B YT\ Internal interest income (17,561,418) (127,543,956) 23,308,326 121,797,048 -
FEHRREESEEN Net fee and commission income 17,352,918 28,009,727 (29163,734) (1,222,629) 14,976,282
HftsN Other net income 70,520,254 3,998,214 171,133,057 6,007,480 251,659,005
Z. Bl H 2. Operating expenses (361,734,558)  (232,360,029)  (80,199,960) (344,636,110) (1,018,930,657)
Heh: SRR Of which: Impairment losses (31,656,33) (5,277,868) (3,574,574) (93,669714)  (13478,487)
=, HEWIMEX 3. Net non-operating income./(expenses) 144,974 6,948 259,641 (10,220490)  (9,808927)
M0, FErFE 4. Profit before tax 33171,866  (114,072,909) 153,336,393 (227275,687) 143,699,663
. IEESHHEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 5,714,761 11,150,336 2,231,941 28,386,917 47,483,955
N, BAERZH 6. Capital expenditure 4,692,646 10,160,222 698,616 44,604,242 60,155,726

31-12-2017
+. ZFEEREH 7. Total assets 28,342,501509  6,666,248,616 28,256,184,552 234121774 63,499,056,451
I\, BREE 8. Total liabilities 27,782,770,004 2,513,617,797 25,985,240,309 423,910,358 56,705,538,468

Pl el ST AR IR EE T RS e L i e

124]

KERT (hE ) ARAR 2017 FERSE



2016

MRS BERTLS TREMUS T &it
Wholesale Retail GM  Others and Total

Banking Banking unallocated
—. Bl 1. Operating income 669,325,597 108756169 24183706 141138280 943403752
F BN Net interest income 458,490,249 85,659,757 (38,556,889) 141,648,601 647,241,718
Hh: XopFIEEIN Of which: External interest income 302,107,856 184,624,438 159,434,426 1,074,998 647,241,718
S EBIEIF B BTN Internal interest income 156,382,393 (98,964,681) (197,991,315) 140,573,603 -
FEHRASEBN Net fee and commission income 142,097,216 18,276,246 (23911,144) (1122,760) 135,339,558
HAth i Other net income 68,738,132 4,820,166 86,651,739 612439 160,822,476
Z. B H 2. Operating expenses (426,852,882)  (241,560,232) (66,211,526)  (159,744,084)  (894,368,724)
Hh. &~ EES Of which: Impairment losses (95,254,096) (6,377,588) - 51,927954 (49,703,730)
=, EE ML 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) (13) (188,448) 10,649 7959,706 7,781,894
M. FEETFNE 4. Profit before tax 242,472,702 (132,992,51) (42,07)71)  (10,646,098) 56,816,922
. WMIBSHEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 2,753,056 8,170,080 1,637,595 32,428,682 44,989,413
. BALH 6. Capital expenditure 23,345,520 6,468,600 2,210,692 96517775 128,542,587

31-12-2016

7. Total assets 24709284382 6271140792 21108905887 297080775 52,386,411,836

8. Total liabilities

24,487,222,520 2,886,203,562

17,955,480,855 395,842,732 45,724,749,669

2. HiE 2

() HIBER

ITSNE N R IRBERREMAEMOBEZENYERSHKX,
AATRERARMRIIRAE RGBS MELEN 7 (ZH ) 6
BT

(2) Other information

(1) External operation income by geography

External operation income is distributed to respective
countries and regions by their geography locations. The
external operation income/(expense) which divided by
different geography locations is shown as follows:

HMEAEN / (324 )

External operation income/(expense)

=R Domestic
E4p Overseas
&it Total

2017 2016
1,324,895,515 765,198,097
(152,456,268) 178,205,655
1172,439,247 943,403,752

FHRFAHERB, FARKERERIMIIEREZE,

QFEEFER
AARARBEFERTKERZAWIEBNAART1121Z5T( 2016
F£E: ARM1261Z7T ), SALFERFIEKNR10%( 2016 F£E:
12%) o

The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside
Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Major customers information

Interest income of the Bank amounting to RMB112 million
comes from top 10 largest loan customers (2016: RMB126
million), which contributed 10 per cent of the total interest
income for the year (2016: 12 per cent).
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8. Commitments and contingent liabilities

(1) Commitments

RAME S HAE Capital commitments

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
oH#tEEREY Approved but not contracted 179,306 1,317,502
CZAB KT Contracted but not provided for 1,767,266 3,565,625
&it Total 1946,572 4,883,127
SZEMHEERE Operating lease commitments

ERREAFRBEAFEHBERAET TEEMEENATHHEEE R
HEAR. TEAFHGERE, AQARAARUTHEHFHRK

The Bank leases certain premises under operating lease
arrangements. The total future minimum payments in respect

e R of non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
—FEUR (E—F) Within 1year 102,532,666 96,752,298
—EPEZFEMR (EZF) 1to 2 years 92,536,372 81197424
ZENEEENR (E=4F) 2to 3 years 20,167,872 71170136
=5l E After 3 years 2,049,171 13,084,682
ait Total 217,286,081 262,204,540
2 S5ERIE (2) Credit commitments

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
MEBRER: Financial guarantee contracts:
RITHRRICE Banker’s acceptance 525,999,273 331,306,732
1R 2R 2RI Letter of guarantee 295,500,154 248,326,663
#ABHRIE Standby letter of credit 4,784,025990 4,544,298,639
FrH BN EA{E FIE Letter of credit, at sight 80,657,398 55,002,005
FrH I HAE RIE Letter of credit, usance 153,306,358 124,569,783
T Sub-total 5,839,489]173 5,303,503,822
AT B TSR Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:
FHEEHE 1 EH U E More than one year 2,406,556,937 2,387968,475
Nt Sub-total 2,406,556,937 2,387,968,475
&it Total 8,246,046,110 7,691,472,297
SRAIERES XS &5 Weighted credit risk of credit commitments 2,755,214,805 2,576,033,768

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e
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MEIEREEEFERER, —BERPRRESZHAEITHEEIE
EESHBITAELSH, RITRBEITERSE T,

BRRERIEA R RAMEHITER A T FIRBAEL T RAIKIE,
BRRE— RN ARSI &R, THRERSHIATET, 85
RIAERERUKE B ETH A —ERRARNTPAAERH,

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee,
require the Bank to be obliged to fulfil the customers’
responsibility as guarantor in case that the customers fail to
repay the contracted amount or fail to fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the
Bank to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the
future. Loan commitments are normally attached with an
effective date or termination clause, and it is possible that
the Bank may not need to fulfil such commitment on the
maturity date. Hence, the amount of the loan commitments
does not necessarily represent the future expected cash
outflow.

3. ZIEM % (3) Entrusted Business
31-12-2017 31-12-2016
E Entrusted deposits 2,403,601304 1,808,697.987
TR Entrusted loans 2,403,601,304 1,808,697,987
31-12-2017 31-12-2016
EREVES Entrusted fund 1,394,916,217 975,216,615
B &~ Entrusted asset 1394,916,217 975,216,615

ERAEREEREFETHRAANNRM, XATREREEENE=
FERHERZ M. RREXNERREERETENKE,

ZIEEMN S RIERARRRBEEFEENENRFITRIFIAN, U
BERAXMHAESHITREMATEE, REVFZHFARRAKE,
RIBAE F LR T s m = P a5,

4. JFHER

BREEEER, T207 £K, AXRRMEE/N, 2 FRRIERFNE
BN, HEEMSFRE.

. BREE

AARRARBEBIEALAREZE L SHEGREHNHEREE D
%, FEMTAANEEFSBELSRNER, AARARFEENE
FRTHERESRHNERZSN, ELRARFEBRELENRLR
REMERFNER KL ATFEFEIREE AN E I8 KU HFE,
KR A FRIR B R AL,

Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment
product according to the agreed investing plan with the
clients. The investment principal is paid by the customers,
which would be managed by the Bank. The Bank would
receive the investment profit on behalf of the customers
and pay the profit to the customers based on the agreed
conditions.

(4) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, according to the management there
was no other contingent liabilities except for those that have
been disclosed in Note 8.2.

9. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method
to mitigate the inherent risk in the business operation and
complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities
on capital management. The Bank also targets to maintain
sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations and
optimising shareholders’ value. The Bank may adjust its
capital structure actively to adapt with the change of
economic environment and related risk characteristics.
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EnTZREB (ELRITEAETEMNE (R1T) ) WUE, #ITELTE
EEEEEETEHBEEECEHEENT, RUESERBLRITZ
I—RBERRBEREBRT 5%, —BAXERELRBRT 6%, B
TRERBRT 8%, IMEBHERBSXFELiE (FLRITEL
BBk (R1T) ) TEHLHEXETRNEMNNE, BilRITE
2018 FE R BIRABIFE M) 2.5% HIERBAAREK,

AR SR EXN F AT EHITEE RO —RAREREIWEE,
BARNRATTNERS . EbRSWSEAITARS . BRAR, — KR
MEEMASEFNE; AAREEM—RHE;, —HRFTEARFE
BERREES,

EATRE (BARITEREEDZE (IK17) ) BAE, HENES
FEEERBFROT:

The Bank calculates and discloses capital adequacy ratio
according to Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial Banks
(Provisional). CBRC requires that a commercial bank’s core
tier-one capital adequacy ratio, tier-one capital adequacy
ratio and capital adequacy ratio should not be lower than
five per cent, six per cent, and eight per cent respectively.
In addition, according to the transitional arrangement of
implementing the Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial
Banks (Provisional), a commercial bank’s reserve capital ratio
should reach 2.5 per cent by the end of 2018.

The Finance Department is responsible for managing
the capital of the Bank. Core tier-one capital includes
paid-up capital, qualified capital reserve, qualified other
comprehensive income, surplus reserves, general reserves
and retained earnings. The Bank has no other tier-one capital.
Tier-two capital mainly includes surplus provision for loan
impairment.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank in
accordance with Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial
Banks (Provisional) are as follows:

31-12-2017 31-12-2016

ZiI— B[ Core tier-one capital 6,793,517.983 6,661,662,167
Ll E K Paid-up capital 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
BFERILNRATITNE S Qualified capital reserve 9,975,150 7190,414
Efhir &z alit A &85 Qualified other comprehensive income (7,477,010) (544,152)
BRAE Surplus reserves 100,026,507 86,426,113
— AR X B A General reserves 708,458,438 588,421,509
RS EEF Retained earnings 482,534,898 480,168,283
b —RFARMBTIE Core tier-one capital deductions 137,768,137 123,123,586
HM LA~ Other intangible assets 118,548,684 100,945,399
ggzgzzgz;ﬁﬁ SR z:;;;ic:[:;( assets arising from tax losses that rely on future 19,219,453 22178187
B —RiE R IEE Net core tier-one capital 6,655,749,846 6,538,538,581
— R A E RN Net tier-one capital 6,655,749,846 6,538,538,581
R Tier-two capital 342,507,787 202,234,954
BBETE R B EF Surplus provision for loan impairment 342,507,787 202,234,954
BRK ST Net capital 6,998,257,633 6,740,773,535
JXUB& NS & 7= Risk-weighted assets 40,457110,650 35,967,238,233
Hr: {5 HX MR E™ Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets 33,674,338,091 30,068,630,248
15 X B2 I 35 7= Market risk-weighted assets 4,833,322,309 4,068,195,423
FRIEXU S HOAT 35 7= Operational risk- weighted assets 1,949,450,250 1,830,412,562
BID—REERTERER Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 16.5% 18.2%
—RRARTREER Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 16.5% 18.2%
BERTRE Capital adequacy ratio 17.3% 187%
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ARANBEARFE R RRBRBFER URPESITHEMNRRBEEM S
MFRABEMBITIHEN, KEE, AARETFTHEED INENHEE
2K,

e5h, RATRRFDERBS AN CRARITATATRE R L) (R
oS IMNEE IS HEHERITREE L2017 E12 A31H,
AR R A 85%, FERIK 4% BIEMER, HXEEMT:

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of
the Bank are calculated based on the statutory financial
statements prepared under the Chinese Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises. During the period, the
Bank has complied with the capital requirements imposed by
the regulator.

In addition, the Bank calculates and discloses leverage ratio
according to Regulations Governing Leverage Ratio of Commercial
Banks (CBRC Ordinance [2011] No. 3). As at 31 December 2017,
the Bank’s leverage ratio was 8.5 per cent which was higher
than the minimum regulatory requirement of four per cent.
The relevant information is as follows:

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
Zbh—RE A Core tier-one capital 6,793,517983 6,661,662,167
B ZD—RARAINBRINE Less: Core tier-one capital deductions (137,768,137) (123,123,586)
I — R A S E Net core tier-one capital 6,655,749,846 6,538,538,581
BEERANEFTRE Adjusted on balance sheet items 56,440,924,824 49956,473,200
BEERITBRE Adjusted off balance sheet items 8,782,711930 8162,762115
TEFREAFELRE Balance of derivatives 1,851,321,301 4,682,925,356
SR BB RFRE Balance of assets in securities financing transactions 1,344,195,000 536,900,000
ait Total 78,419153,055 63,339,060,671
ATFFZR Leverage ratio 8.5% 10.3%

+. ERXEEE
1 = ARG

11 E AR EE

FRARKEREZSARNZ BN FEARNRE, EEHERITIERALR
S FRRHR B AR INEITE X SRETET A, RATNIE
AR EERB TABERMER, RIMDENEAKREEEREGT
FHERIE. STHE RTINS RORIE

FERRKHEDREE: S—EHNENETPERITHRNEEESR,
A THRRMEME FETUREFRMNEFHEEERITEY
HEEHNSZEF —EFFEUHRE. FRARBRREPEERBRTRIT
WS R —FrE T SR BENHREE,

ARRERHIRERT R EHE, ARG B ERRERTN LR
HHEBUERERPSE TERRK . AARERANEANEERRET
BE, XERFEERHITOTARNERHNERIRRESES,

10.Financial Risk Management
(1) Credit risk

(11) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations as and when
they fall due. The Bank’s credit risk exposure mainly arises from
loans and advances to customers. Credit risk of off balance
sheet items mainly arises from the letters of credit/guarantees
issued as well as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby
there is a concentration of customers in the same business
activities, geographical location, or industry sector with
similar economic characteristics such that their repayment
ability would be affected by the same economic fluctuations.
Credit risk concentration reflects the sensitivity of the Bank’s
performance to such customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures which effectively mitigate and control credit
risk. The procedures cover credit evaluation, credit approval,
credit monitoring as well as reporting. The Bank reviews the
borrowers’ business operations periodically, analyses the
quality of credit portfolio and ensures adequacy of loan loss
provisions.
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The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments
is similar with that from loans and advances to customers.
Hence, the Bank adopts the same policies and procedures
for managing credit contingencies which cover application,
follow-up monitoring and collateral requirements, etc.

(1.2) Maximum credit risk exposure without consideration of
any collateral and credit risk mitigation

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure
of the Bank without taking into consideration of collateral and
credit risk mitigation is set out below:

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
Fr R sR 1T IN Balances with the Central Bank 7156,303,143 6,859,536,941
T [ M KT Due from banks 5,022,549,834 4,281972,740
FHES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 9,527,005,249 8,952,621,562
ﬁﬁig%g%g%%;ﬂ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,486,366,862 115,977,944
TEERA Derivative financial assets 5,576,168,427 2,401,319,415
FINBRESRES" Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,344,195,000 536,900,000
RIGERFAEIR Loans and advances to customers 27136,596,787 23,887,216,059
At HE S RE TS Available-for-sale financial assets 4,369,225,273 3,757,637,920
HE&p&Er~ Other financial assets 544,512,868 241,572,926
&it Total 63162,923,443 52,034,755,507
ERRIEERARNEMO ( FBE/N, 2)  Credit commitments (Note 8.2) 8,246,046110 7,691,472,297
=XRERREEDO Maximum credit risk exposure 71,408,969,553 59,726,227,804
13 KSR E (1.3) Risk concentration

WXSHFERTE-TUSHE, SHEREEFLEFHE, HE
RAREEESENES, ki, RRTUMBREEFERSEEM
R R, B ARREITIL A0 X S AR TR AR

AAREFEAENEFREETARMSEREGE FRRRMETFHN
BRETUE R EFE, ESEMER. 8

14 BRY)

AR AIREZ S FERAREITEREMENERDESARER,
AR EZHRYEL THEXHIERE, SRHERYITEREET
AR ER,
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The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar
economic characteristics would tend to pose higher credit
risk to the Bank. On the other hand, the level of credit risk
may be varied from each industry or geographical location in
view of their unique economic development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/
guarantees to domestic customers. Analysis on industry
sector concentration for the Bank’s loans and advances can
be found at Note 6.8.

(1.4) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would
depend on the credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties
as assessed by the Bank. The Bank has established a guideline
on taking collateral including the frequency of collateral
valuation.
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ARFEEMERE (KRMBRELES ) HERRESTOT:

The main types of collateral include:

- For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals taken
include cash deposits, bank guarantee, properties and
machinery; and

- For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly residential
properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor
the market value of the collaterals and follow up with the
borrowers/counterparties to top up collaterals in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the loan agreement. The
change in market value of the collateral would also be taken
into consideration when reviewing the adequacy of loan loss
provisions.

(1.5) Credit quality

The credit quality of financial assets of the Bank (excluding
provisions) is analysed as follows:

BREHEREE CEfeEREE BRE it
31122017 Neither overdue nor  Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
M & RIFH P RRITERIN Cash and deposit with the central bank 7169,538,272 - - 7169538272
TEHRE M =R Due from banks 5,025,106,629 - - 5,025]106,629
N Placements with banks and other financial
FHRE etitutions 9,530,563,249 - - 9530,563,249
NUAS A= s ; . ‘ !
%Afgﬁfﬁﬂ‘:gﬂizzdjﬁ')\ Financial assets at fair value through profit 2.486,366,862 _ - 2486366,862
LR SR - or loss
INBREERATF Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,344,195,000 - - 1344195000
EI RN Loans and advances to customers 27.454,.970,958 18,018,820  211,867730 27,684,857,508
AEHESRE Available-for-sale financial assets 4369225273 - - 4369225273
Hih&ghE~ Other financial assets 544,512,868 - - 544,512,868
&it Total 57,924,47911 18,018,820 211,867,730  58,154,365,661
BREHEREE CEfeEREE BRE it
3112-2016 Neither overdue nor  Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
WM& RIFH B RBITEIN Cash and deposit with the central bank 6,874,732,445 6,874,732,445
LR =T Due from banks 4,283,038,043 - - 4283,038,043
N Placements with banks and other financial
FHRE netitutions 8,955,157152 - - 8955157152
NUAS = A5 zha ; ; - !
% N %@fﬁl‘l‘;ﬁﬂ%xﬂﬁ']\ Financial assets at fair value through profit 1115977944 _ _ 1115977944
LR SR - or loss
INBREERAT Reverse repurchase financial assets 536,900,000 - - 536,900,000
EIR RN E Loans and advances to customers 24,085,480,413 369,707 315,473,013  24,401,323]133
AHHESRE~ Available-for-sale financial assets 3,757,637,920 - - 3757637920
HE&rEr~ Other financial assets 240,167,025 - 1,405,901 241,572,926
&it Total 49,849,090,942 369,707 316,878,914  50,166,339,563
Pl madns SRS AR AR W = Y = T ) . = - N i
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Loans and advances that are neither overdue nor impaired
The composition of loans that are neither overdue nor
impaired by collateral arrangement as at the balance sheet
date is as follows:

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
[SEGER Unsecured loans 4,372,966,635 5,040,959,502
RIELERX Loans secured by guarantees 453,507,095 2,568,218,056
WK BT =X Loans secured by mortgage 15,022,419,901 13,234,360,469
FRIREEER Loans secured by pledges 3,906,077,327 3,241942,386
ait Total 27,454,970,958 24,085,480,413

S E RBER & SRR B
THFHHEERR, CEPERBRENEHER R RSN T:

Loans and advances that are overdue but not impaired
Ageing analysis of loans that are overdue but not impaired as
at the balance sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2017
1MAA 11MNAZ24A 24 HZB3AA 3INMARE it IFEEERYARME
Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals

Loans and advances

S £h FhEhL _ -
e 0k St 17931837 86983 18,018,820 350,415,000
31-12-2016
1Ml 11MABI 240 B 24BEI3AA 3INARE &it FEFEERY A LNE
Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals
By -oans andadvances 369,707 - - - 369707 286,889,299

to customers

ERENEBERRER
MREENFERAEIERAREBRRENEBHAETE - IS TR
HERZE, BZBERANERBITARREREBET M EZH ML
g, NZEAERRAERRBTAARTHERNR. ZEEAS
WIEEA “REF” . AR H BK” %K

THFRGERE, FARAFANBRERTPKANERESBER
FHHEERIE A RN ETIRWT:

Impaired loans and advances

Where there are objective evidences that a single or multiple
negative events have occurred after the initial recognition of
the loans and the impact from the events on the expected
future cash flows can be estimated reliably, the relevant
loans should be recognised as impaired loans. These loans
are classified as “Substandard’, “Doubtful” or “Loss”.

As at the balance sheet date, the carry amount of impaired
loans and the fair value of collateral of impaired loans held
by the Bank are as follows:

31-12-2017 31-12-2016
VERERAE N Impaired loans
- R - Substandard 136,746,839 162,628,137
— A[E% - Doubtful 75,120,891 61,580,962
- %k - Loss - 91,263,914
&it Total 211,867,730 315,473,013
RERREERY The collateral value of impaired loans 256,264,404 294,860,960
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ER R 2 N E AR L T RE B AR A BEEB TSR
DLyt E HT LS R SNERIT A M E BT IR B A B A ERERE

ZEANE TR RER
FATHTRATEBERFRRERENLR, BRI T HAEA
HR, B5EAENEEAREH,

FHFRHERE, RAARFRRERENS,

2. AR
ARFRFAZHRIEURERITABEENFAR, BEFRH
RAMERPEN, "EAFGEURZ AR HAOER Bk, &3
BEENEEETHMRITHENRAATHENEEE K,

ArFmHEREEERETENNRERIERTHITH, €84
HAFAGRZRSMPITZRSHENSTEK., EHRE. XK
PRET, XLEHUR. =HIRTE R XU RS R A2 B E AR B R T IEE
ETARENASUEMNRIERT K, XEFEESRBLSHELE
SHRERHEHRERSETERES/D, URFESRINERS.

AARERNEREEE A ERIRTILE, FENRBZOTER,
FIREFREREEE, REEENRINAEE R
HIMHESERR,

ARAERTENTHFERRE, URERANENSE, B
FEARGURASRENSHEL, BT EENEERITHZ
IDFERAR HE 4T PRI Do

ARFEITHFRRITH SR EEEMERRIAMERE, SR
MRETF “ERBLEZER" 1 “EHER" KT, ARARER
EMARRESRIZ B RITRENMER M O E R, ERARIER
HREERMEN L ISR R HI BV, RAREEIH
AN 2R B - RN EERB TR ENRNER
Hlo EiZE2itHIH, AARBEDEIEN ERTRERGEME.
R IR LA IR SRR SR D iR B AL BT Sy S R,

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determined
from the latest external valuation with necessary adjustment
made after considering the Bank’s own experience in
collateral disposal as well as the current market conditions.

Restructured loans and advances

The Bank has formulated a set of loan restructuring policies
to renegotiate the contractual terms with customers in order
to maximise the recovery of impaired loans as well as to
manage customer relationships.

No transactions were conducted by the Bank as at the
balance sheet date.

(2) Liquidity risk

The bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund day-to-
day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments, and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner
to address both anticipated and unanticipated cash funding
needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a complete
framework of risk management, including-policies, controls
and limits approved by the Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO). These policies, controls and limits are established
to ensure that the bank to have sufficient funding to manage
liquidity risk over a range of market conditions. These include
minimising excessive funding concentrations by diversifying
the sources and terms of funding as well as maintaining
a portfolio of debt securities with high quality and good
liquidity.

The bank takes a conservative stance in liquidity management
by continuing to gather core deposits, strictly complying
with liquidity limits and retaining adequate liquid assets to
prevent any possible cash shortfall.

The bank actively dispersed the sources of deposits to
maintain a balance of cost efficiency, continued availability
of funds and diversification of funding sources. Important
factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing,
proactive management of the bank’s core deposits and the
maintenance of customer confidence.

Liquidity risk is measured and managed on projected cash
flow basis. Cash flow projection is monitored under both
business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the bank’s liquidity exposure.
The bank has also employed liquidity early warning
indicators and trigger points to signal possible contingency
situations. Contingency funding plans have been set up
to identify potential liquidity crises by using a series of
warning indicators. Crisis management processes and various
strategies including funding and communication have been
developed to minimise the negative impact of any liquidity
crunch.
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ARFERBARKANEBHFERBERAMEFARYMIAZEH KA
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(3) Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from foreign
exchange rate and interest rate related products arising from
trading as well as non-trading businesses. The objective of
market risk management is to minimise the negative impact
of volatility of financial instruments on the Bank’s earnings
and equity.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank’s market
risk exposure and formulates market risk policies for
approval by the Asset Liability Committee and the Executive
Committee. Risk profile reports are submitted to the Asset
Liability Committee and Board Risk Management Committee
on a regular basis.

The Bank measures and manages its market risk in accordance
with a framework of policies and practices which include
sensitivity analysis, Value-at-Risk measure, stress testing
etc. In addition, the market risk associated with any new
product/business is required to be identified and addressed
prior to launch.

The Bank divides the balance sheet assets and liabilities
into the trading book or banking book according to the
characteristics of different accounts. Trading book mainly
includes free trading financial instruments and commodity
positions held for the purpose of trading or for avoiding the
risk of other items in the transaction account. The market
risk in trading book depends on the tools of the transactions,
including interest rates, exchange rates, credit spreads,
commodity prices and foreign exchange volatility, etc.
Banking book includes other financial instruments outside
the trading book. The main risk in the banking book is the risk
of interest rates and credit spreads.

(3.1) Currency risk

The Bank’s currency risk arises mainly from currency
mismatches of assets and liabilities as well as foreign
exchange trading business whereby the open positions are
subject to exchange rate fluctuations.



F27E 12 A3 H, ZAAHNEXREFEAGETMHIIRNOT:

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

3112-2017
ET AR Hith &it
usbD RMB Others Total
(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent)
&= Assets:

MERFEMPRFEITEIT Cash and deposit with the central bank 1,241,415402  5920,165,672 7957198 769,538,272
FHELRIFHES Eﬁ:ﬂﬁgﬂ:&ii‘f’ﬁ:ﬁem with banks and other 6,835075033 7216490913 497989137 14549555083
iiﬁgg%g%g%;?ﬁ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 2,486,366,862 - 2,486,366,862
TEEmMAS~ Derivative financial assets 108,403957  5,467,764,470 - 5,576,168,427
INBESRIE Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,344,195,000 - 1,344,195,000
K ERFn s Loans and advances to customers 5,219,854,662 21,097,540,160 819,201,965 27136,596,787
AEHESRIR Available-for-sale financial assets - 4369225273 - 4,369,225273
Hit &&= Other financial assets 44,724,138 496,596,307 392,423 544,512,868
EREFEIT Total financial assets 13,449,473192 48,398,344,657 1,328,340,723 63,176,158,572

fafk: Liabilities:
RlfERAAS D toandplacement from banks and other 16536338410  2,876932972 735702981 20148974363

financial institutions

TESmtE Derivative financial liabilities 67,213,631  5,592,606,184 - 5,659,819,815
R 17 =% Customer deposits 2,048,416,008 27,773,044,841 451,351,366 30,272,812,215
Hit&miaE Other financial liabilities 178,470,821 268,175,872 36,460,453 483,107,146
ERARET Total financial liabilities 18,830,438,870 36,510,759,869 1223514800  56,564,713,539
AEffEEL~T Net position (5,380,965,678) 11,887,584,788 104,825,923 6,611,445,033
TESRMTEZNEH ms;:s;zlniTounts of derivative financial 324,760,717,865 304,471,086,339 408629125 629640433329
SFRE Commitments 1,383,590,514  4,253,793,620 2,608,661,976 8,246,046,110
O S ———————— - .
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F2016F12 A3 H, ARFAMNEXESRAFETHIIROT:

As at 31 December 2016, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

31-12-2016
ET AR Hith &it
usb RMB Others Total
(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent)
&= Assets:
MERIFMPIEBITERIN Cash and balances with the Central Bank 1,946,063,024 4,926,208,628 2,460,793 6,874,732,445
=24 Precious metals - 26,465,000 - 26,465,000
EHRELRIFHES zgfnfgf;ﬂsgftftlf;f?em with banks and other 6103]73,084 7,004,800,009 126621209 13234594302
iiﬁgggg%g%;g Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 1115977944 - 1115977944
FTEERE" Derivative financial assets 64,328,823  2,336,990,592 - 2,401,319/415
INBEEEREF Reverse repurchase financial assets - 536,900,000 - 536,900,000
AR Loans and advances to customers 4,063,101,681 18,928,148,625 895,965,753 23,887,216,059
AEHESRE™” Available-for-sale financial assets - 3757637920 - 3,757,637,920
Hth&mEr= Other financial assets 25341406 212,581,396 3,650,124 241,572,926
EMEFET Total financial assets 12,202,008,018  38,845,710,114 1,028,697,879 52,076,416,011
fafk: Liabilities:
RLEHRFEAGSE  Cue toand placement from banks and other 13020428220  3573,853419 813811225  17408,092,864
financial institutions
TEEMAE Derivative financial liabilities 17,246,430  2,530,315,855 - 2,647,562,285
ST g ey Customer deposits 2,033,422,335 22,569,772,412 582,111,004 25,185,305,751
Hit&maE Other financial liabilities 28,093,091 331,968,712 5977)61 366,038,964
ErfAEET Total financial liabilities 15,199190,076 29,005,910,398 1,401,899,390 45,606,999,864
BrEhaEsEsk~t Net position (2,997182,058)  9,839,799,716 (373,201,51) 6,469,416,147
FTEEMT ALY SR msttijgaelnirfounts of derivative financial 049978142 124375588372 1565438254  236,991,004768
ERKIE Commitments 1,727,804979 4,956,284,949 1,007,382,369 7,691,472,297
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UTREEMEERTHERT, SMHMAGCTCETRRZENS
by PO E TN TREINE b S

Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a
change in foreign exchange rates on profit before tax of the
Bank is as follows:

31-12-2017 31-12-2016

T FERTRE A PO EsTA=TE I N

A Ear . .
ZETH Change in Foreign Exchange Rate Impact on profit Impact on profit
ARG A 1% -1% change against RMB 52,761,398 33,707,883
ARG HFAHE 1% +1% change against RMB (52,761398) (33,707,883)
UL REERHETFRFMAGEARSNICERKRSEY, HIHE  The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
THHEMEEARTR, SR ARTCERNSETE Etjﬂﬁiﬁuﬂ assets and liabilities have static currency risk structure. It
iR shows the impact of a change in other currency rates against

RMB on the Bank’s profit before tax, given other variables
BEHATEFUTRIE: remain constant.

() CEHEBRERESTHXNARTTHRE B HREE (FEM)IC
REIHER TN 1% SR R IR ;

() EHMICEEHIIEEHHNARTICEREREEEZ;
(B) ZLEREHAREER~RERRME,

HFETLRRE, CEEUSBEAARIC SRS H RN KRE
WrTEE S BRE S TS RARE,

3.2 PR X
AFEHRERSARERAMENRERIERNENE, BFER/ER
MERBHEHE S~ AHEERS A RENRITHA THFZRE

FIEREEENTEBRREESHUNEFRES, BIEER
TRV ST BYINSRRIAFHR BESRIT R AMZF M EMIEK,

AREERASTIER, SREENERMERESTEENERT
T A F 2 KB R O o 38 3 RGBS TR R L3 H o
#, BTRFREHWFSBNREFNEBEELM RGRER
EHENHR, THEESHHANEZE, Bt TEREER, K3
B F ZREE T ) S~ ERI R E K.

The analysis is based on below assumptions:

(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses
caused by one per cent change of the closing rate (mid
rate) of the different foreign currencies against RMB as at
the balance sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against
RMB in the same direction simultaneously;

(3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of
exchange rate fluctuation on the Bank’s earnings may differ
from above sensitivity analysis.

(3.2) Interest rate risk

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the
interest rate risk management structure. The Balance Sheet
Risk Management (BSRM) Division supports the ALCO in
monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the banking book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management
is to protect and to enhance capital or economic net
worth through adequate, stable and reliable growth in net
interest earnings under a broad range of possible economic
conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified using
analysis tools include repricing schedules and sensitivity
analysis. They provide indications of the potential impact of
interest rate changes on interest income and economic value
through the analysis of the sensitivity of assets and liabilities
to changes in interest rates. Interest rate sensitivity varies
with different repricing periods, currencies and embedded
options Mismatches in the longer tenor will experience
greater impact in the price-value of interest rate positions
than similar positions in the shorter tenor.

Pl mades S AR ITIAR W = R ey L
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ARBIRRAWEF BYANFEE=LEFNEEES N T EER
ITRIERBEE AN, UERRITH T A& B3t E 28 F 22 50 KR
BIRITHE= AEREFIE, R, ZEDMNK 8 R TR RERL
TAIREE & S ER K R HATRE R #E SR1T A IR N B Y T 3 IR R
TRRMEER X,

BFME, CERMRNEELERZZHA THREED TR
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F017FE 12 A31H, AAFRITHAPAEZSHARASHIENES
EAERAREEN HSZIPEREREESHUT:

The Bank also performs quantitative analysis method of net
interest income and economic value of net assets regularly
to determine the adequacy of capital in meeting the impact
of extreme interest rate movements on the balance sheet.
Such tests are also performed to provide early warnings
of potential extreme losses, facilitating the proactive
management of interest rate risks in an environment of rapid
financial market changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices are managed and
controlled under the market risk framework.

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank’s assets/liabilities of trading
book and banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier
of maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows:

31-12-2017
3IMAR 3MNAEE 1ES5HF SHERE TR &it
Within 3 3 months 1to 5 years 5 years Non interest Total
months to 1year above bearing

ErE: Assets:
M4 R hkprgm oh and deposit with the 5,912,421,421 - - - 1257116851 7169,538,272

central bank

Due from and placement with
FERELRRHEES banks and other financial 13142,423,057  1,407132,026 - - - 14,549555,083

institutions
WUARMETEBRETZ) Financial assets at fair value
L HIIR S S B through profit or loss 1,879,245,864 577,861,458 29,259,540 2,486,366,862
THESRE” Derivative financial assets 278,994,818,433 282,063,735,017 18,701,009,195 - 109,420,369 579,868,983,014
ENBESRER :Sesveetr:e repurchase financial 1344195,000 - - - - 1344195000
EI RN Loans and advances to customers 22,860,446,915 4,276,49,872 - - - 27136,596,787
AEHESRE~ Available-for-sale financial assets 2,421,673,844  1652,433,330 295118,099 - - 4369225273
Hih&rbisrs Other financial assets - - - - 544,512,868 544,512,868
EEFEIT Total financial assets 326,555,224,534  289977311,703  18,996,127,294 29,259,540 1911,050,088 637,468,973,159
fafk: Liabilities:

Due to and placement from
ElFHRRFENES banks and other financial 16,954,286,653  3,165900,965 - - 28786745 20,148974,363

institutions
THEEmMiE Derivatives financial liabilities ~ 279,796,665,074 281,075,723,007 19,013,121,595 - 86,676,914 579972,186,590
Ry =k Customer deposits 22,79,848,373 7,497,863,782 595,100,060 - - 30,272,812,215
Hih ik Other financial liabilities - - - - 483107146 483107146
EHAEEIT Total financial liabilities 318,930,800,100 291,739487,754 19,608,221,655 - 598,570,805 630,877,080,314
FRXEERO Net position 7,624,424,434 (1,762,176,051) (612,094,361) 29,259,540 1312,479,283  6,591,892,845
VL aalrs SEEI AR TR EE - T3 AL - s
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F 2016 &£ 12 A31H, ARFRITHPARLZBHAESHETEHERE

EAaGREREEN BHEHEREREE SN

As at 31 December 2016, the Bank’s assets/liabilities of trading

book and banking book re-pricing profiles (based on the earlier
of maturity date and re-pricing date) is as follows (continued) :

31-12-2016
3MARZAMAETE 1ESHESERMLE TitE &it
Within 3 3months Tto5years 5years Non interest Total
months to 1year above bearing
AP, Assets:
& REHPRBITRT gaazt and balances with the Central -, 14 157197 - - - 1958710248  6,874732,445
=t Precious metals - - - - 26,465,000 26,465,000
TR R AR H S Due from and placement with banks 1,7 915 671 3 261,681,631 - - - 13234594302
and other financial institutions
%igggg%%g}gﬁﬁ ;F)i:;af?rci;l f;::ts atfairvalue through 107007567 557541882 60,538,500 - - 5977944
TEEREF~ Derivative financial assets 215,878130,056 746,698,361 1336142120 - 92,593358 218,053,563,895
INBRESRES" Reverse repurchase financial assets 536,900,000 - - - - 536,900,000
AN Loans and advances to customers  20,049,248,890  3,326,547.795 511,419,374 - - 23,887.216,059
AEHESRET Available-for-sale financial assets 1909391370 689299120 158,947,430 - - 3757637920
Hihsahars Other financial assets - - - - 241572926 241,572,926
BEEmEeIT Total financial assets 254,760,502,746  7,581,768,789 3,067,047,424 - 2,319,341,532 267,728,660,491
Tt Liabilities:
B ERRFNE S Due to and placement from banks 1 017 573114 3 495869750 - - - 17408,092,864
and other financial institutions

TEERHAE Derivatives financial liabilities 215,769,508,040 751,241,151 1,326,071,849 - 129236,291 217976,057,331
Sl Customer deposits 18,338,230,668 4,828,952,864 2,018,122,219 - - 25]85,305,751
Hi &g Other liabilities - - - - 366,038,964 366,038,964
ERfAEET Total liabilities 249,019961,822 8,076,063,765 3,344,194,068 - 495,275,255 260,935,494,910
FER KO Net position 5740540924 (494,294976) (277146,644) - 1824066277 6793]65,581

L adry SRS AR WA T
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AARMEHFMETRZREEN D, YEEMNETRZRIHE
FETESMAFSRITEEMARMNEENER.

UTREEMEEATHERLT, FMERTRRENSETIHNHR

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities
based on maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing date
for floating rate items.

#. Hit A amE e mB g 2N S EESm, Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s net profit, other comprehensive
income after tax and equity is as follows:

31-12-2017
TETE Change in interest rate PRkt MEMESWHENFEETINEE  MraENENER
Impact on net profit  Impact on other comprehensive income after tax Impact on equity
FIZEEHN 100 N E S +100 basis points 45,079,165 (14,316,755) 30,762,410
FZF D 100 A - 100 basis points (45,079]65) 14,316,755 (30,762,410)
31-12-2016
LTELE Change in interest rate Xf 5 28 Y 25 M) MEMESWENFREEMEZE  NAEENERRMm
Impact on net profit  Impact on other comprehensive income after tax Impact on equity
FIZEIEHN 100 E A +100 basis points 36,282,095 (16,126,982) 20,155,113
FIZE D 100 MES - 100 basis points (36,282,095) 16,126,982 (20,155,113)

U EHRESHETHEMAGREHSNHAEREEE, FXH
STNEE—ENNETL, RBRA—FAEARNENRENE
HEMXEABRELTENSBNNZNE, BETUTRIE:

() FMEE=NAAER=NRABRE—FRNERENH IR E =
ARHERIEERXH B EERENSEIH;

(2) WrsEEe & REF E T UM FITHR;
(3) AFEMARESHTEMETN;
(4) EFEREHATESHE~RERFIRB,

HTFETLRRE, FIREHSBEAQRRSEBNHIAHERE
WTEE S BRAE ST ERARRE,

H R AW SRR ST s gUR S TR E T 5% H & REF
EEHMEBHRE, EFEEFNEREH—ET S LXIHRAHY
ERFRAALNMERTERGEFHE,

Pl el ST AR IR EE T RS e AL - s
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The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static interest rate risk structure.
It reflects the impact of interest rate movement on the
Bank’s net interest income over a one-year period. The key
assumptions are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than
three months or between three months and one year are
assumed to be re-priced in the middle of the respective
time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes;
and

(4) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net
interest income from interest rate movement may differ from
above sensitivity analysis.

The impact on other comprehensive income after tax is
estimated from the change in market value of “Available-for-
sale” portfolio caused by a parallel shift of yield curve arising
from interest rate change.



4. RRNME

ARME, RETHSEEETEBRENARFZSS, HE—W
B SERR AR EXMHNE. EXSERZT
% (BIACATHESZ 5T ) FENSEHT, THTIEMIEARNM
BEZREIER, AW, ZARAFERETZHBIEMBESRASR
HETM. B, M FZBIATHATRZEMITE, DT
ZHEFEMEHATEGEEXANE. BR, SRAKEFERTZ
MESZEXRRASTRELG, HEERE, UREAIRAZHA
R

FARRAZz A ERBRIZINT:

(i) ManMETTERREZHITASHRIHEHIES / SHMHAG
(BRITESMEAS / eHMAKR) ISETHSERZTHITE
HRnME, MEMTHSRZTNHN, WEASREMAGEL
AMEHSREZHAHRMNBELARNE, ARNEETI
EWEZKEEE;

(i) FR2ARNEBMzEMERMBTEMARETHREE, B
HEMES AR NERS;

(i) NESWHBLAMERTRURRZTHMESH, HanMh
BEUSRTHARTEEE, TRAGHERREZTUER
EBARMEFNAFER, EAEEREZ MG BMERDS
ik, NKEERASMERIOR;

(iv) ERERDEARRMERBESEFHFER, FHERRTE
ERBHZHEERFREEE BRBANA ST LR NE,
AEEHRZERHNAAMEURSRERWEGE, HRE
2 5% E HATE R R R A R X R AT TR ROR 2R

KRRHEASRMER TR IUFLE R AT FHH .

(i) TE: TR RERMIARFARENTIHRMN;

(i) fAEIH: T RERBERAREITHE.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Subject to the existence of an active market, such as an
authorised securities exchange, the market value is the best
reflection of the fair value of financial instruments. As there
is no available market value for some of the financial assets
and liabilities held and issued by the Bank, the discounted
cash flow method or other valuation methods described
below are adopted to determine the fair value of these
assets and liabilities. However, the value determined by such
methods would depend on the amount of future cash flows,
time period assumption and discount rates used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in
estimating fair values:

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair
value by reference to the quoted market prices when
available. If quoted market prices are not available, the
fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows or
quoted price from the counter parties. The carrying
amounts of these items reflect the fair value as at the
balance sheet date;

(i) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities
maturing within 12 months are assumed to be equal to
their carrying amounts in view of their short maturity;

(iii) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate
at the time the loans are extended shall be determined
using prevailing market rates of similar loans. Changes
in the credit quality of loans within the portfolio are
not taken into account in determining the fair values
as the impact of credit risk is recognised separately as
impairment provision which shall be deducted from the
carrying amounts and fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or
floating rate depending on the product type. The fair
value of demand deposits and saving deposits without
specific maturity date is determined based on the amount
payable on demand. The fair value of fixed deposits are
estimated using discounted cash flows method with the
prevailing deposit rate for the remaining tenor of the
fixed deposit as the discount rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

(i)  Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(i) Mark to Model - where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.

Pl mades S AR ITIAR W = R ey L
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HERBEAZAARNEN - BEAN, ERREFEEIERL,
MEBMIEHITRBUHRA RN ERNEHE, ARARBENMGE
REAZEZEIAEHER, FINIZNEGERENREGER
B, ImRITNHAERR,

ARBEILT HEEHNFRBRL LN ENSENE, WRRAE
BXflE, REPHRENERABLELARI ML ERNANE]
WiE, Mesh, MEGHMNIE, BASH, RNGERELTERS
ZARINEE, HtWGERFHIZEEERMSTEERS,

KATBHEIETARMERENSRIRIS H = BR:

FE—BR: AFTHME

X EERARERBERAFNRENERTHRNEGHEEST
WAMLER A EHmREEHPREGBEILEEARARSEAR
HHHNEE RS

ERX: AEBANSHAUNBIHHRREINHERR

EFEEAXRETREERHE, MAANNEZSHHMEETIS
FEENR, IHRARGEAESRITAST. BANENEBN—L
THS5ELBERAMBZZIHRR, WANZNBERHEM&=RE
ERNCIZH, SMLEER, RERBEZH / EREREEXHNITE
m (MEmTEFE. FIRER, SNOBER. SEXEER) , #
BREARNEER SN FRENERM™ @ (T X E XGRS

) o

FZRER: HEESHAERVERGFI MR ANGERAR
X EHEERARERASETHRIINEM ERNEZRTNZSH,
BRIAAREREEXNEM™ RN ANEXNER.

U EBBRREFTEDNARRADEFZRAGEZZ AN ERE—B 2T
EEMN, AT, BTEMNEANSERTRZATERRKRIE, S/
MRz 2 MERGTEEEF A,

Pl el ST AR TR TR T RS e L i e
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Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value
process that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure
correct fair value representation. In making appropriate
valuation adjustments, the Bank follows the methodologies
that consider factors such as bid-offer spread valuation
adjustment and model valuation adjustment.

The Bank has established internal control procedures
over the valuation process to provide assurance over the
appropriateness of the fair values applied. If fair value is
determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated
by a specialist group. In addition, price and parameter inputs,
assumptions and valuation adjustments are subject to
verification and review processes. Other valuation control
includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to
the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
where the price represents actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. Financial
instruments included in this class are bonds with the marked-
to-market prices actively made available and announced by
China Central Depository and Clearing Co. Ltd.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments
where the prices are derived from standard valuation
models, and significant inputs to these models are directly
observable. The valuation techniques include the use of
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques widely used and accepted by
market participants. The financial instruments included
in this category are mainly Foreign Exchange Forward and
Foreign Exchange Swaps, Noble Metals Forward and Swaps,
and OTC derivatives (namely money market deposit and
placement, interest rate swap, FX Option, Rediscounted
bills) and financial instruments with fair value derived from

counterparty (for structured products arranged on back-to-
back basis).

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable
inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one
significant input is not observable and reliance is placed on
reasonable assumptions made on market conditions. There is
currently no financial instrument being classified under such
category.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide
a consistent basis for the calculation of fair value of the
Bank’s assets and liabilities. However, other institutions may
use different assumptions and methods. Therefore, the fair
values disclosed by different financial institutions may not be
entirely comparable.



TRIIFTURRNETENERIENL2RNERR:

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments measured in fair value:

ARNETEERBBNE

Inputs in fair value measurement

TSR EETURANE EEARATURBNE &it
Active market Significant Significant non-
quotes  observable inputs observable inputs Total
1- (F—BX) (BZRB®&) (E=E&)
31122017 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
U MEtERETH Financial assets at fair value through
N Do HA 4T S b bynging . - 2,486,366,862 - 2,486,366,862
HALHARBOERE=  profitor loss
TEEMEF Derivative financial assets - 5,576,168,427 - 5,576,168,427
AHESE” Available-for-sale financial assets - 4,369,225273 - 4369225273
EREFEEIT Total financial assets - 12,431,760,562 - 12,431,760,562
wANESE Gold borrowing 2,397,504,245 - 2,397,504,245
WUARMETEREETS) Financial liability at fair value through
L EIIR S K S Bl profit or loss 1,362,073,633 1,362,073,633
TESmMbE Derivative financial liabilities - 5,659,819,815 - 5,659,819,815
S Bl A METH B BT Dep95|ts designated at fair value through ) 995287361 ) 995,287361
profit or loss
SRAESIT Total financial liabilities - 10,414,685,054 - 10,414,685,054
rRMETEERNBNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
ERTHRN EETMURGNE EETAURHGANE &it
Active market Significant Significant non-
quotes  observable inputs observable inputs Total
19 (F—BXR) (FZEBX) (F=BX)
3112-2016 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
MUARMETERETE  Financial assets at fair value through
. s HE 4 e iy . - 115977944 - 115,977,944
NS EREN SR~ profit or loss
TEEmMAES~ Derivative financial assets - 2,401,319415 - 2,401,319415
AHESE~ Available-for-sale financial assets - 3,757,637,920 - 3,757,637920
ErA~EIT Total financial assets - 7,274,935,279 - 7.274,935,279
IRNEE Gold borrowing - 529767027 - 529,767,027
WUARMETEREETS) Financial liability at fair value through
O\ HRIR S & b £ A2 profit or loss 1,578,387,461 1,578,387461
TEEmMbE Derivative financial liabilities - 2,647,562,285 - 2,647562,285
RN R MET B Dep95|ts designated at fair value through ) 1126344.436 ) 1126344436
profit or loss
ErfAEET Total financial liabilities - 5,882,061,209 - 5882,061,209

KEE, ARRARREUNANEHENE -—BRNE_RREM
BFEMa G2 B R,

EERINA, TER, FARANEMEHBESNERMAGRHARN
BESHEENKANEFTEXESR,

During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1
and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and
liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the other financial
assets and financial liabilities is not material as at the balance
sheet date.
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+—. XKEEAXREEXS 11. Related party transactions

1. KB A RIAEFRE (1) Criteria of identifying related parties

FARERE, TH&BHBALNTHLET: ]ICDOel[coa\iAl/z: of the Bank’s major related parties in 2017 are as
() AREH R (1) Parent company of the Company;

(2) SFRFAZE—BA TR E MR (2) Entities under control of the same parent company;

(3) M AL T HEME R IR ; (3) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;

(@) AAAMEXBEEEARMURSEXRZZVINREK R ; (4) Key management personnel of the Bank or the close

family members;

(5) EAFMPKRBEEARSEEXREVINRER RITH ., HEE ' o o
511 B AN EE A BS MR B At £l (5) Enterprises under control, jointly control or significant
influence of the key management personnel of the Bank

6 AATRTMAUESES or the close family members;

(6) Annuity established by the Bank.

2. KpRBAT (2) Parent company of the Bank

&R A S5 B A R BN LB

Name Business Nature Registered Address Share Capital Shareholding
KERITHRR A RITR & RAR 55 Frhnig #6351 HA 100%

United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and Financial Service Singapore SGD 6,351 Million 100%

. FRENSRRAAXBEI S EMXES (3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions

during the year are as follows

EEZSFNZEE A

Company under the common control of parent company

B W &R pE e EMHEE EEREAN

Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
KERIT ( BRAL ) BRAH RITR ERARS Ok HEH OokAMES 20 2T HER

United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd.  Banking and Financial Service Kuala Lumpur Malaysia RM 2 Billion Wong Kim Choong

RERIT (RE ) ARAA

RITR &RARS =EES ek 24857 12T
i i) Publi oo Tan Choon Hi
United Ove}rse'as Bank (Thai) Public Banking and Financial Service Bangkok Thailand Baht 24.857 Billion an-hoonmin
Company Limited
M &M TE AR R,
X (Li5) BREMEARAR  HREE. HARS E L #h 100 73T Goi Chin Poh
UOBBF Information Technology Pte., Ltd. Internet techno[ogy development, Shanghai China SGD 1 Million
technology consulting and service
3 %, 25, AEHEL . _
AR LR FUFFR SR AREER g g ARBRICE |
UOB Property China Co., Ltd. ca estate development, OpErating: spanghai China RMB 2.259 Billion
leasing and management
BRREE, ARATEH,
. oy L > mf N /\F] - el = 3
UEGERARS | LB ) BRYD s R b 71,555 7T B
Co Ltcejn ure Management (Shanghai) Consulting and investment Shanghai China USD 15.55 Million Seah Kian Wee
? management
REBRFEBEHRAT BEEE Fng #TH 6,300 71T Thio Boon Kiat
UOB Asset Management Investment management Singapore SGD 63,000,000
2 LYANC = 47 4+ — —
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. #IHQ,A B = A ST 650 ﬁ.TL'. Rayson Li Kin Hung
Holding company New York USA USD 6.5 Million
Pl el ST AR IR EE T RS e AL - s
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ZEHARNEAFZIMEIAT

Company under the significant influence of the parent company

&R A S5 1R M M E A EEREFEA

Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
BEFERITRBERR T RITR SRS HEHE ARM 169127 EEE
Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited Banking and Financial Service Yantai China RMB 1.69 Billion Cai Guo Hua
FRAEECEEARAR EeH&K, EeWHE. #r-€E  fE R ARM3ZT FEX

Ping An UOB Fund Management Fund management Shenzhen China RMB 300 million Luo Chun Feng

Company Limited

ARRMXBEERAR
KBEEAR, SEAAFRNES, EERSREEAR,

key management personnel

senior management.

Key management personnel include directors, supervisor and

ZARNFRXRBEEANREXHME LA

Company under the significant influence of the Bank’s key management

&R A S5 iz EMBA EERRA
Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
v (B ) BEFRAR ZETERE HE E 25T 3700 AT RIRE
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD 37 Million Neo Soon Hup
REBENFZBEREM=FRBRA A B FE hE XiE AR 103125 AR
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd.  Real estate development Tianjin China RMB 1.03 Billion Liam Wee Sin
BSER. fWEER
s ) g NE o A e . — —
iﬁﬁé ( J:Iﬁ ) ;XJ\ EEEEBEA Gl ?1.\ EEE §1€.| ) ] I:P _I:;E %71: 650 T E_E
eng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Business information consulting, Corporate S o
! Shanghai China UsD 6.5 Million Wee Ee Chao
Management Co., Ltd management consulting, Investment
management consulting
— &M EE G & . — — .
BRRELERAT rioniisialaie LI =L £RDOAE  REE
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. Xiamen China UsD 8.2 Million Goh Bee Leong

pharmaceutical products

R A HRAF BEER g # 251,359,000 7T EEHE
Haw Par Corporation Limited Investment holding Singapore SGD 251,359,000 Wee Cho Yaw
s . . BHiEFE, £F, HEMEE . — —
WEEM (M) RRERAR P e - HE R ZEJT 2,400 AT ‘
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. Real estate development, operating, leaSIng’Chengdu China UsD 24 Million Lee Ngai Hon
and management
BEES. DWEE,
Lol = A 5 NS o 2 . — — WE g
usiness Consulting Business information consulting, Corporate N ; .
) . Shanghai China USD 80,000 Liam Wee Sin
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. management consulting, Investment
consulting, Construction plan consulting
EERIE L ERAR BHFFEREE thE L ARBBRZE | oo
Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development and operation  Shanghai China RMB 2.3 Billion € €
MEEHIRIEF . EFE. QFEE.
BlizERHE. HE, B8
HEER (XiE ) ERERAA Manufacturing of new construction H[E XiE AR 24061zt B
UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. materials, sale, lease and management Tianjin China RMB 24.06 Million Lim Hock San
of office buildings, apartment hotel,
commercial facilities
LERRELHRAR BHFFEREE thE L ARBALE | o
Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development and operation ~ Shanghai China RMB 710 Million g €
R S ) e NS ErES LY T fen e o X _ _ X
ZAFF (Lig) BEEERRAT EEEE. RALNE., SLEEENE HE i £ 555 BIFS
Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel Management Hotel management, investment consulting S
; Shanghai China UsD 50,000 Neo Soon Hup
Co., Ltd. and corporate management consulting
L adry SRS AR WA T - I . = ETE
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(4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

RGN TR Loans and advances to customers 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
RE HREZZRELLG RE EHEEXZRELLE]

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

HEER ( XiE ) KRBERLAT UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 60,000,000 022 62,000,000 0.25
LiBERENERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 20,850,274 0.08 -
i ElERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. - - 371,090,894 152
ait Total 80,850,274 030 433,090,894 177
FER IR SR Due from and placement with banks 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
RE HEIEZZRELLG RE HREEZZRELG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KERITERA T United Overseas Bank Limited 484,092,213 333 58,003,243 0.44
KERIT ( BRAT ) HFR/AF United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd. 517,566 - 657,879 -
FRACESETERAT O g‘gnt;?ﬁn Fund Managemen 27659 : :
&it Total 484,637,438 333 58,661,122 0.44
TEANEIFRANTI Due to and placements from banks 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
RE HGREEZZFELLHG RE HEEZZREALLS]

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 19,626,327,280 9741 15112,898,228 86.82
KERAT (B ) ARAR [ e Bank (Tha bl 20922 - 404,661 .
&it Total 19,626,348,202 9741 15,113,302,889 86.82

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e AL - s
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RSk Customer deposits 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
RE HEIEZ S REALLG RE HEEZZRELLH]

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

LiERBELERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd 609,150,489 2.01 645,654,990 2.56
LEEHRELFRAR UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 307,052,392 101 252349131 1.00
HEBRAEE (L) BRAR ES’BL\tljnt”re Management (Shanghai) 35 5, 746 079 247431703 098
EHEAERAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 98,587,527 033 66,565,541 0.26
FEEW (HE) ERERAT ?;‘flftr:f (Chengdu) Development 58925,275 019 24723066 010
KEE ( L ) RAEEBERAT ﬁ:nnaz ;Oe’:]gt (gga'?_gtza') Investment g 188 3¢5 003 8829689 0.04
EATHE (1) WEEEERAT . s o 5691714 002 : :
HEER (XiE ) KRERAF UIC Jin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 5,644,254 002 5678450 0.02
ElRREHERAR Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 5,241967 002  8546,296 0.03
k(155 ) EEREERAT LLJS'BBF Information Technology Pte 273,627 001 2623410 001
R R B R R B RAT 'Ll'tizr.\jin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., 1183.669 ) 654798 )
gl (E17) BEARAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 1,083,156 - 3,626282 0.01
U EEN (L) BRAT gg’LLE;'siness Consulting (Shanghai) 567578 ) 857319 )
LR EWFRAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 1,547 - - -
XEBEBEAR Key Management Personnel 19,526,797 0.06 21343430 0.08
&it Total 1362,451]03 449 1288884105 5.09
MgF 2 Interest receivables 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
RE HREEZZREULG RE  HREEZSREALLS

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

HEER (R ) KBERAT  UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 572,594 024 593,684 032
KEBRITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 173,039 0.07 - -
LERBREVERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 30,262 0.01 - -
LB ELFRAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. - - 592,457 032
&it Total 775,895 032 1186,141 0.64
L — - -
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Interest payables

31-12-2017

31-12-2016

RE GRIEZBRELLG]

R SRIEZH RIS

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITHERAH United Overseas Bank Limited 38,805,310 13.00 14,033,057 4.84
EiEEFHFEWEFRAF UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 3,613,960 121 1,786,317 0.62
LB E L ERAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co.,, Ltd. 2,305,042 077 64,044 0.02
EHLWERAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 395,572 o1 94,322 0.03
BERERAEE (1) BEAS gcC;)BLl/jnture Management (Shanghai) 390,279 o 575429 020
HEER (X ) KBERAT  UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 2991 0.01 30,837 0.01
FEEM (S ) ERERAT ilgglftrzjd (Chengdu) Development 20,583 001 8475 )
BlIEFREHERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 3,846 - 304 -
s N =  Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
¥ TL >0 b /\ _
KiE ( Lig ) BREEFRAA Management Co,, Ltd. 1,006 19970 0.01
ZKEE (LiF) BEEEARA Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel
] 583 - -
Gl Management Co., Ltd.
X (Eig) EERFEBRAT  UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. 292 - 287 -
g\l (E) BEARAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 129 - 702 -
R FEEMFPF=FEBR/. T Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 127 - 70 -
EEEER (i) BRAS LLJSL Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., e ) o1 )
- United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
=y INF] _ _
KERT (RE ) GRARA Company Limited 2 16
XBEEAR Key Management Personnel 85,643 0.03 87,540 0.03
&it Total 45,652,346 15.29 16,701,461 576
RIYERI — R ULER  Receivables- other Receivables 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
RE LEEZSHREILLG) RE HEEZZREALLG]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LigtezgrE W ER/AT  UOB Property China Co,, Ltd. 12,892,048 4.09 12,892,048 21.55
KERITHRAF United Overseas Bank Limited 1914124 0.61 2,838,109 474
X (LiF) EEHR UOBBF Information Technology Pte . ) 14818 0.02
HERAF Ltd. : .
&it Total 14,806,172 470 15,744,975 26.31
REAFRRIT - HA R ffFK  Payables - other payables 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
R HEEZFRELLG) RE HREEZZREALLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 36,601,109 19.82 8,422,067 110

Lox ol SEEI AR TR TR T RS e
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FEBAN Interest income 2017 2016
€8 LHEEZZETLLG] &8 GRELZZFEEALLH]
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITHERAH United Overseas Bank Limited 4,763,635 0.29 3,542,990 027
LM E ' EPR/ATE  Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 4113178 0.25 16,534,822 125
ﬁﬂ%’%ﬁﬁ (X&) &EEUICJinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 3,085,478 0.19 1,344,432 0.10
PR E
LB EWAEMRAT  ShanghaiJin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 612,676 0.04 - -
&it Total 12,574,967 0.77 21,422,244 1.62
FIEZH Interest expense 2017 2016
€8 HEEZZEEALLS] &8 AREXZEEILLA
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 242,521,764 2913 116,970,363 17.30
LiBEHENERAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 5,236,147 0.63 4806575 071
LB E L ERAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co.,, Ltd. 4975,627 0.60 507,655 0.08
s N N UOB Venture Management
o AT L S 3 INT
MEGBRRERE ( Lig) BRAH (Shanghai) Co, Ltd. 4,253,640 051 4,360,606 0.64
EH A FRAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 587,295 0.07 2,993,616 0.44
HEEM (BB ) ERERLT é'gglftzd (Chengdu) Development 413,617 0.05 201110 0.03
HiEER (Xig) EBERAT UIC)in Travel (Tianjin) Co,, Ltd. 100,061 0.01 32,308 -
s N = Kheng Leong (Shanghai)
3 TL S0 A /\
K (L) #RATRARAT Investment Management Co., Ltd. 78,759 00l 78,58 001
gl (E7) BIEERAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 20936 - 65,224 0.01
BIEFREHERAF Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 15,907 - 16,620 -
ZXREE (LiF) BEEEFRSA  Pan Pacific (Shanghai) Hotel
= 13,440 - - -
7l Management Co., Ltd.
wx (i) EEREERAT Il;t(ZBLIi(Ij: Information Technology 8961 ) 12463 )
K 2 R T R PR '(I;i(:;mjli:dUOL Xiwang Real Estate 5,855 ) 3131 )
s N UOL Business Consulting
1*® &> 3 INT - _
£UEHEEE (L) BRAA (shanghai) Co, Ltd. 2128 3,364
= = United Overseas Bank (Thai)
1% 3 AN - -
KERIT (RE ) BRAA Public Company Limited 227 6,386
iR ELFRAR Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 347 - -
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. - - 159,424 0.02
XEEEAR Key Management Personnel 310,560 0.04 374,847 0.06
ait Total 258,545,271 3105 130,592,250 1930
Pl mades S AR ITIAR W = R R - T ) . = FO
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FEERAEEN

Fee and commission income

2017

2016

T AREXSEHILG]

-0

HEIXZ S EHA LA

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KIESRITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 2,915,362 194 2,276,625 139
KEFFEEBRAT UOB Asset Management 2,693158 179 34,581 0.02
LR B ERAT Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 76,226 0.05 - -
LiERBELERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 75,536 0.05 2,475932 152
HEER (RiE) RBERAT UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 53,019 0.04 571 -
EIERREHERAR Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 16,866 001 17324 0.01
K845 (%RE ) BREAE g(r;ir;epc;r(])yvzr:jei:esdBank (Thai) Public 7963 0.0l 7935 )
fedr (E7) BIEBRAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 7472 - 16575 0.01
Rt FHBERBEMFF LA GRAT  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 4,956 - 2739 -
LBEHELFRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 2,204 - 2064 -
EATE (L) mEEmARAT [ g Shanghel Horel Mansgement 50, -
X (LE) BEREERAT UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. 606 - 189 -
HEEM ( KE ) KRERATHE Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 62 - 4,001 -
HAFHSEE (L5 ) GRAR UOL Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 28 - 24 -
EEGEIRAEIE ( LiF) BR/AT  UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd. 14 - 177 -
EHLWFRAFE Haw Par Corporation Limited - - 408 _
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. - - 1,061 -
ait Total 5,854,474 3.89 4,843,906 295
FEHERBETH Fee and commission expense 2017 2016
€8 GHEEZZEHALLH) &8 SEEZZEHLLG)
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 47,551 013 87392 0.31
WEREEE General and administrative expenses 2017 2016
S SREXSEHLG] €M SREXZEHLLG
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
BEBARZFE IT support
- KEBITHERAT -United Overseas Bank Limited 34,727973 397 29,380,179 3.61
BEEESRREH Rental and service fee
- b EWARAT -UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 36,605,665 419 17,047,550 2.09
- KEERITERAR -United Overseas Bank Limited 885,015 010 869,842 om
—fe\l (B ) iBIEBR/AT -Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 115,874 0.01 115,874 0.01
&it Total 72,334,527 8.27 47,413,445 5.82
B e S re—
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F R Software development 2017 2016
€8 SREEXSEHLLG] M HEEZZEHLLG]

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)

KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 12,128,439 53.09 20,111,755 49.05
ZHEA Fiduciary activities 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
EREE LHEEZHRELLH] ERRE HREXZREILLG)

Entrusted deposits Contribution (%) Entrusted deposits Contribution (%)

BIIEMREHAFR/AT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co,, Ltd. 11,040,000 0.46 11,040,000 0.61
AT B e sk i Irrevocable loan commitments 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
RE AHREEZSERELLH RE HREEZZRELE]

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

g BAWARAT  Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. 254149726 10.56 275,000,000 .52
g%igﬁ (Xi#) £ UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 28,000,000 116 28,000,000 117
&1t Total 282,149,726 n72 303,000,000 12.69
fTES&MIASRY Derivatives 31-12-2017 31-12-2016
R LEEZSRELLH] RE AHEEZZREULLH]

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KIERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 33,139,208,426 5.26 15,902,422,599 6.71
BEERITRRNBIR/AT  Evergrowing Bank Co,, Limited - - 1,562,133,899 0.66
&it Total 33,139,208,426 5.26 17,464,556,498 737
S —————— - -
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BEER, ZATMEAZERERBEAR LBEFENFRATHE
ANBARE, BREEME+T—. 4 1IRHLEREERIN, BX
T EBEHELERAREEHEAEEHEE ART 3,256,352 5T,
INAKEEEER,

AARE ERXBEAHITHZBZRBEZTHE X 5 FHHT, X
—MZENEAENEM, FHREBLEEFHT.

BRERLZSBN, AARAZMAEXBEBARFESENNOT:

Other transactions:

In 2017, apart from the general and administrative expense
disclosed in Note 114, the Bank as a leasee under an office
operating lease agreement with UOB Property China Co.,
Ltd. , paid UOB Property China Co., Ltd. rental amounting to
RMB3,256,352 during the renovation period and the amount
was recognised as long-term deferred expenses.

Transactions between the Bank and related parties
mentioned above are carried out in normal course of
business and commercial terms and market price.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as
follows:

2017 2016

ER#HeREtEHER

Employee salaries and other short-term benefits

63,626,561 59,010,469

EXRRNRAESHHINZHERMOT:

ARFSRERIHENFEEESHREZTHRIW SN, KERR
EHAMKEKZ S,

—. AFEARRBEEW

HEAVSHERAAERE L, XARREEMEMEEREDR
BHEXRTAGERARE,

+=. LB
ETFURBENETERAR, UFAREEZIRER,
T, MEHRZHE

AMEMRWZRARNEES T 2018 £ 3 A 23 BRI,

Pl el ST AR TR TR T RS e L i e
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Transactions between the Bank and the annuity are as
follows:

No transactions other than normal contribution to the

annuity were conducted between the Bank and the annuity
established by the Bank.

12. Post balance sheet events

As at the date on which the financial statements are approved,
there is no material post balance sheet event that needs to
be disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.

13. Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform
with the current year’s presentation.

14. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 23 March 2018.
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